Anderson County Board of Commissioners
Purchasing Committee Meeting Minutes
August 14, 2023
4:30 p.m.

Room 312 of the Courthouse

Members Present: Tim Isbel (Committee Chair), Phil Yager, Tyler Mayes, Denise Palmer and
Aaron Wells.

Public Comment Period

A. Contracts Approved by Law Director

1.

Jeremy Hasegawa, EMS, Contract #24-0010 — Agreement to provide EMS employee
tuition in the amount of $2,300 for the AEMT Course with the conditions that the
employee passes the course, obtains his AEMT license within four months after course
completion and remains employed full-time with EMS for one-year after obtaining
license.

Brandy Solomon, EMS, Contract #24-0011 — Agreement to provide EMS employee
tuition in the amount of $2,300 for the AEMT Course with the conditions that the
employee passes the course, obtains her AEMT license within four months after course
completion and remains employed full-time with EMS for one-year after obtaining
license.

Faith Phillips, EMS, Contract #24-0014 — Agreement to provide EMS employee tuition in
the amount of $2,300 for the AEMT Course with the conditions that the employee
passes the course, obtains her AEMT license within four months after course completion
and remains employed full-time with EMS for one-year after obtaining license.

Southeastern Emergency Physicians dba TeamHealth Midsouth, EMS, Contract #24-
0023 — Three-year contract for a Medical Director for $30,000/year, the same cost as
the previous contract.

B. Contracts Pending Law Director Approval

1.

Canon Solutions America Inc, EMS, Contract #24-0017 - Five- year copier lease. Pricing
is from State Wide Contract at $60.46 per month plus copy charges. Replaces
$211/month copier lease.
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2. Canon Solutions America Inc, Highway Department, Contract #24-0019 - Five- year
copier lease. Pricing is from State Wide Contract at $37.03 per month plus copy
charges. Replaces obsolete copier.

3. Waste Management, Solid Waste, Contract #24-0021 — Ten-year landfill host
agreement.

C. Other Business

1. Surplus Real Estate on Highway 25W in Rocky Top — Sale of Real Property to Powell-
Clinch Utility District for $20,000. Property transfer paperwork included in agenda as
contract #24-0002.

D. New Business

E. Old Business
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Anderson County Government
Employee Critical Care Paramedic School Tuition
Reimbursement Agreement

This Tuition Agreement is made on fusw . 2127 by and between, FIATYeN ﬁuf%ﬁnm PJIH/)Y’))

(Employee) and Anderson County Emergency Medical Services (ACEMS).

Whereas Employee is an employee of ACEMS, and in order to enhance the skills of the
Employee, the Employee is attending the critical care program at Roane State
Community College (RSCC), beginning on or about Ockuberi(i) Qtj’wand ending on or
about Nodemne’ (1220 )},

Witnesseth:

Section 1: Tuition Payment. ACEMS aggress to pay RSCC directly for the
course cost, including fees and books in the amount of no more than $1,000, as long as
the Employee is actively full-time employed by ACEMS, AND, the employee and
ACEMS agree to continue full-time employment for a period no less than one (1) year
after obtaining of Critical Care Paramedic State EMS License. (ACEMS will not pay for
testing fees, which are considered a separate cost from the school requirements). Should
the employee leave during the period of the agreement, the employee will be required to
repay the whole amount paid by ACEMS to RSCC.

Section 2: Repayment Event. Upon the occurrence of any of the following
events (“Repayment Event™):

a. Employment of the Employee at ACEMS terminates prior to the
completion of the Program for any reason whatsoever, including
resignation by Employee, or dismissal by Employer with cause; but
excluding layoffs due to staff downsizing.

b. Employment of the Employee at ACEMS terminates prior to the
completion of the year after obtaining of Critical Care Paramedic State
EMS License.

¢. Failure to complete/pass the Critical Care Paramedic program.

d. Failure to obtain state Critical Care Paramedic license, once all testing
opportunities have been exhausted.

Section 3: Set-Off. The Employee authorizes and directs ACEMS to set-off
any and all amounts owing to ACEMS under this Agreement against any amount owing
ACEMS to the Employee, including but not limited to salary, wages, vacation pay, etc.

Section 4: Indemuity. The Employee hereby indemnifies and saves harmless
ACEMS from and against any and all suits, claims, actions, damages and other losses
which ACEMS suffers or incurs as a result of any governmental taxing authority

[
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assessing the reimbursement of the Tuition Payments hereunder as a benefit to the
Employee.

Section 8: Release. Employee hereby agrees to release and hold County
harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, or the like associated with
County’s performance of this agreement, or as it relates to the past, present, or future
financial condition of the County or the performance of Employee’s services under this
Agreement.

Section 9: Default. In the event of default by the Employee hereto, the
County may bring suit against the Employee to enforce the terms of this Agreement. In
such event, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover any remedies available at law
and/or equity including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs associated with the default.

Section 10:  No Oral Modification. No modification, amendment, supplement
to or waiver of this Agreement or any of its provisions shall be binding upon the Parties
hereto unless made in writing and duly signed by all the parties.

Section 11:  Waiver. A failure of any Party to exercise any right provided for
herein, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder.

Section 12: [Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire
understanding of the Parties as to the subject matter and may not be modified except in 4
writing executed by all Parties.

Section 13:  Severability. If any term of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, then this Agreement, including all
of the remaining terms, will remain in full force and effect as if such invahd or
unenforceable term had never been included.

Section 15:  Exhibits. Any Exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein are
made a part of this Agreement for all purposes. The expression “this Agreement” means
the body of this Agreement and the Exhibits.

Section 16:  Multiple Counterparts; Effectiveness. This Agreement may be
executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all
purposes and all of which shall be deemed, collectively, one Agreement. This Agreement
shall become effective when executed and delivered by all the Parties.

Section 17:  Jurisdiction. Each Party hereby irrevocably consents to the
jurisdiction of all state courts sitting in Anderson County, Tennessee or all federal courts
sitting in Knoxville, Tennessee and agrees that venue for any legal action brought in
connection with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in such courts.
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Section 18:  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of the Parties and upon their respective successors, heirs, or assigns.

Section 19:  Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee.

Section 20:  Netice. Any notice rtequired or provided pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in writing and sent or delivered to the Parties.

Section 21:  Titles and Subtitles. Titles of paragraphs and subparagraphs are
for convenient reference only and shall not have the effect of modifying, amending, or
changing the express terms of this Agreement.

Section 22:  Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable.
Section 23:  Further Documentation. The Parties agree for themselves to

execute any and all instruments in writing, which are or may become necessary or proper
to carry out the employment relationship, purpose and intent of this Agreement.

For Employee: For Anderson County:
Signature Mathay) Sweel, Dirdclor_6f Emergency

Medital Services

j(xw\{) AU)*:I\_{Y;AM B Date: 7///()/23

Print Full Name

Date: 7/ < / 3

Address: SE| Enghyh Vilinge Woy
APt 1311 Approved as 1
Knoxvine ;40 37914

County

3
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Anderson County Government
Employee AEMT Class Agreement

===} ;
'Ihis Agreement is made on Julg /3 723 by and between,
Wrvely S f ¢ (Employée) and Anderson County Emergency Medical Services

(ACEMS)

Where as Employee is an employee of ACEMS, and in order to enhance the skills of the
Employee, the Employee has applied for and has been accepted into the AEMT (Course
of Study) at Anderson County EMS (Program) beginning on/or about August 08, 2023
and ending on/or about November 28%, 2023.

Witnesseth:

Section 1: Course Cost Coverage. ACEMS agrees to cover the total fees for
the Course, as long as the Employee is actively employed in a full-time capacity for a
period of no less than one (1) year after obtaining licensure/certificate as an AEMT from
the State of Tennessee. (ACEMS will not pay for testing fees, which are considered a
separate cost from the class requirements). The course fee total is $2,300.

Section 2: Repayment Event. Upon the occurrence of any of the following
events (“Repayment Event”): Repayment will be completed within 12 months of a
Repayment Event
a. Employment of the Employee at ACEMS terminates prior to the
completion of the one (1) year period, including resignation by Employee,
or dismissal by Employer with or without cause; or
b. Employee moves from full-time to part-time or seasonal status for any
length of time prior to the one (1) year period ending.
c. Employee fails the AEMT class.
d. Employee does not obtain their AEMT licensure/certificate within four (4)
months of completing the AEMT course.

Section 3: Set-Off. The Employee authorizes and directs ACEMS to set-off
any and all amounts owing to ACEMS under this Agreement against any amount owing
ACEMS to the Employee, including but not limited to salary, wages, vacation pay, etc.

Section 4: Indemnity. The Employee hereby indemnifies and saves harmless
ACEMS from and against any and all suits, claims, actions, damages and other losses
which ACEMS suffers or incurs as a result of any governmental taxing authority
assessing the reimbursement of the Tuition Payments hereunder as a benefit to the

Employee.

Section 8: Release. Employee hereby agrees to release and hold County
harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, or the like associated with
County’s performance of this agreement, or as it relates to the past, present, or future
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financial condition of the County or the performance of Employee’s services under this
Agreement.

Section 9: Default. In the event of default by the Employee hereto, the
County may bring suit against the Employee to enforce the terms of this Agreement. In
such event, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover any remedies available at law
and/or equity including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs associated with the default.

Section 10: No Oral Modification. No modification, amendment, supplement
to or waiver of this Agreement or any of its provisions shall be binding upon the Parties
hereto unless made in writing and duly signed by all the parties.

Section 11: Waiver. A failure of any Party to exercise any right provided for
herein, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder.

Section 12: Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire
understanding of the Parties as to the subject matter and may not be modified except in a
writing executed by all Parties.

Section 13:  Severability. If any term of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, then this Agreement, including all
of the remaining terms, will remain in full force and effect as if such invalid or
unenforceable term had never been included.

Section 15:  Exhibits. Any Exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein are
made a part of this Agreement for all purposes. The expression “this Agreement” means
the body of this Agreement and the Exhibits.

Section 16: Multiple Counterparts; Effectiveness. This Agreement may be
executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all
purposes and all of which shall be deemed, collectively, one Agreement. This Agreement
shall become effective when executed and delivered by all the Parties.

Section 17:  Jurisdiction. FEach Party hereby irrevocably consents to the
jurisdiction of all state courts sitting in Anderson County, Tennessee or all federal courts
sitting in Knoxville, Tennessee and agrees that venue for any legal action brought in
connection with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in such courts.

Section 18: Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of the Parties and upon their respective successors, heirs, or assigns.

Section 19:  Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee.

Section 20: Notice. Any notice required or provided pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in writing and sent or delivered to the Parties.

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
2



QH-C01)

Section 21:  Titles and Subtitles. Titles of paragraphs and subparagraphs are
for convenient reference only and shall not have the effect of modifying, amending, or
changing the express terms of this Agreement.

Section 22:  Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable.

Section 23:  Further Documentation. The Parties agree for themselves to
execute any and all instruments in writing, which are or may become necessary or proper
to carry out the employment relationship, purpose and intent of this Agreement.

For Employee: For Anderson County:
dd\&mdw &‘Pjﬂﬁ'&@-—«-——/ F\( k&w w%/k
Signature NatHan S&Jeet Dlre&tor of Emergency

edical Services

Date: ?/J?) /2‘3
Print Full Name _ [

Date: q - ‘%426

Address: 410{_MaScal he 2o
KY\DX V)i “ 14 TQ 5% 9'( Approved as to F /

// 2 )g_ﬁ'_g)fﬂ__
County Law ]ﬁ’u’eptﬁ f /
7 -
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Anderson County Government
Employee AEMT Class Agreement
This Agreement is made on I ,-/ 2Y ,-"fl-?;g:f‘ > by and between,

T Plullips  (Employee) dnd Anderson County Emergency Medical Services
(ACEMS). [

Where as Employee is an employee of ACEMS, and in order to enhance the skills of the
Employee, the Employee has applied for and has been accepted into the AEMT (Course
of Study) at Anderson County EMS (Program) beginning on/or about August 08, 2023
and ending on/or about November 28", 2023.

Witnesseth:

Section 1: Course Cost Coverage. ACEMS agrees to cover the total fees for
the Course, as long as the Employee is actively employed in a full-time capacity for a
period of no less than one (1) year after obtaining licensure/certificate as an AEMT from
the State of Tennessee. (ACEMS will not pay for testing fees, which are considered a
separate cost from the class requirements). The course fee total is $2,300.

Section 2: Repayment Event. Upon the occurrence of any of the following
events (“Repayment Event”): Repayment will be completed within 12 months of a
Repayment Event
a. Employment of the Employee at ACEMS terminates prior to the
completion of the one (1) year period, including resignation by Employee,
or dismissal by Employer with or without cause; or
b. Employee moves from full-time to part-time or seasonal status for any
length of time prior to the one (1) year period ending.
c. Employee fails the AEMT class.
d. Employee does not obtain their AEMT licensure/certificate within four (4)
months of completing the AEMT course.

Section 3: Set-Off. The Employee authorizes and directs ACEMS to set-off
any and all amounts owing to ACEMS under this Agreement against any amount owing
ACEMS to the Employee, including but not limited to salary, wages, vacation pay, etc.

Section 4: Indemnity. The Employee hereby indemnifies and saves harmless
ACEMS from and against any and all suits, claims, actions, damages and other losses
which ACEMS suffers or incurs as a result of any governmental taxing authority
assessing the reimbursement of the Tuition Payments hereunder as a benefit to the
Employee.

Section 8: Release. Employee hereby agrees to release and hold County
harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, or the like associated with
County’s performance of this agreement, or as it relates to the past, present, or future
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financial condition of the County or the performance of Employee’s services under this
Agreement.

Section 9: Default. In the event of default by the Employee hereto, the
County may bring suit against the Employee to enforce the terms of this Agreement. In
such event, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover any remedies available at law
and/or equity including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs associated with the default.

Section 10:  No Oral Modification. No modification, amendment, supplement
to or waiver of this Agreement or any of its provisions shall be binding upon the Parties
hereto unless made in writing and duly signed by all the parties.

Section 11: Waiver. A failure of any Party to exercise any right provided for
herein, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder.

Section 12: Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire
understanding of the Parties as to the subject matter and may not be modified except in a
writing executed by all Parties.

Section 13:  Severability. If any term of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, then this Agreement, including all
of the remaining terms, will remain in full force and effect as if such invalid or
unenforceable term had never been included.

Section 15:  Exhibits. Any Exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein are
made a part of this Agreement for all purposes. The expression “this Agreement” means
the body of this Agreement and the Exhibits.

Section 16:  Multiple Counterparts; Effectiveness. This Agreement may be
executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all
purposes and all of which shall be deemed, collectively, one Agreement. This Agreement
shall become effective when executed and delivered by all the Parties.

Section 17:  Jurisdiction. FEach Party hereby irrevocably consents to the
jurisdiction of all state courts sitting in Anderson County, Tennessee or all federal courts
sitting in Knoxville, Tennessee and agrees that venue for any legal action brought in
connection with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in such courts.

Section 18: Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of the Parties and upon their respective successors, heirs, or assigns.

Section 19:  Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee.

Section 20: Notice. Any notice required or provided pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in writing and sent or delivered to the Parties.

2
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Section 21:  Titles and Subtitles. Titles of paragraphs and subparagraphs are

for convenient reference only and shall not have the effect of modifying, amending, or
changing the express terms of this Agreement.

Section 22:  Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable.

Section 23: Further Documentation. The Parties agree for themselves to

execute any and all instruments in writing, which are or may become necessary or proper
to carry out the employment relationship, purpose and intent of this Agreement.

For Employee:
Signature

E b Sy \‘_-\F\JL.)

Print Full Name

Date: julY 11\1} 2073

Address: {25 Milipilly Cudina

TN

For Anderson County:

Natha’ Sweet, Directot of/ Emergency
Mcdéil/Servwes

Date: 7;/2 ‘f/ 7 >

Approved__as to Form: -
/ -:’7!(// T / ./,
. - ¢ :_ /;’2/ :"_-n{_él_f:;—vﬂ_u_
County Law’Bﬁ'eE@} 7 =
iy < “

3
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Contract for Medical Director Services

This Agreement is made on this the 1st of July, 2023, between Anderson County, Tennessee, a
governmental entity and political subdivision of the State of Tennessee (hereinafter, “County”) and
Southeastern Emergency Physicians, Inc. d/b/a TeamHealth Midsouth (hereinafter, “Contractor”) and
for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as
follows:

Contractor Services. Contractor agrees to provide services to Anderson County Government,
Emergency Medical Services (ACEMS) in the form of Physician Services, “The Medical Director.”

Standard of Performance. Contractor agrees to perform the contract requirements in a manner consistent
with the standard in the industry and to the satisfaction of the County. To include, not limited by, the
following:

o« WHEREAS, ACEMS operates an Emergency Medical Service, which requires oversight by a
physician who has the training, experience, and qualifications necessary to practice such medical
oversight.

e« WHEREAS, Contractor supplies independent contractor physicians who agree to render
emergency medical services. Contractor is willing to accept the responsibility of supplying a
physician to serve as the Medical Director for ACEMS in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement.

o Provision of Medical Director: Contractor will provide to ACEMS a physician (“The Medical
Director”) to be the medical director for ACEMS's First Responders programs. The Medical
Director, including any replacements for the Medical Director, shall be selected upon mutual
agreement of ACEMS and Contractor. The Medical Director shall perform the duties as outlined
herein. In the event the Medical Director is unavailable, Contractor shall provide a back- up
physician, who shall also be selected upon mutual agreement of ACEMS and Contractor, to provide
the duties of the Medical Director on a temporary basis.

e« Medical Director Qualifications: The Medical Director shall be a graduate of an accredited
medical college, licensed to practice medicine in the state of Tennessee.

« Medical Director Duties: Contractor shall cause the Medical Director to devote a reasonable
number of hours per week to the performance of his duties as the Medical Director. Contractor and
ACEMS shali from time-to-time reasonably determine the necessary and appropriate hours during
which the Medical Director will provide the services herein. The duties of the Medical Director shall

include:
1. Directing the medical care of patients seen by ACEMS.
2. Approving Standards/Protocols for ACEMS practices and practice guidelines.
3. Providing supervision of emergency medical providers.
4. Attend 50% of ACEMS’s annual in-service training.
5. Be on site with ACEMS operations a minimum of one (1) day per month, preferably

two (2) days per month.
s Choice of day will be at the Medical Director’s discretion

Purchase Order. A Purchase Order must in place before services are rendered.

Contractor Compensation. Contractor shall be paid by the County within thirty (30) days of
quarterly invoicing and delivery. The compensation to Contractor shall be $7,500.00 per quarter,
four (4) payments per year, not to exceed $30,000.00 per year. Contractor shall not receive
additional compensation for expenses including travel, hotel, food, etc.

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda



AH- C0YH 3

Term. The term of this agreement shall begin July 1, 2023 and shall end June 30, 2026, a
duration of three (3) years.

Release. Contractor hereby agrees to release, indemnify, and hold County harmless from and against any
and all claims, lawsuits, or the like associated with County’s performance of this agreement, or as it relates
to the past, present, or future financial condition of the County or the performance of Contractor’s services
under this Agreement.

Default. In the event of default by the Contractor hereto, the County may bring suit against the Contractor
to enforce the terms of this Agreement. In such event, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover any
remedies available at law and/or equity including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs associated with the
default.

No Oral Modification. No modification, amendment, supplement to or waiver of this Agreement or any of
its provisions shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writing and duly signed by all the
parties.

Waiver. A failure of any party to exercise any right provided for herein, shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any right hereunder.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties as to the subject
matter and may not be modified except in a writing executed by all parties.

Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement is invalid or otherwise
unenforceable, the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall be unimpaired.

Cancellation. In the event any party materially breeches, defaults or fails to perform hereunder, this
Agreement may be cancelled by the other party with cause on thirty (30) days written notice to the other, if
the event constituting the breach, default, or failure is not cured during that time.

Termination. The County reserves the right to terminate this contract in whole or in part with thirty (30)
days written notification to the contractor. In the event of termination, the County shalt not be liable for any
costs other than the cost of services performed and materials delivered and accepted prior to termination
date.

Exhibits. Any Exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein are made a part of this Agreement for all
purposes. The expression “this Agreement” means the body of this Agreement and the Exhibits.

Multiple Counterparts: Effectiveness. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes and all of which shall be deemed, collectively, one
Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective when executed by all the parties.

Jurisdiction. Each party hereby irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of all state courts sitting in
Tennessee or all federal courts sitting in Knoxville, Tennessee and agrees that venue for any legal action
brought in connection with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in such courts.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and upon their
respective successors, heirs, or assigns.

Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Tennessee. The Contractor certifies that in performing this contract they will comply with all applicable
provisions of the federal, state, and local laws, regulations, rules, and orders.
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Appropriated Funds. The County's obligation to pay under this Contract is contingent upon funds
appropriated in the current fiscal year's budget as approved by the County Board of Commissioners. Any
contract requiring appropriated funds beyond the current fiscal year may be cancelled without notice in the
event that funding to support the contract are unavailable in the subsequent fiscal year.

Payment Terms. The County’s payment terms are net 30. All invoices shall be addressed to Anderson
County Director of Finance, Room 210, 100 North Main Street, Clinton, TN 37716, and must include
Contractor's name, address and phone number, and clearly list quantities, item description and units of
measure.

Warranty. The Contractor warrants to the County that all goods and services furnished hereunder shall be
free of defects in materials, workmanship, and from defect in design. In addition, Contractor warrants the
goods and services are suitable for and will perform in accordance with the purposes for which they were
intended.

Insurance Requirement. Contractors awarded bids or contracts are required to maintain, at their expense
adequate insurance coverage to protect them from claims arising under the Worker's Compensation Act,
any and all claims for bodily injury and property damage to the Contractor and to the County while
completing delivery and services. A certificate of insurance may be required before work begins and be
maintained until work is completed. Certificate Holder Shall Be: Anderson County Government, Clinton,
Tennessee. Anderson County Government shall be named as an additional insured on all policies except
worker's compensation and auto. Insurance carrier ratings shall have a Best's rating of A-VIl or better, or
its equivalent. Cancellation clause on certificate should strike out “endeavor to” and include a 30-day notice
of cancellation where applicable. Any deviations from the above requirements must be disclosed to the
County Purchasing Agent. Any liability deductibles or exclusions must also be disclosed. Contractor shall
provide malpractice insurance for the Medical Director in limits of $1,000,000 (One Million Dollars)
per occurrence and $3,000,000 (Three Million Dollars) in the aggregate.

Non-discrimination. The Contractor shall comply with the Tennessee Human Rights Act, T. C. A. §4-21-
101 et. seq., as amended and any rules and regulations promulgated in accordance therewith.

Equal Employment Opportunity. It shall also be an unlawful employment practice for the Contractor (1)
to fail or refuse to hire or to discharge any individual or otherwise to discriminate against any individual with
respect to their compensation, or the terms, conditions, or privileges of their employment, because of such
individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin; or (2) to limit, segregate, or classify
their employees or applicants for employment in any way which would deprive or tend to deprive any
individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect their status as an employee, because
of such individual’s race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin. Contractor shall comply with
The Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. sec. 2000 et seq. (2000), as amended.

Notice. Any notice required or provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and sent or delivered
to the parties.

Titles and Subtitles. Titles of paragraphs and subparagraphs are for convenient reference only and shall
not have the effect of modifying, amending, or changing the express terms of this Agreement.

Assignment. This Agreement shall be assignable only upon the written consent of the non-assigning party.
Consent to an assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the event of assignment or succession,
the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their successors, assigns,
heirs, executors, and/or administrators.

Further Documentation. The parties agree for themselves and their successors and assigns to execute
any and all instruments in writing which are or may become necessary or proper to carry out the purpose
and intent of this Agreement.
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Contractor Anderson County Government
Administrative Approval
Signature Date
Robby Holbrook, Interim Finance Director Date
Printed Name
Terry Frank, Anderson County Mayor Date

Title

Name of Company

Approved as to Form

Address

7 / ol ley LT PLISL e 07/ ;r/):?
“N. Jay Yeager, Lauﬁjﬁif?&f 7 Date

F .
L

City, State Zip
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Q a“ 0“ State of Tennessee Contract Quote Sheet <4-0UT7/
Issued Under:

CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA SWC 400 Multifunction Devices
Contract #: 62117

QUOTE AND PURCHASE ORDER DOCUMENT

Quote #: BD-023 Date:
BILL TO: ("Customer") SHIP TO: (if different)
Customer Name: Anderson County Government Customer Name: 2/9/2023
Dept: Em 3 Dept:
Contact: %1 v M LT o ¢ (¢ Contact:
Address: 319\ D b\ ¢ <pfut, ksl Address:
City/State/Zip: [\ [, Ftec T/ 31911, City/State/Zip:
Phone: Y5 &< R60S Phone:
Email: ¥R cCouomic KR Budergpin@wS .o mn Email:
. Auto Toner Contact (if different from above):
Name: \f‘: a A u] I_k"\.-pﬁl’ l’ Phone: %(D E\ L\'S 1 R (D O Q] Ema“: ‘*L F, fl{\ I{_\,.f) [ @ fl‘\'\l'.‘ Ufg\i')
CSA to Pick Up Current Copier if Completed: Lwms.on
Make: Model: Serial #:
Color Group Il - IRADV DX C58401 (40 CPM)
Qty Model Description - Base Configuration Monthly Rental Price | Vendor item ID
1 Canon IRADV DX C58401 MONTHLY RENTAL 3827C002
Cost Per Copy Charges apply

Equipment Maintenance cost per copy/print includes toner and staples:
BMWCPC: $ 0.0040 ColorCPC $ 0.0350

ACCESSORIES (INCLUDED WHEN QUANTITY NOTED):

CABINET TYPE-V 5358C001
1 JINNER FINISHER-L1 4000C002
STAPLE FINISHER-AB1 3989C002
BUFFER PASS UNIT-P1 4003C002
1 |INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1 4002C002
1 |SUPER G3 FAX BOARD-AX1 3988C001
HD CARD-SCANNER/FOLLOW-ME-PRINT 3575B678
TRACKING SOFTWARE 35758436
1 JADD'L INPUT TRAY (CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AM1) 0609C002

THE BELOW ITEMS ARE NOT AVAILABLE ON STATE CONTRACT #62117. CUSTOMER HEREBY
ACKNOWLEDGES THE REQUISITE PURCHASING AUTHORITY IS CHAPTER 0690-3-1 OF THE DGS

RULES, OR LOCAL PURCHASING REGS, AS APPLICABLE, NOTWITHSTANDING, THESE ITEMS
ARE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF 62117, WHICH IS CONTROLLING.

TOTAL: $60.46

Auto Toner Fulfillment **(Requires use of imageWare Remote)

Send Signed £anon Solutions America, Inc. Send Payments To: Canon Financial Services, inc.
Purchase Order or Attn. 14904 Collections Center Drive
Email 402 BNA Drive, Ste. 360 Chicago, IL 60693
Acknowledgement to: Nashville, TN. 37217
-OR --
Fax: 615. - Attn.

Email: @csa.canon.com
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[ca“ on State of Tennessee Contract Quote Sheet ’;‘
issued Under: -
CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA SWC 400 Multifunction Devices

Contract #: 62117 . h\{i:)q.h(l)

QUOTE AND PURCHASE ORDER DOCUMENT k,(:

Quote #: BD-380 Date: 8/3/2023 ///-L\—”/

/

BILL TO: (“Customer”) SHIP TO: (if different) k—‘“wﬂ“
Customer Name: TN Anderson County Customer Name:
Dept: - ONNGN Dept:
Contact: ' Contact:
Address: Address:
City/State/Zip: City/State/Zip:
Phone: Phone:
Email: Email:

Auto Toner Contact (if different from above):

Name: Phone: Email:
CSA to Pick Up Current Copier if Completed:
Make: Model: Serial #
Color Group | - IRADVC:&BSO_Q.SCPMJ
Qty Model Description - Base Configuration Monthly Rental Pric Vendor Item 1D
1 Canon IRADVC3830 MONTHLY RENTAL $24 25 4913C002
Cost Per Copy Charges apply
Equipment Mainignance cost per copy/print ‘noludes toner and staples
BWCPC: § 0.0055 Color CPC: § 0.037
A OR DeD QUA O )
CABINET TYPE W $0.00 5634C001
INNER FINISHER-L1 $0.00 40D0C002
1 |SUPER G3 FAX BOARD-BH1 $6.70 4919C001
HID Card Scanner/Follow me Print $0 00 35758678
Tracking Software $0.00 3575B436
1 {CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AWA $6 08 4917C002
2/3 HOLE PUNCHER UNIT-A1 $0 00 0126C001
INNER 2 WAY TRAY-M1 $0.00 4034C001
STAPLE FINISHER-AE1 $0.00 4921C001
=" L 0 b ) L - = 8 A L) <A ) = RED
4 O D R PUR A A OR PTER 0690 O D
R OR AL PUR A R AS APP B O AND
AR 2 O R OF 6 RO
TOTAL: $37.03

7] Auto Toner Fulfiliment **(Requires use of imageWare Remote)

Send Signed Canon Solutions America. Inc Send Payments Ta: Canon Financial Services, inc
Purchase Order or Attn. 14904 Collections Center Drive
Email 402 BNA Drive. Ste 360 Chicago. L 60693
Acknowledgement to: Nashville, TN 37217
--OR -
Fax - Attn

Email csa.canon.com

iRADVC3830 Rental
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AMENDMENT TO HOST AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO HOST AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into as
of the 1st day of September, 2023, by and between Anderson County, Tennessee, through its
Board of Commissioners (the “County”), the Anderson County Solid Waste Regional
Board (“Regional Board”), and Waste Management, Inc. of Tennessee (“Waste
Management”), a Tennessee corporation.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County, the Regional Board, and Waste Management previously entered
into a certain Host Agreement, that took effect on July 1, 2003 (the “Agreement”, Exhibit B),
related to the Class I landfill known as the Chestnut Ridge Landfill located in Heiskell, TN
(“Landfill”), which Waste Management operates;

WHEREAS, per Bid #2319, Exhibit C, the County and the Regional Board desire to ensure
the continued availability of a landfill for the economically and environmentally sound disposition
of waste generated within the County and Waste Management agreed to provide a Host Fee and
disposal services for waste generated within the County at the Landfill, all as more particularly set
forth in the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement term is expiring and the parties desire to extend the term of
the Agreement and make other modifications thereto, as more particularly set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged and confessed, the parties agree as follows:

1. Section 1, entitled “Term of Agreement,” is hereby modified to extend the term to end on
June 30, 2033. If any party does not intend to renew the Agreement for a ten (10) year renewal
term, then such party shall provide written notice to the other parties at least 180 days before June
30, 2033.

2. The definition of Landfill Permit” in section II, Definitions, is hereby revised as follows:

Landfill Permit. The solid waste permit issued by TDEC, permit number SNL 01 0000
160, authorizing the operation of the Landfill, and including any modifications, renewals,
or amendments related to the foregoing.

3. Section IV, “Disposal of County Solid Waste at the Landfill” is hereby superseded and
replaced by the following language:

Effective September 1, 2023, the County shall pay a tipping fee of $25.08 per ton (“Tip
Fee”) to dispose of solid waste for which the County has the disposal responsibility, that
is, waste from residences, convenience centers, and school and government buildings
located within the County, whether transported to the Landfill by the County itself or its
contracted hauler. The County shall pay a total rate of $26.33 per ton to Waste
Management, which is the sum of the Tip Fee and the current TDEC waste disposal fee

1
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of $1.25 per ton (“Host Rate™). If the TDEC or its successor agency increases this fee or
if any new federal state, or local fees, charges, or assessments are adopted or approved,
Waste Management has the right to add the increase in the current TDEC fee or any new
governmental fee, charge or assessment to the then-current Haul Rate by providing the
County with 15-days’ written notice.

The Tip Fee does not apply to Special Waste, and the Landfill is not permitted to receive
and shall not accept Hazardous Waste. For purposes of this Agreement, Solid Waste for
which the County has disposal responsibility is defined to include all waste collected from
residences and convenience centers located in all incorporated municipalities located
within the boundaries of Anderson County, Tennessee and all waste delivered to the
Landfill by an Anderson County Generator.

The Tip Fee shall be adjusted annually to reflect the increase in the Consumer Price Index,
U.S. City Average for All Urban Consumers, Water, Sewer Trash, Not Seasonally
Adjusted (“CPI”) as calculated pursuant to Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference. The tons of waste for which Waste Management invoices the County
shall be determined by scale tickets, which shall be available for inspection by the County
upon reasonable notice to Waste Management.

In addition to the CPI adjustment language in Exhibit A, Waste Management has the right
to submit a written request that the Host Rate be further adjusted to fully capture increased
expenses, lost revenue, and/or margin erosion associated with performance of Waste
Management’s services due to any one, or a combination, of the following: (i) an
uncontrollable circumstance which includes, but is not limited to, tornadoes, fires, other
acts of God, landslide, acts of a public enemy or terrorist, war, pandemic or epidemic,
industry-wide labor or equipment shortage, blockade, insurrection, riot or civil
disturbance, that increases Waste Management’s costs to operate and maintain the
Landfill, (ii) a change in applicable law, rule, or regulation, or the interpretation thereof,
that becomes effective after the date this Amendment takes effect which increases the
Landfill’s costs to comply with such law, rule, or regulation, (iii) unanticipated increases
in the costs to operate and maintain the Landfill, which increases are not due to Waste
Management’s negligence or intentional misconduct. If Waste Management requests
such an increase in its charges or fees, it shall provide the County with the basis for its
requested increase, which may include calculations of the increased costs/lost revenue.
The County shall not unreasonably deny, withhold, or delay approval of all or a portion
of Waste Management’s request, and shall make its decision no later than 60 days after
receiving Waste Management’s request.

Section V, entitled “Host Surcharge Payments,” is hereby superseded and replaced by the

following language:

Effective September 1, 2023, Waste Management shall pay to the County an agreed upon
Host Fee of $1.62 per ton on each ton of Solid Waste (including Special Waste) generated
outside of the County and received at the Landfill for disposal. All waste generated within
the County is exempt from the Host Surcharge Payment. The Host Surcharge Payment
shall be adjusted annually to reflect the increase in the CPI as calculated pursuant to

2
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Exhibit A attached hereto. If the number of tons of waste generated outside of the County
and received at the Landfill for disposal exceeds 500,000 tons in any calendar year, then
Waste Management shall pay the County an additional twenty cents ($0.20) per ton on
each ton in excess of 500,000 tons of out-of-County waste disposed at the Landfill during
that calendar year.

These payments by Waste Management to the County shall be known as Host Surcharge
Payments and shall be made quarterly. Each payment shall be made on or before the last
day of the month following the end of the calendar quarter in which the waste was
received at the Landfill.

The Host Surcharge Payments shall be in lieu of any and all other taxes, fees, surcharges,
and assessments of whatever nature (with the exception of real and personal property
taxes, employee earned income tax, and other normal business taxes, fees, and
assessments unrelated to the Landfill or its operations). The County and Regional Board
each agrees not to enact, adopt, assess, pass, or approve any other fee, tax, surcharge, or
assessment upon the Landfill, its operations, or the waste received at the Landfill during
the term of this Agreement.

Section VI, entitled “Actions of County or Regional Board,” is hereby superseded and

replaced by the following language:

6.

During the term of this Agreement, neither the County nor the Anderson County Solid
Waste Regional Board shall take any action to restrict access to the Landfill by excluding
solid waste generated outside the County. If the Regional Board or the County refuses
to give its approval to or opposes an expansion of the Landfill when requested by Waste
Management or takes action to exclude or limit waste from outside the County, then
Waste Management shall have the right to immediately declare this entire Agreement null
and void, or at its option, to immediately terminate the Host Surcharge Payments provided
for in section 5 of this Agreement.

Further, if the Regional Board or the County authorize or approve the siting, permitting,
or construction of a new landfill within the County and that new landfill is opened to
accept waste before Chestnut Ridge Landfill has exhausted its permitted waste disposal
capacity, then Waste Management has the right to immediately declare this entire
Agreement null and void, or at its option, to immediately terminate the Host Surcharge
Payments provided for in section 5 of this Agreement.

The following new language is hereby added to the existing language in Section VII,

“Operation of the Landfill:”

The Landfill will be available to receive contracted and commercial deliveries and
dispose of Solid Waste on Monday through Friday from 5:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. and on
Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. The Landfill will not accept or receive any Solid
Waste on Sunday. Waste Management has the right to modify the hours in which it will
be open to accept Solid Waste by providing at least 30 days written notice to the County.

3
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For no more than five (5) years from the effective date of this Amendment, Waste
Management will continue to operate on the County’s behalf the current residential drop-
off area located behind the Landfill scale house. The residential drop-off area will be open
to County residents from 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and from 6:00
a.m. to 10:30 a.m. on Saturday. Waste Management has the right to modify the hours in
which the residential drop-off area will be open by providing at least 30 days written
notice to the County. )

The County and Waste Management agree that within the five-year period they will work
cooperatively to find a new location for the residential drop-off area and Waste
Management will not have the obligation to operate or manage the new center. While
Waste Management is continuing to operate the drop-off area at the current location,
County residents shall continue to have the right to bring waste generated at their
residences and deposit such waste into the open-top boxes at the drop-off area. Waste
Management will weigh each open-top box at the scale house before disposing the Waste
into the Landfill. Waste Management will invoice the County at least monthly for all the
Solid Waste tonnage received at the drop-off area and disposed. Waste Management has
the right to verify that all residents bringing Solid Waste to unload at the drop-off area
reside in the County by checking driver’s licenses. Construction and Demolition Waste
generated by a third-party or a for profit business at a residence is not acceptable at the
drop-off area. Only waste generated by a resident at that resident’s County located
residential property and delivered by the resident may be unloaded at drop-off center.

Waste Management will provide up to two (2) Saturday clean-up days on an annual basis,
one day being in the Fall and the second day in the Spring so long as the residential drop-
off area is still located behind the Landfill scale house. Waste Management will select the
days in which to hold the clean-up event by extending the residential drop-off area hours
and will provide at least 60 days advance notice of the selected date to the County. The
County will be responsible for all advertising and communication to residents of the dates
for the clean-up days.

7. If words used in this Amendment are expressly defined in the Agreement, then those words
shall have the meaning assigned in the Agreement, unless otherwise specifically stated. Nothing
contained herein shall be deemed to amend or modify the Agreement, except as expressly set forth
herein. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and this Amendment, the
terms of this Amendment shall control.

Signatures on the following page

4
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed as of the date first set
forth above.

ANDERSON COUNTY, TN

By:

Its:

Date:

ANDERSON COUNTY REGIONAL SOLID WASTE BOARD

By:

Its:

Date:

WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC. OF TENNESSEE

By:

Its:

Date:

5
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EXHIBIT A

Annual Adjustments. The parties agree that beginning on July 1, 2024 and annually on each
July 1 thereafter, the Tip Fee will be adjusted by the percentage increase equal to the annual
percentage change in the average Consumer Price Index, US City Average for All Urban
Consumers, Water, Sewer Trash, Not Seasonally Adjusted, (published by the United States
Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index (the “CPI”) over the 12 most recently
published months from March to April compared to the average CPI for the previous 12-
month period. The CPI published on the first Monday prior to the end of the month (or the
first business day thereafter if such Monday is a Federal Holiday) shall be used to determine
the monthly change. The annual percentage change shall be calculated by subtracting the
average CPI value for the previous 12-months from the average CPI value for the most recent
12-month period, the result of which shall be divided by the prior 12-month period average.
An example of the CPI annual increase calculation follows:

January 2020 through December 2020 compared to January 2021 to December 2021

Index 2020 12-Month 2021 12-Month Change Applied Percentag(-:_|
Average Average Change
CPl — Water, 252.46 261.47 9.01 3.6%

Sewer, Trash
(9.01/252.46)

The calculated change shall be carried to three places to the right of the decimal and rounded
to the nearest thousandths. The percentage adjustment will be applied to the then current rates
for services, as adjusted hereunder. In the event the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of
Labor Statistics ceases to publish the CPI, the parties hereto agree to substitute another equally
authoritative measure of change in the purchasing power of the U.S. dollar as may be then
available so as to carry out the intent of this provision.

6
August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda



24-0021 Exhibit B

HOST AGREEMENT

THIS HOST AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Anderson County,
Tennessee ("the County”), the Anderson County Solid Waste Regional Board ("the
Regional Board"), and Waste Management, Inc. of Tennessee (“Waste Management"),

a Tennessee corporation.

RECITATIONS -

WHEREAS, Waste Management operates a Class | sanitary landfill known as the
Chestnut Ridge Sanitary Landfill (‘the Landfill"), located at 240 Fleenor Mill Road,

Heiskell, Tennessee 37754; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County may adopt
provisions necessary to preserve the health of the County, provide for the expenses
thereof, and perform other acts necessary to the full discharge of its duties as the

legislative body of the County government; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners desires to ensure the continued
availability of a sanitary landfill site for the economically and environmentally sound

disposition of County waste; and

WHEREAS, the Landfill is capable of meeting the County’s waste management

needs: and

WHEREAS, the parties recognize and understand the ever-increasing demands

for and desirability of a disposal facility such as the Landfill; and
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WHEREAS, this Host Agreement has been duly authorized and approved by the

Board of County Commissioners and the Regional Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the respective terms, conditions,

and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective for a period of twenty (20) years, beginning

July 1, 2003.

DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall be defined in the following manner throughout this

Agreement:

Access Road. A paved all-weather road located outside the Landfill

property, which terminates at the gate to the Landfill.

Anderson County Generator. Any person that transports Garbage or Refuse

to the Landfill for disposal in a non-commercial vehicle together with any trailer or

attachment and bearing a valid Anderson County license plate.

Closure. The taking of those actions to close a landfill that are necessary to
meet the closure requirements of Tennessee Rule 1200-1-7-.04(8), or such subsequent

regulation that replaces or supersedes such rule.
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Demolition Waste. Non-Hazardous waste resulting from construction,

remodeling, repair and demolition of structures and from road building. Demolition
wastes include but are not limited to bricks, concrete and other masonry materials, soil,

rock and fumber, road spoils, rebar, paving material and the like.

EPA. The United States Environmental Protection Agency, which is the
administrative agency for the United States of America that issues various
environmental permits, including Solid Waste Permits, and oversees the enforcement of

the environmental laws of the United States.

Garbage. Solid Waste that includes animal and vegetable matter from
handling, preparation, cooking and serving foods; but does not include industrial waste

from food-processing operations.

Hauler. Any individual, firm, entity or other person who transports or

otherwise performs hauling services of Solid Waste to the Landfill.

Hazardous Waste. Any waste meeting the classification “Hazardous Waste” as
defined in Tennessee Rule 1200-1-11-.02(1)(c), or other subsequent regulation that
replaces or supersedes such rule, and that is regulated pursuant to Tennessee Rule

1200-1-11-.03 through 1200-1-11-.07.

infectious Waste.- Those wastes which may cause disease or reasonably be

suspected of harboring pathogenic organisms; included are wastes resulting from the
operation of medical clinics, hospitals, and other facilities producing wastes which may
consist of, but are not limited to, diseased human and animal parts, contaminated
bandages, pathological specimens, hypodemmic needles, contaminated clothing, and

surgical gloves.
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Landfill. Chestnut Ridge Landfill, which includes the landfill included within

the legal boundaries of real property, to be operated under the Landfill Permit located in

Anderson County, Tennessee.

Landfill Permit. The solid waste permit issued by TDEC, permit number SNL
011030160, related to the Landfill, any modifications, renewals or amendments of any

of the foregoing.

Leachate. A liquid that has passed through or emerged from Solid Waste and

contains soluble, suspended, or miscible materials removed from such waste.

Performance Security. Security for performance of all or a portion of the

obligations of this Agreement, as the case may be. This security may be provided by
either surety bond, security funds established for the benefit of the party receiving the
security, an irevocable letter of credit in form reasonably acceptable to the party
receiving the security, or other manner acceptable to the party receiving the security.
Such security instruments shall cover claims during the entire term of the Agreement. If
the party providing the security gives a surety bond, the providing party shall be
responsible for giving the party receiving the security satisfactory evidence that all such
security is in full effect throughout the term of the obligations for which the security is
being provided. Attomeys-in-fact who sign a surety bond must file with the bond a
certified and dated copy of their powers of attorney. A security bond may be in fult force
and effective initially for a one (1) year period, but it must be renewed annually
thereafter upon written consent of the surety by issuance of a continuation certificate no

later than sixty (60) days prior to the renewal date. The surety shall give the obligee at
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least sixty (60) days prior notice of the cancellation or non-renewal of this security. No
claim against performance security shall be initiated after the term of this Agreement,
and no suit, action or proceeding with respect to such a claim shall be brought on a
surety bond after the surety bond expires or is terminated. Failure to renew a surety
bond shall be an event of default under this Agreement. For the purposes of this
Agreement, Waste Management has agreed in paragraph Vil hereof to provide

Performance Security during the term of this Agreement.

Post-Closure Care. The taking of those actions after Closure of a landfill or a
landfill property that are necessary to meet the post-closure care requirements of
Tennessee Rule 1200-1-7-.04(8), or such subsequent regulation that replaces or

supersedes such rules.

Process Waste. Solid Waste or other waste which is generated by or

produced by or results from an industrial or commercial operation or activity.

Refuse. All Non-Hazardous Solid Waste originating at residences and
commercial establishments, including industrial, institutional, commercial, municipal and
medical sites, which is not Process Waste, including without limitation, wastes such as
discarded materials from dwelling places, households, apartment houses, stores, office
buildings, restaurants, hotels, and institutions, including Garbage, paper, cardboard,
wood, cans, glass, ashes and boxes, woody materials and cuttings from trees, lawns
and gardens, septic tank pumping and dried digested sludge grit. The term “Refuse” as
used herein does not include Hazardous Waste or Infectious Waste that might be
injurious to personnel engaged in Solid Waste handling, including, but not limited. to

acids, explosives, radioactive materials, toxic industrial waste; nor shall it include any
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materials that are, or in the future may be, prohibited from dumping by the regulations of

TDEC or the State of Tennessee, or by any other public agency, or by operation of law.

Solid Waste. Any Garbage, Refuse, including without limitation recyclable
materials when they become discarded, sludge from a waste treatment plant, waste
supply treatment plant, or air pollution control facility, and other discarded material,
including solid, liquid, semi-solid, or contained gaseous material resulting from
industrial, commercial, and agricultural operations, and from community activities, but
does not include solid or dissolved materials in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved
materials in irrigation retum flows or industrial discharges that are point sources subject
to permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water Poliution Control Act (33 U.Ss.C.
1342) as amended, or source, special nuclear, or by-product material as defined by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2011). This term includes Special
Waste and other materials approved by TDEC for disposal at the Landfill, but this term

expressly excludes Hazardous Waste and Infectious Waste.

Solid Waste Laws. The Tennessee Solid Waste Disposal Act, T.C.A. §68-211-
101, et seq. and the rules promulgated thereunder, both as may be amended from time

to time.

Special Waste. Those wastes that include sludges, bulky wastes, pesticide
wastes, medical wastes, industrial wastes, hazardous wastes that are not subject to
regulations under Tennessee Rules 1200-1-11-03 through 1200-1 -11-.07, liquid
wastes, friable asbestos wastes, combustion wastes, and other solid wastes that are

either difficult or dangerous to manage and require extraordinary management,
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including without limitation any waste (solid or otherwise) that has a density equal to or
greater than eight hundred (800) pounds per cubic yard. 'However, discarded
automotive tires and dead animals shall not be included in this term. For purposes of
this definition, industrial waste means solid wastes produced in, or generated by,

industrial or manufacturing processes, as provided in Tennessee Rule 1200-1 -7-.01.

State Requl encies. The State of Tennessee agencies that have
the responsibility of regulating the operation and maintenance of a sanitary landfill,

including without limitation, TDEC.

TDEC. The Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation, an
agency of the State of Tennessee, designated to oversee the environmental activities of

Tennessee, which, among other duties, regulates the disposal of Solid Waste.

Unacc e Waste. All Solid Waste which is hazardous, infectious or

otherwise excluded by the Landfill Permit.

WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

Warranties and Representations of the County. County hereby warrants, .

represents and covenants that, as of the date of the execution of this Agreement

(a) County is duly authorized and empowered to enter into and fully
' perform this Agreement according to its terms; and

(b)  There is no known decree, judgment, or administrative order of any
kind threatened or in existence enjoining or restraining the County
from taking any action required under this Agreement; and

(©) The County has disclosed to Waste Management, to the best of its

knowledge after reasonable inquiry, its knowledge of all the facts,
information and data necessary and pertinent to the Landfill, and all
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of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement,
and any written statements and exhibits prepared in connection
with this Agreement, are true and correct as of the date of the
execution hereof, to the best of this County’s knowledge.

Wamanties and Representations of Waste Management. Waste

Management hereby warrants, represents and covenants that, as of the date of the

execution of this Agreement:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(¢

CY

All of Waste Management's representations and warranties
contained in this Agreement and any written statements and
exhibits prepared in connection with this Agreement, are true and
correct as of the date of execution hereof; and

Waste Management is a duly authorized corporation organized
under the laws of, and is authorized to do business in, the State of
Tennessee; and

Waste Management has the requisite expertise and financial ability
to fully, completely, and satisfactorily perform its obligation
hereunder in full compliance with applicable law; and

To the best of its knowledge, Waste Management has disclosed to
County its knowledge of all facts, information and data pertinent to
its capacity to perform its duty and obligations under this
Agreement; and

Waste Management has obtained all necessary land use approvals
for the operation of the Landfill under the Landfill permit, pursuant
to applicable law, regulation and the terms of this agreement.

v

DISPOSAL OF COUNTY SOLID WASTE AT THE LANDFILL

During the term of this Agreement, the County shall pay a rate of $16.50 per ton

(“Host Rate”) to dispose of any and alt solid waste for which the County has the disposal

responsibility, that is, waste from residences, convenience centers, and school and

government buildings. This rate does not apply to special waste, and the Landfill does

not accept hazardous waste. The Host Rate shall be adjusted annually to reflect the
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increase or decrease in the Consumer Price Index as caiculated pursuant to Exhibit A
attached hereto and incorporated herein. The County reserves the right to use other
facilities and shall not be obligated to use the Landfill. For purposes of this Agreement,
solid waste for which the County has disposal responsibility is defined to include all
waste collected from residences and convenience centers located in all incorporated
municipalities located within the boundaries of Anderson County, Tennessee and all
waste delivered to the Landfill by an Anderson County Generator (as that term is
defined in section 1l of this Agreement). The tons of waste for which Waste
Management bills the County shall be determined by scale tickets, which shall be

available for inspection by the County upon reasonable notice to Waste Management.
\

HOST SURCHARGE PAYMENTS -

During the term of this Agreement, Waste Management shall pay to the County
an agreed host fee of one dollar ($1.00) per ton on each ton of solid waste (including
special waste) received at the Landfill which was generated outside the County. The
host fee shali be adjusted annually to reflect the increase or decrease in the Consumer
Price Index as calculated pursuant to Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.
If the number of tons received at the Landfill from sources outside the County in a
calendar year exceeds 500,000 tons, Waste Management shall pay to the County an
additional twenty cents ($.20) per ton on each ton in excess of 500,000 tons received

during that calendar year.

These payments by Waste Management to the County shali be known as Host

Surcharge Payments. These payments shall be made quarterly. Each payment shall be
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made on or before the 30th day of the month following the calendar quarter in which the

waste on which the fee is payable is received at the Landfill.

The Host Surcharge Payments shall be in lieu of any and all other taxes, fees,
surcharges, and assessments of whatever nature (with the exception of real and
personal property taxes, employee earned income tax, and other normal business
taxes, fees, and assessments unrelated to the operation of the Landfill as a disposer of
solid waste). The County agrees not to enact any other fee, tax, surcharge, or

assessment upon waste received at the Landfill during the term of this Agreement.

Vi

ACTIONS OF COUNTY OR REGIONAL BOARD
During the term of this Agreement, neither the County nor the Anderson County
Solid Waste Regional Board shall take any action to restrict access to the Landfill by

excluding solid waste generated outside the County.

If the Regional Board or the County refuses to give its approval to an expansion
of the Landfill when requested by Waste Management, or takes action to exclude waste
from outside the County, Waste Management shall have the right to declare this entire
Agreement null and void, or at its option, to terminate the Host Surcharge Payments

provided for in section V of this Agreement.
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Vi
OPERATION OF THE LANDFILL

Waste Management shall operate the Landfill in accordance with all applicable
federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and approvals, including all permits
issued with respect to the Landfill, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In
particular, Waste Management shall use reasonable efforts to ensure compliance with
federal, state, Jocal, and permit provisions govemning litter, dust, noise, and placement

and compaction of waste.

All solid and special waste received at the Landfill shall be disposed of by Waste
Management in compliance with any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws,

rules, and permit requirements, as amended and added during the life of the Landfill.

In no event shall Waste Management knowingly accept for disposal at the
Landfill any hazardous waste, as that term is defined by federal, state, or local laws and
rules, as amended and added during the life of the Landfill. Waste Management will
spot-check random loads of waste to determine whether they contain any unacceptable

waste.

Nothing in this Agreement shall require Waste Management to continue to

operate the Landfill for any particular length of time.

Any change in the operation of the Landfill is subject to all federal, state, and

local permit requirements.

Waste Management agrees not to accept waste at the Landfill at a volume in

excess of three million (3,000,000) tons per calendar year except by prior written
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approval of the County Commission. This cap shall increase by five percent (5%) of the
initial figure (i.e., by 150,000 tons) during each year of the Agreement. If a generator of
waste in the County seeks to dispose of waste in the Landfill, but the tonnage limitation
prevents Waste Management from accepting such waste, Waste Management shall
request from the County an increase in the tonnage limitation in order to accommodate

the generator’'s waste stream.
Vil

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY INSURANCE

Hold Harmless Clause. Waste Management agrees to indemnify and hold

harmless the County, and its officers, agents, and employees from, against, and with
respect to any claims incurred by or asserted against the County, arising due to any
negligence or intentional misconduct of Waste Management or any of its officers,

agents, employees, or subcontractors, arising from or related to the Landfill.

Insurance. Waste Management shall secure and maintain throughout the term
of this Agreement, the following types of insurance with limits as shown to protect the
County, the Contract Administrator and the authorized agents and employees of all the
above, from any damage claims, including exemplary or punitive damages, for damage
such as bodily injury, death or property damage, which may arise from Waste
Management’s operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Waste
Management, a subcontractor of Waste Management, an agent of Waste Management,

or anyone employed by Waste Management directly or indirectly:

(a) Waste Management’'s General Liability Insurance. Waste
Management shall procure and maintain in full force and effect

during the term of this Agreement a Comprehensive Liability
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Insurance Policy in the amount of one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) per occurence and five million dollars
($5,000,000.00) in the aggregate.

(b)  Certificate of Insurance. Waste Management will provide the
County with a copy of Waste Management's Certificates of
Insurance.

The foregoing insurance policies shall be carried with responsible insurance companies
authorized to transact business in the State of Tennessee; shall name the County as an
additional insured; and shall provide that the County shali be given at least thirty (30)
days written notice prior to any modification or termination of said insurance. Prior to
the -commencement of any activity or operation by Waste Management hereunder,
Waste Management shall furnish to the County certificates evidencing insurance

coverage satisfactory to the County as set forth herein above.

Performance Security. Waste Management shall provide at its expense, and
maintain during the entire term of the Agreement and for a period of one (1) year after
the termination of this agreement, Performance Security in the amount of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) payable to the County for the faithful performance of

this Agreement by Waste Management.
IX
ASSIGNMENT

Any assignment of the rights and duties of Waste Management under this
Agreement to an entity other than an affiliated company shall be subject to the prior

written approval of the County, but the County shall not unreasonably withhold such
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approval. If an assignment is approved by the County, this Agreement shall be binding

upon tﬁe assignee(s).
X
DEFAULT

(@) An event of default occurs when Waste Management fails to materially
perform any provision of the Agreement and Waste Management fails to cure its default
within forty-five (45) days after its receipt of written notification by the County; provided,
that if such default cannot be cured within forty (45) days, an event of default does not
occur if Waste Management promptly initiates steps to cure the default and diligently
pursues correcting the default until cure is achieved, which cure must be achieved as
soon as practicable, but in no event more than 180 days after the County’s written

notice of default.

(b) The willful or negligent failure of Waste Management to prevent the
dumping of unpermitted waste at the Landfill and the willful violation by Waste
Management of any federal, state, or local law, rule, resolution, or ordinance applicable
to the Landfill shall be considered an event of default, subject to the opportunity to cure

the default as provided in subsection (a).

(c)  Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the County shall have the right
to terminate the Agreement by sixty (60) days written notice to Waste Management, and
in the alternative, has the right, but not the obligation, to cure said event of default, at

Waste Management's expense.
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(d)  Waste Management shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in the
event of a material breach of this Agreement by the County, which, after forty-five (45)

days following written notice from Waste Management, has not been cured.

()  The rights and remedies of the parties provided in this section shall not be
exclusive, and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under

this Agreement.

XI

FORCE MAJEURE OR IMPOSSIBILITY OF PERFORMANCE
== I LOoIDILITY OF PERFORMANCE

Waste Management's performance hereunder may be suspended and its
obligations hereunder excused in the event and during the period that such
performance is prevented by a cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of
Waste Management unless such Cause or causes are a result of action or nonaction by
Waste Management. Such causes shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, acts
of war, riot, fire, explosion, accident, flood or sabotage; lack of adequate fuel, power or
raw materials; judicial, administrative or govemmental laws, regulations, requirements,
rules, orders or actions; injunctions or restraining orders; the failure of any govermmental
body to issue or grant, or the suspension or revocation or modification of, any license,
permit or other authorization necessary for the construction and/or operation envisioned

by this Agreement: national defense requirements; labor strike, jockout or injunction.
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XH

INSPECTION OF LANDFILL

Waste Management agrees to allow the County’s representatives or designees
access to the Landfill, upon reasonable notice to Waste Management, for the purpose
of determining whether Waste Management is in compliance with this Agreement and

with applicable federal, state, and local statutes, rules, and permit requirements.

Waste Management agrees to keep accurate records of all waste received at the
Landfill and within thirty (30) days of the end of each calendar month during the term of
this Agreement, Waste Management shall provide to County a written report of the tons
of solid waste received at the Landfill during the preceding month, broken down into two
categories (tons generated in Anderson County and tons generated outside Anderson
County). Within sixty (60) days of the end of each calendar year, Waste Management
shall provide to County a similar report of tons received at the Landfil| during the

preceding year.

Upon reasonable notice to Waste Management, the County shall have the right
to examine and audit the tonnage records maintained by Waste Management; provided,
however, the County shall maintain the confidentiality of any competitive information
contained in these records, including but not fimited to the rate charged by Waste

Management to its commercial customers.
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Xl
PAYMENT TO UTILITY BOARD -
—— =N IV UILITY BOARD

As part of the consideration paid to the County by Waste Management under this
Agreement, Waste Management shall make 3 one-time payment of $200,000 to the
Anderson County Utifity Board, to be used by that Board to provide city water to
residents living on Moore'’s Gap Road, East Wolf Valiey Road, and other areas as the

Board believes necessary. This payment shall be made on or before January 31, 2004.

Xiv

COMMUNITY NEEDS FUND -

On or before September 1, 2003, and on or before July 1 of each subsequent
year during the term of this Agreement, Waste Management shall pay to Anderson
County the sum of $1 2,000. This money shall be used by the County to assist nonprofit
organizations and school groups having a particular and unforeseeable financial need.
The recipients of these funds shall be selected by the County, with the approvai of

Waste Management, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

XV

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
2L ESSURS AND ASSIGNS

- The covenants, terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall extend

to and be binding upon the successors and approved assigns of the respective parties.
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Xvi

REQUIRED APPROVALS

Whenever the consent, approval or cooperation of one Party is expressly or
implicitly required or necessary by the terms hereof or to effect successful performance
of the other party, such consent, approval or cooperation shalfl not be unreasonably

withheld, denied or delayed.

Xvi
APPLICABLE LAW

This Agreement shail be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws

of the State of Tennessee.

XVl

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE
If any term, clause or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to
any person or circumstances to any extent, is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable
under present or future laws effective during the term hereof, the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such term, clause or provision to persons or
circumstances other than those to which it is held illegal, invalid or unenforceable, shall

not be affected thereby.
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XX
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the
parties hereto, and it shall not be considered modified, altered, changed or amended in

any respect uniess in writing and signed by the parties hereto.
XX
NOTICES

All notices or other Communications to be given hereunder shall be in writing and

shall be deemed given when mailed by registered or certified United States mail,

addressed as:

Rex Lynch Waste Management, Inc. of Tennessee
Anderson County Executive Chestnut Ridge Landfill

Anderson County Courthouse P. O. Box 139

100 North Main Street Heiskell, TN 37754

Clinton, TN 37716 and

Group General Counsel

Waste Management Southern Area
Office

2859 Paces Ferry Road, Suite 1600

Atlanta, GA 30339

Change of address by either party shall be by notice given to the other in the same

manner as above specified.
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XXI

NO ORAL MODIFICATION

No modification, amendment, supplement to or waiver of this Agreement or any

or its provisions shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writin

g and duly
signed by all parties.

XX
WAIVERS

A failure of any party to exercise any right provide for herein shall not be deemed
to be a waiver of any right hereunder.

xxim
EXHIBITS

Any Exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein are made a part of this

Agreement for aj} purposes. The expression “this Agreement” means the body of this

Agreement and the Exhibits.

XXIv

MULTIPLE COUNTERPARTS
=——"LE LUUNIERPARTS

the parties.
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XXv
JURISDICTION
Each Party hereby consents to the jurisdiction of all state courts sitting in

Tennessee and al| federal courts sitting in Knoxville, Tennessee and agrees that venye

of any legal action brought in connection with this Agreement shall

lie exclusively in
such courts.

xXxvi

BINDING EFFECT
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and

upon their respective Successors, heirs or assigns.

XXvi

TITLES AND SUBTITLES
——=2 ANU SUBTITLES

Titles of sections and subsections are for convenient reference only and shall not

have the effect of modifying, amending or changing the express terms of this
Agreement.

APPROVED:

Acprowd asto Torm,

ANDERSON COUNTY
Gevv:‘y A"Ha\rvs/ =
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APPROVED:

WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC. OF
TENNESSEE
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@NDERSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
TENNESSEE

RFP Response Due:
May 19, 2023
2:30pm

SUBMITTED BY

Waste Management Inc of Tennessee
Chestnut Ridge Landfill

) The Right Way is our Way of Working

CONTACT
Rob Owen

Public Sector Solutions Area Manager
rowen@wm.com | (865) 938-5393

WASTE MANAGBERMEMT
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W'- R A WASTE MANAGEMENT
o oy Chestnut Ridge Landfill

140 Fleenor Mill Rd
Heiskell, TN 37754

May 6, 2023

Anderson County Government
100 North Main Street,

Suite 214 Courthouse

Clinton, Tennessee 37716

RE: Request for Proposals #2319 | Municipal Solid Waste Disposal Services

Dear County:

Waste Management Inc of Tennessee (dba WM) is pleased to have the opportunity to provide the
Anderson County Government with the enclosed proposal for Request for Proposals #2319 Municipal
Solid Waste (MSW) Disposal Services.

Waste Management is the leading provider of comprehensive waste and environmental services in North
America. We are strongly committed to a foundation of financial strength, operating excellence, and
professionalism. We are proud of the work we do, our dedicated staff, and the customers we serve.

We have a proven track record of providing our customers with waste programs, including disposal, that
meet their goals for diversion, service optimization, and cost reduction. We have implemented programs
for more than nearly 20 milion custorners across North America for whom we provide a variety of
environmental solutions.

The offerings we provide to our custorners clearly differentiate our company from our competitors and
demonstrate the value, service, and sustainability solutions we hope to continue to provide to the
Anderson County if awarded this contract.

Waste Management extends our appreciation for aliowing us to provide the enclosed proposal to the
Anderson County We look forward to your feedback, and if you have any questions or need clarification
regarding our proposal or the information provided, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Si

Rob Owen

Public Sector Solutions Area Manager
{865) 938-5393 | rowen@wm.com
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Waste Management is your partner for environmental service and solutions whose
peopte go above and beyond to serve and solve every chalienge the right way.

Date contained in this propesal represents the mostrecently
auhlished information for Wiste Managemaent s wholly cwned
operalicns, uness cthenwise indiated
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Our proposed key personnel have more than 37 years of combined experience in landfill management
and our staff is MO_O and TDEC Certified with Management arid Operator Certificates

Introducing our Anderson County Service Team

At Waste Management, we believe that deveioping a strong relationship with you and your community
is important to our long-term partnership, Our priority is to thoroughty understand our customers’

program goa's and service expectations - we listen first and act second. Through on and cff the street
resaarch, our conversat ons with you, and this RFP process, we have developed substantia insight into

your expectations for your program.
Appreciatng our customers’ unique rneeds allows us 10 custemize services and program offerings. We

will work with you, your community, and internally, as your Waste Management Anderson County
service team, to implement and execute disposal services that align with all of your requirements and

expectations

Your local Anderson County service team brngs a diversity of backgrounds, skillsets, and job
responsibilites However, we ali connect back to a common denominator, you - our customer

Your Waste Managerment Anderson County service team will inc ude:

Operations
Don Gentilicore Area Director Disposal Operations 28
stevenClark  Senior District Manager 19
'_Andy Sweeney ~ District Manager : a2 a7
]or_lnny_Larié_ " District 5pé§tions Manager 33
! James Strouth _ Lahdﬁ_ll O'pei'ations Manager 8 i
"Clay Hansford g én;ironrﬁentai feﬁhnician - . - 1 o
“Everette Moore | Leachate Op_eEétions I\-I-Ia-h-ager 18
lennifer Fieenor i “OE)_e-rations Speciali-st : 7
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it Eantilrare Aves Mireacatenr Dieanacal COYRar I -
an Gentilcore, Area Direcior Disposal Uperations

Mr. Gentilcore has a BS in Environmental Management and over 28 years' experience in the Solid Waste
industry and has managed post collection, long haul trucking and collection operations throughout his
career.

He is currently managing a regional group of Managers, Engineers and Environmental Protection
Specialists for multiple states. He carries profit and loss, as well as capital management responsibility for
twenty (20) active landfills, seven (7) active transfer stations, three (3) Material Recovery Facilities and
one (1) active Construction/Demclition Material Recovery facility that collectively manage over 7 million
tons of material per year. Mr. Gentilicore has performed extensive project planning, scheduling, contract
and subcontractor management duties on numerous large construction and disposal projects

Steven Clark, Sr District Manager - Post Coliections

Mr. Clark is a professional general manager with over 19 years of experience in the Solid Waste Industry
and 10 years of Oil and Gas experience with a primary focus in renewable energy, CNG infrastructure
and design.

He currently oversees program management, performance management, and other organizational culture
efforts for six (6) active landfills, one (1) active transfer station and one (1} active Construction/Demolition
Material Recovery facility. Mr. Clark has an extensive background in development and implementation
programs for optimal equipment utilization, maintenance, labor and material costs, community outreach
and governance.
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Bording Capacity and Companies

Waste Management nas 3 cornprehensive surety program with mu tple surety companies participating,
cfferng iarge amounts of capacity. Due to the number of instruments, we administer, we do not
orovide detailed informanon. However, surety bonds are 'ssued in the range of $1,000 to excess of $25
million, Waste Managemenit has a $100 million aggregate and $50 million single capacity limit and has
never been denied project bonding

Waste Management Credit Ratings

Moody’s Standard & Poor’s | Fitch |

Baa1/P-2/Stable A-/A-2/Stable BBB+/F-2/Negative |
Dun & Bradstreet Rating | D&B Number |
5A2 | 19-467-2085 |

The three largest bonding cormpanies we use all have an AM Best Rating of A4

Waste Management has a comprehensive surety program w th multipie surety companies participating,
offering large amounts of capacity. There are three brokerage firms on the account:

Aon Risk Services Southwest, Inc.
Michael Herrod/contact

Marathon Qil ~ower

5555 San Felipe Sireet, Suite 1500
Houston, Texas 77056

(832) 476-5834

Evergreen Nationat Indemnity Company
Kathie Price/contact

6140 Parkiand B vd., Sute 321
Mayfield, Ohic 44124

(440)995-5100

Smith Manus Agency
Brook Smith/contact

2307 River Road, Suite 200
Louisvil:e, Kentucky 40206
(502) 238 1210
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Same of the surety ccmpanies currently prowviding surety bonds on behalf of Waste Management are
Evergreen Nauonal Indemnity Company
£140 Parklana Bivd., Suite 30C

Mavtield Heights, Ohio 44124

Faderal insurance Company
15 Mountainside Road

Warren, New Jersey 07059

Figelity and Deposit Company of Maryland {Zurich]
1400 American Lane, Tower 1, 159th Floor

Schaumburg, Ilirois 60196-1056

Lexon Insurance Company
2307 River Read, Suite 200
Lousville, Kentucky 4G206

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
175 Berkeley Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02118

(617) 357-9500

ravelers Casualty and Surety Company of Amerca
1 Tower Sauare

Hartford, Connecticut 06183

Western Surety Company (CNA;
101 South Philiips Avenue
P.O. Box 5077 (57117-5077)

Sioux Fals, South Dakota 57104-6703
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Please see the {ollowing pages
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board oi Directors and Stockholders of Waste Management, Inc
QOpinion on Internal Control over Finaacial Reporting

We have audited Wasle Management, Inc.’s inlernal conirol aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2020. based on
criteria established in Intemal Control-Integrated Framewaork issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). fn our opinion, Waste Management, Inc. (the Company)
maintained. in all material respects, eflective internal control over {inancial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on
the COSO criteriu.

As indicated in the accompanying Management's Repart on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. management’s
assessment of and conclusion on the clfectiveness of imernal control over financial reporting did not include the intemal
controls of Advanced Disposal Services, Inc.. which is inciuded n the 2020 conselidated financial statements of the
Company and constituted approximately 10.6% of total consolidated assets, excluding goodwill, as of December 31,2020,
approximately }.3% of total consolidated revenues and less than 1% of consolidated operaling income. for the year then
cended. Our andit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also did not include an evaluation of the
interna! control over financial reporting of Advanced Disposal Services. Inc.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States) (PCADR}. the 2020 consolidated financial statements of the Company, and our report dated February 22, 2021
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company s managemeni 15 responsible for maintaining effective {ntermal cotitral pver Nnancial repartingand for its
dibpesment of the eifectiveness ol intermal conirol over (inancial reporing included in the accompanying Managemen's
Repor on Internal Contro! Guer Financial Reporting. Our respanizibility 1 to 2xpress an opinion o the Company sintemal
contrul over firaneiz! reporting based on our audil. We are 2 public sccounting lirm registered with the PCAOB and arc
required (0 be indépendent with respect o the Company in accordanse with the U S, federal securities Taws and the
apphicanle rules and regufations of the Segyrities and Dxchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordanee with the standards of the PCAGH. Those standards require that we pian and perform
the audit to abtain reasonable assurmnce abolt whither effective inemal control over financial reporting was mainiained
in all matenal respects.

Our audit inctuded obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting. assessing the risk \hal a material
weakness xists, resting and cvaluating the design and operating eftectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis [or our opinion.

Definition and Limitations o7 Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal conirol vver financial reporting Is a pro<ess dasigned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability uf fnuncial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extenal purposes in accordance with
penerally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal contrel over financia! reporiing includes thess poiicies
and procedures that (1) perain 12 the malnenance of records that, in rezsenable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactjors and disposit ons of Ihe assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that lransactions are recorded
as necessary Lo permit preparation of financial statements i accordance with generstly accepred accounting prineiples,
and that receipts and =xpendimres of the company are being imade oriv 1 accordance with authorizations of management
and directars of the company. and (3) provide ressgnable assurance resarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized dcquisiton, use, or disposition of the cumpany’s assets that could have 2 materia] etfect on the firancisl
statements

Because of s inherent limitations. internal control aver financial reperting may net prevent or detect missiatemnents. Also.
arojecrions of any 2valuation of ffectiveness 1 luture periods are subject 1o the risk thet controls may hecome ingdequate
because of ghanges 1n conditions; ar that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate

s BRNS! & YOULNG LLP

Houston. 1exas
Fehruary 22. 2021
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FiRM

To the Board of Directars and Stockholders of Waste Management. inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated batance sheets of Waste Management. Inc. (the Company) as of
Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows, and
changes in equity for each of the three years in the period erded Décember 31, 2020, and the related notes {collectively
rsfarred (o as the “consolidated financial statements™). In our opinion, the conselidated financial statements present fairly.
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31. 2020 and 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020. in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also huve sudited, in iccordance with the standards of the Public Company Avcounting Cversight Board (United
States) (PCAQB), the Company's intemal contral over [inancial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria
established iy Internal Cantrol-Intesrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsaring Organ zatiens of the
Treadway Commission (1013 framework). and our report dated February 22. 2021 sxpressed an ungualified opinion
thereon.

Adoption of AStl No. 2016-02 (Topic 842)

As discussed in Nate 2 1o the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its methad of accounting for leases
in the 2019 financial statements 1o reflect the accounting method change due to the adoption of ASU No 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842, and the relaled amendments.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statemenis are the responsibility of the Company's management, Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion
on the Company's financial stalements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U S. federal securilics laws and
the applicable rules and regulations ot the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perfann the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the {inancial statements are free of material missiatement.
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures (o assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures thal respond 1o those risks, Such
procedures included examining, on 2 test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the Tinancial statements
Qur audits also included evaluating the aceounting principles used and sigaificant esiimales made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We helieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for

our opmicn

Critical Audit Malters

“The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial slatements
that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit commnirtee and that: (1) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are malerial 1o the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex
judgments. The conununication of critical audit marters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial
siatements. taken as a whole. and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separatc
apimions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Landfill Amortization

At December 31, 2020, the Company's landfill assets, net of accumulated amortization,
totaled $7.2 billion and the assuciated amortization expense for 2020 was 3568 million.
As discussed in Note 3 of the financial statements, the Company updates the estimates
used to calculate individual landfill amortization rates at least annually, or more often if
significant facts change. Landfill amortization rates are used in the computarion of fandfill
amortizalion expense.

Auditing landfill amontization rates and reiated amortization expense is compiex dug 10
the highly judgmental nature of assumptions used in estimating Lhe rates. Significant
assumptions used in the calculation of the rates include: estimated future develapment
costs associated with the construction and retirement of the landfill, estimated remaining
pennitted airspace and unpermitted expansion airspace, airspace utilization factors,
projecied annual tonnage intakes. and projected timing of retirement activities.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness
of the Compuny's contrals over determining landfill amortization rates and calculating
amartization expense. Our audit procedures included. among others. testing controls over:
the Company's process for evaluating and updating the significant assumptions used in
the develapment of the landfili amortization rates, management's review of these
significant assumptions, and the mathematical accuracy of the caleulation and recarding
of amortization expense.

To test the landfill asset amortization rates, our audit procedures included, among, others,
assessing methodologies used by the Company and testing the significant assumptions
discussed above. inclusive of the underlying daia used by the Company in its development
of these assumptions. We campared the significant assumptions used by management (o
historical trends and. when available, to comparable size landfllls accepting 2 similar type
of waste. Regarding unpermitied sxpansion alrspace, we evaluated the Company's criteria
for inclusion in remaining airspace. fn addition, we considercc the professional
qualifications and objectivity of management's internal engineers responsible for
developing the assumpiions. We involved EY's enginsering specialists to assist with the
evaluation of the Company’s landfill future development cost and airspace assumplions.
We also tested the completeness and accuracy of the historical data utilized m the
development of the landfilt amortization rates.
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Landyfili — Final Capping, Closure and Post-Closure Casts

At December 31, 2020 the carrying value of the Company’s landfill asset retirement
obligations related o final capping. closure and post-closure cusis totaled $2.2 billion, As
discussed in Mote 3 of the financial statements. the Company updates Lhe estimates used
to measure the assel retirement obligations annuatly, or more oflen if significant facts
change.

Auditing the landfill asset cetirement abligation is complex due w the highly judgmental
nature of the assumptions used in the measurement process. These assumptions nclude:
estimated future costs associated with the capping, closure and post closure aciivities at
zach specific landfill; airspace consumed to date in relation i fotal estimated permitred
airspuce: the projecied annul tonnage intake; and the projected timing of retirement
activities.

We chtained an undersianding, evaluated the design. and tested the operating effectivencss
of the Company's controls over the caleulation of asses retirement obiigations. Our audit
procedures included, amang others, testing the Company’s control¢ over the landfi)lasset
retirement obligation estimation protess and management's review of the significant
assumptions used in che estimation of the liability, including the emount and timing of
retirement Costs.

To test the landfill asset retirenient oblization valuation, we performed audil procedures
that included. among others. assessing methodalogies used by the Company. testing the
completeness of activiies included in the estimate (e.¢. gas monitoring and extraction),
and testinz the significant assumptions discussed above, inclusive of the vnderlying date
used by the Company in its development of these assumptions. We compared the
significan! assumiptions used by management ia historical trends and, when zavailable, to
comparable size fandfills accepting the same type of waste. [n addition, we considereu the
professional qualifications and objectiviry of management's internal engineers respensible
for developing the assumptions. We involved EY and esxternzl enginecring speoeialisis to
assist us with these procedures Specifically. we utilized the EY engineering specialisis (o
evaluate the reasons for significant changes in assumptions from the historical trend, and
1o deraimiing whether the change from the Wistorical trend was appropriate und identified
timely. We utthized the externel engineers (o evaluate the estimates of remaining landfill
airspace, W als tested the compiereness and accuracy of the histarical daw utilized in
preparing the estimate

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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Acquisition of Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. — Valuation of Customer Relationship
and Landfill rights/permits

As described in Note 18 10 the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended
December 31, 2020, the Campany completed the acquisition of Advanced Disposal
Services, Inc. (- Advance Disposal™) for net consideration of $4.1 billion. The ransaction
was accounted for as a business combination.

Auditing the Company s accounting for its acquisition of Advance Dispesal was complex
due to the significant esumation required by management in determining the fair value of
the acquired customer refationships and landfill asseis included within Other imangible
assets and Property and equipment. respectively. in Note 18, both of which dtilize
prospective financial information. The Company valued the customer relanenship assel
using an Income approach: specifically, the multi-period excess earnings model. The
significant assumptions used 1o value customer retationships included, among others, the
attrition rale, revenue growth rate, and discount rare The Company valued the landfill
asseis using an income approach; specifically. a discounted cash flow maodel. The
significant assumptions used 10 value landfill assets inchuded, among others, the forecasted
revenue and revenue growth (including forecasted wasie volumes and ratc per fon)
discount rate. and forecasted capiful expenditires. These assumptians are forward-looking
and could be affected by future economic and market conditions.

We abtained an understanding, evalualed the design, and tested the operating effeciiveness
0¥ the Company's contrals over its accounting for the Advance Disposal acquisition. For
example, we tested controls over the valuation of cusiomer relationships and landiil
assels. including management's review of fhe valuation medels, and underlying data and
assumptions used to develop the estimated fair value of these assets.

To test the estimated fair value of the customer relationship and landfill assets, we
performed audit procedures that included. among others. zvalualing the Company's
<election of the valuaton methodology, evaluating the significant assumptions used o
determine the valuation calculations, and testing the compleleness and acuracy of the
underlying data supporting the significant assernptions. We involved our valuation
specialists 10 assist with evaluating the methodology and significant assumptiens used by
the management to determine the fair value estimates. Additionally, we performied
sensitivity analvses of the identified significant assumptions and compared them, a4
applicable, to current industry and marke! trends. the assumptions Used by the Company
1o value similer assets in other acquisitions, as well as historical results, among other
procedures.

isi ERNST & YOUNG LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.

Houston, Texas
February 22, 2021

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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WASTE MANAGEMENT. TNC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In Millions, Except Share and Par Value Amoun{s)

ASSETS
Caurrent assets;
Cash and cesh equivalents .
Aceaunts receivable. net of AiIo\uancr for dﬁuhm.i accounis of 3 and 528 rl:‘ipc lwc})
Other reccivables, net of allowsnce for doubtful accounts of $7 and 1, respeciively .
Parts anc supplies
Other assets. ... -

TOHAl CHIPRIL ASSEEE . . ovve e e e
Property and squipment, net of accumulated dzprec;amm and amortization of $20,095 .md
$18.657, respectively . - T T .

Goodwifl ....... J R . B . .

()lhenntang!bleas»eh,nd T R R JE P

Restricted trust 8nd £SCAOW 8CCOUMS. . . .. ... oo 0 o oo

Investments in unconsolidated entities .. ..o oo e

OUher sS85 . . .. ccon oo .
R T T £ O

Current liabilities:
AcCoun(s payabie ... ...l e e e .
Accraed Liabilities. . ... ....... e mE W i - B e
Deferred revenues . SRR .
Curvent portior, of long- tenn dcbt e e
Total current liabilities . ... .. ‘ T
Long-term debt, less current portion .
Deferred income taxes .. .. ... .- b - - - -
{_andfill and environmertal remedsal'on hahllmcs .................
Other fiabilittes .. ......... CER - ame . R
Total Labilities .. . i
Comunitments and com-.ngc.n..lcs
Eguity
Wasle Management, tnc. stockholders’ equity:
Cammon stock, $0.01 par value: 1,500.000,009 shares authorized; 630.282.461 shares
issued . LB W e il e .. E P N
Addmcma! pard -in Lapllal LMl S En .
Retained eamings . ... ...... v ammems - B
Accumulated other compn:hmsw: mcome (lcss) .....................
Freasury stock at cost, 207,480,827 and 205, 956, i&ﬁ shares. respect |v’ly RN
Total Waste Managcmcm Ine. stockholders’ eguity R
Noncontrolling interests . R .
Totalegquity . ... oiaee. B E e
Total liabilities and equegy. .. .. ... e

See Notes 10 Consolidated Firarcial Stastements.

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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December 31, .
__ 308 ITE]
$ 5531 % 3.561
2,097 1.949
527 370
124 106
239 _223
3,540 6209
14,148 12,893
8.994 6,532
1.024 52
347 313
426 483
866 792
§ 29345 § 27743
$ 1.12;  § L.D6A
1.342 1,327
539 534
o33 218
3,553 3,144
13.259 13,280
1,806 1407
2222 1.950
1,051 9i2
21 891 20,673
6 6
5,129 5.049
13.159 10.592
39 (8)
(8.881) _ (8.571)
7452 7,068
: 2
_7asé 7070
29345 § 27.743
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WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In Millions, Except per Share Amounts)

Yenr Ended December J),

2020 2019 2018
Operating revenues .. . .. SR . R ST g 15218 § 15455 3 14914
Costs and expenses:
Operaling .. ... .o Bl e em . 9,341 9,496 9.249
Selling, general and administrative. ... ...... SRR, L St 1,728 1.631 1453
Depreciation and amortization . . S P C PN e 1,671 1574 1,477
ReSTUCturing .. ....oovvii oo e e 9 6 4
(Gain) loss from divestitures, asset impairments and unusual nems net 35 42 (58)
12,784 12.749 12,123
Income from operations ...... B iu i o 2,434 2.706 2.78%
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net. . ... . .3 SN o . (425) (411) (374)
Loss on early extinguishment ofdcbt Nel ;. =re SUT il 2 o 623 i (53) (89) —
Equity in net losses of unconsolidated entities. . . (68) (55) (41)
Other,net .., ........ .. .oasligE. 2 i 7 ’ S (50) 2
(541) (601) (413)
[ncome before income taxes. . . . . et e D a8 G 1.895 2,105 2,376
[ncome tax expense. . ... .. ... ..o e mem e o 397 434 453
Consolidated net incame. . . ... s 1,496 1,671 1.923
Less: Net income (loss) a[lr»butable 10 nonconn'ollmg lnlercsts . - | (2)
Net income altributable (0 Waste Management. Inc. . .. .. .. .. ; S 149 § 1670 § 1.925
Basic earnings per common share ... . ... . e ewE T - o $ 354 § 393 §$ 4.49
Diluted earnings per common share. . . ... .. . s . $ 352 % 391§ 4.45
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(fn Millions)
yerr Ended December 31,
2021 3610 2is
Consolidated net income. ....... . ... it e L S 149 § 1671 F 1923
Other comprehensive income (Ioss), net of tax:
Derivative insiruments, net . .. RIS o e e L [§] ] 8
Available-for-sale securilies, net. . ....... .. ... RS S AR I 15 5
Foreign currency translation adjustments. .. ... .......o.oo e 20 55 (115
Post-retirement benefit obligation, met ... ... ..o o0 0 e | e 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), netoftax......... .. ... R, 47 79 (G0}
Comprehensive income. R HRTE { e~ | A 1543 1.750 1,833
Less: Comprehenswe income (Ioss) anrlbulable o noncomrolhng interests. | ]

1543 & 1749 § 1.833

L]

Comprehensive income attributable 1o Waste Management, Inc.

See Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Millions)

Year Faded Dreember 31,

2028 2019 2018
Cash fMlows lrom ope:mtinsc activities:
Consolidated net income . ... .. $ 149 $ 1671 0§ 1923
Adjusiments Lo reconcile LOHSOIIdOled ncl income w0 nel cash pmwdcd h\ upcralmg
activitics:
epreciation and amortization . . I B R T 1671 1.574 1.477
Deferred income tax expense (benetit). .. . R ve aa 163 100 25
Interest aceretion on fandfill liabilitics. . .. ... . . . . 103 98 95
Provision for bad debts. . .. . . J 34 39 54
Equity-hascd compensalion expensce . . P SRR L. 94 86 89
Net gain on disposal ol assels. . . R . L. 9 27 47
(Gain) loss from divestitures, assct ;mpmrmoms and other, nu R Lo . . 43 i3 (58)
Equity in net fosses of unconsoliduted entities, net of dividends . HPP 60 55 41
Loss on early exiinguisnment of'debLnel .. .. . . . ..o oo 33 RS
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net nfc:ngcu ol'an.quml\ons and dlvcsulurei:
Reccivables. AU Cee- wm- AU o (179 (53) (16)
Other current asscls. . ) - omp B3 I el apE 10 (23) (10)
Other assets. . . B . ‘b . 53 10 (14}
Accounts pay ubls und m.n,rucd ]mh:lllm K- 1 L . (37 243 203
Deferred revenves and other liabiliues L. L LA 1174) 27) (186)
Net cash provided by operating aclivilies . .. . e c- . . 3,403 3,874 3570
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired AT X . R (4,085} (5214 (460)
Capital oxpendilures. .. ... ..o o Lo e e L (1.632) {1.818) (1,694}
Proceeds from divestitures of businesses and (KhLT ASSCIS ( net of” ca.xh divested). .. .. 883 49 208
Other. nel . . . . . . Js) (86) (223)
Nct cash used 1 investing uctivities - . . ) . . . . (4.847) (2,376) (2.16%9)
Cash flows from financing activitics:
New borrowings. . .. F 2 . . . 3,790 4,683 159
Debt repayments. ' . A (7,807) (533) {499)
Premiums paid on car]) cxlmgumhmcnl ol debt . . A (30) (R4)
Nct commercial paper borrowings (repayments) . . . K R . 1.80& {1.001) 453
Common steck repurchasc program. ... .. L . .. . . (402) (248} (1.004)
Cash dividends. . . . . . e (927) (876) {802)
Exercise of common sluz,l\ oplmns e 63 67 52
Tax payments associaled with equity-based cnmpemanon lransaumnx L . (34) (33) (2%
Otheronet . ...y . e . : (20) [40))] (38)
Net cash (used 1n) provided h» Imnnmng aclmue\ R .. . {1.559) 1,964 (1.508)
ElTect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents dnd rexlrmed La.sh and Lzu;h
Lqulviﬂcﬂh e R 4 2 3
( Deereuse) incredse in ca-ah ,.ﬁh -th\HILHL\ dnd rr_\l-u.Lcd ash and \.ih"h Lquwu'cﬂl'- . {2.999) 3.464 (110
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash eqiivalenis al heginning ol perjod. . 3.647 183 293
Cush. cush equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of period ... . $ 648 0§ 3647 § 183
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalerls and restricted cash and cash equivalents al
cnd of period:
Cash and cash equivalents. . ... .. Lo - $ s53 § 3561 % 61
Restricted cash and cash equivalents |m.|udcd in nlher currcnl asxcls . 28 15 49
Restricted cash and cash equivalents included in restricted trust and eserow m.u)unl\ L 67 71 73
Caush. cash equivalents and restricted cush and cash equivalents st end ol period $ 648 0§ 5647 8 183

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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24-0021 Exhibit C

WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(In Millions, Except Shares in Thousands)

Wasic Management, Inc. Stockholders' Fquily
Accumulnted
Additional Other

Cash dividends declared of $1.86

per common share
Fquity-based compensanon
transactions. net ol 1ax
Common siock repurchase
progrm. -
Divestilure of nancontrolling
interest
(nther. nex
Balance. December 31,2018
Cuonsolidared net incume
Oiher comprehensive income
(luss), net of tax .

Cash dividends declared of $2 05

per comimon share
Equity -based compensanan
trsisuchions, net,
Common stock repurchase
progrem .
Other. net . .
Ralance, December 31,2019
Adoption of new accounting
standards .
Consolitated net income
QOther comprehensive income
(loss). ner of lax

Cush dividends dectared of 52 1%

per cemmen share .
Equity-based compensation
TrRaXACuONSs. ne
Commuon stock repurchase
program
Other. net .
Balance, December 31, 2020

Cummun Stock Mgig-ln  Retained Comprebensive _ Treasury Stoek  Noncuntrolling
Totel Shares  Amousts Capital  Earsings imcome (haoss) Shares  Amuunis injeresis
§ 6042 GIIHI S S 4933 BAEE S § riweded) S 751818 2
X0 - - ]S (5) -
1,923 — — — 1925 k - — 2
] —— — = 190} - -
(802) — — - {802) = -
151 ol ! 2345 40
{1,008) — — a (114731 (1,008)
(19) — — - — —
) — — — — 7 __
§ 6276 630.282 S 6§ 4993 § 8797 S (87) 1206,209) § (B4340
Lo - — — 1.670 — E - |
79 — — — = ™
(876) — — — (876) = s
164 56 1 = 2585 107
(244) - — — - — aun 244 —
. i _ _ == 5 — —
5 7.070 &3022 S 6 3 S.049 & 10,581 % 18) (205.956) £ {8570 ¢ 2
(23 - 2) - — —
1.496 Ra — 1.496 = — -
47 — - - -~ 47 —
92N — 92
172 80 ! - 2158 9l
(402) — - {3.687) (402)
== - — [R5 4 I
§ 7454 BIulH2 % 6 S 5129 % 1LY S 39 (JUTARLY S (BRRL) B 2

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Treovilt P oage canddl B Chestnut Ridge Landfift

“ f : [ ieall TIE
Chestnut Ridge Landfill is 3 permitted mun’cipal solid 140 Fleenor Mili Rd Heiskell, TN 37754

waste landfill that opened in 1981. The facility 1s permitted Phone: {423} 574-1800

by the Tennessee Depariment of Environment and Hours:
Conservation. The facility currently accepts Municipal Monday-Friday: 5:3¢am to 4:30pm
Solid Waste, Construction and Demolition Debr's, Saturday: 6am - 11am

Sunday: Ciosed
Qbserved Helidays:
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

Municipal and Industrial Sewage Sludge, Contaminated
Soils, and Asbestos, and can accept waste though out
tennessee, Virginig, and North Carolina.

Acceptable waste can be brought via waking floor traders, t ppers, dump trucks. Frameless trucks are
not permitted,

Offloading assistance is not provided. This ocation does not accept nazardous waste.
Chestnut Landfill has an estimated landfi capacity of 84 years of airspace remaining

Upon reward, Waste Management will continue to work with Anderson County to have all necessary
equipment in place to transport refuse to the dispcsal site; and provide all services incidental to
transportation and disposal services in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of this Contract
Az the incumbent, we do understand all the requirements needed and commit to this performance

Iz

quicT

]

M

WM operatas Chestnut Ridge with a variety of neavy eguipment including, bull dozers (2), trash
compactors {1y, motor graders (1}, excavators {2) and articulated durmnp trucks (2). Given the proximity

of WM Eco Safe L7 / Kngsport TN, and IGEC / uchnson City TN, WM utilizes the equipment inventory
across all three operating locations. Addiional equipment can be shifted between sites, and in addition
local equipment companies and contractors offer equipment on an as needed basis.

List size and type of truck scales used and state how often they are calibrated Provide details of the
facility leachate and gas management systems, to inciude data on the total amount of MSW taken in
and processed per year.

Chestnut R'dge has two 120,00C Ib. scale, quarterly casbration completed

Leachate system: Has seven regulatory sumps that exiracts liquid form the cells, pumping 1t to a set of
tanks. Once in the tanks it is then joaded out intc tanker truck headed to the treatrment facility

Gas: 220 wells that extracts methane gas powering five <at engnes which provides powes back to
KUB powering 7,500 homes

Describe the transportation leachate rnanagement system:

Al of our Leschate is hau ed by MBI and Highway Environment to e ther
Morristown or KUB treatment facilities,

Assure the County of the faciiity's ability to hanidle special waste {i e., euthanized dead anirmals:)

@ 15
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WM Chestnut Ridge has provided disposal services for Anderson County for over twenty years and
can accept approved special waste at the site.

Describe measures taken to reduce the amount of debris in the path of the trucks upon entry
and exit, thus reducing damage to truck tires and reducing the amount of debris expefled from
trucks when returning to County facilities.

Chestnut Ridge covers waste daily with soil and uses Rock for truck pads and roads, to ensure that we

are giving our customer a safe and assessable place to dispose waste

Emergency Closure Contingency Pian Describe/include proposer’s ¢ ontingency plan for continued

acreptance of MSW fram the County should the proposer’s site experience an emergency closure.

WM would work with the County to insure additional capacity via load and haul from Chestnut Ridge
or access existing transfer station within the Knoxville MSA.

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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As trusted environmenta: solutions partner for communities throughout Tennessee, we understand our
customers, ther needs, and therr requirements better than any other company. listed beiow are 3
couple names and locations of customers served by Waste Management Inc of Tennessee. The
Anderson County Government has permission to contact these references.

Dickson County — Transportation and Disposal of Class | Salid Waste

Customer
Disposa! Site ~ West Camden Landfill - since 1996

100 Virgil Bellar Drive, Dickson, TN 37055
jlunn@dicksoncountytn.gov

Customer

Contact

Maury County — Transportation and Disposal Class | Solid Waste
Disposal Site ~ Cedar Ridge Landfill - 1895

Doug Giles

Address 1233 Lawson White Drive, Columbia, TN 38401

®
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Hickman County — Transportation and Disposal of Class | Solid Wasle

Customer

Disposal Site -West Camden Landfill - Since 1995

Contact Marty Turbeville
Address 2220 Skyview Drive, Centerville, TN 37033

Email mturbeville@hickmanco.com

Vaste Management - Wno We Are ana Wheat We Do
When most of us think about Waste Management, we cften think of our drivers, our big green trucks,
and our waste and recyciing bins. That is 3 big part of whe we are, but we are much more than that, As
society’s concept of how to most effectively manage waste is evolving, Waste Management
understands this and is ready to help the Anderson County find innovative solutions to reduce your
waste and envronmental imgact

Waste Management s the ieading provider of comprehensive waste management services ir horth
America. Through its subs.diaries, the company provides collection, transfer, recycling and resource
recovery, and disposal services. it is also a leading developer, operator, and cwner of landfill gas-t¢-
energy faciltes in the United States. Our mission is to maximize resource vaiue while minirmizing
environmental impact to ‘mprove economic and environmental sustainability for our stakeholders,
including our municipal partners, residential, and commercial customers

An impaortant part of our strategy is developing new waste solutions that can help our customers
achieve therr goa s, including zero waste. Often that means develcping and implementing customized
service offerings for our diverse group of customers, including municipalities, schools, healthcare
faclit es, commerc a buiidings, construction sites, our Naticnal Account customers, and many more
Because of our diverse customer experience, we know what works, and we make implementing
recycling and waste reduction programs easy for our customers

From reiable residentia: and commercial collection to our impressive recycling centers ta our
environmentaly sound andfilis and transfer stations, we are dedicated 1o providing Anderscn County
excellent customer service and waste solutions that are right for you

RTINS G S TOR i -

e o~ - v . St ey Ty
alzii o PRI ! N

As a whoily-owned, ‘ndirect subsidiary of Waste Management, Inc, Waste Management Inc of
Tennessee does Not report financ & results. All financial reporting occurs through our parent entity. As
a pubiciy traded company, Waste Management is held to the maost stringent regulations for accurate
and tmety fnanca disclosure

® 18
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Revenue in 2020 was $15 22 pillion, and Waste Management has an asset base of $29 35 billion. The
company generates strong and consistent cash flow and has access to an extensive line of credit
Waste Management's financial strength 1s the foundation for

our commitrnent 1 serve Jue customers, perfarm our Full financiai resufls are availabie on
ooligations, and protect the environment in carrying out our cur website at nvestors.wm.com.
broad wasie maragerment services o -
Waste Management has achieved solid investment-grade

credit ratings from three major rating agencies. Most recently, the company has been assigned ratings
of A-/A-2 by Standard & Poor's, BBB+ by Fitch, and Baal by Moody's. The ralings are based on
expectations that management will maintain geod liquidity, pursue a moderate financial policy, and
allocate capital in 2 disciplined manner The credit outlook from each agency for Waste Management is
characterized as stable

Waste Management’s financial strength, as summanzed above, gives Anderson County assurance that
we can and will fulfill our obligations.

» Waste Management is committed and financially able to perform all operations in full
compliance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations and to provide clear
docurmentation of that compliance

« Waste Management offers the most extensive network providing waste marnagement services in
North America, including transportation, disposal, treatment, recovery, remediation, waste
identification, and several other specialty services This network enables us to provide a single
source of responsibility, from transportation through disposal of waste

» Typically, new capital requirements are internally financed by Waste Management using cash
flow from existing operations - freeing our new trucks, carts, containers, and facility investments
from the timelines and terms of third-party credinors

Waste Managerment's financial strength helps us to continually advance services ior all of the customers
we serve, including Anderson County, and we are committed to maintaining that strength.

@ 19
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o L £ o .
C, Certificates of Insuranc

Waste Manggemant s res gold-sramd"m INSUTARCE COverage 1o protecs our pariners 3uing abo
and beyonc, we provide environmental site iatiiity coverage, which covers all active sites that are
owned or operated by A/a Management. 1 offers rird-party iaoiity for Dod Sily injury and property
ddmage and oft-site clear-up coverage, coverage for both sudden ard non-sudden goliution incidents
and transportation coverage including the loading and unicading of the vehicle Anderson County €an
rest 2asy with Waste Maragement as vour service provider Knowing that you are always protected by
bestin-class insurance Copies of our cartificates of insurance are included on the following pages

N
ACORD o aaaad
. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE _— I oo

THE CHNTEECATE B EXDUSD AB A MATTER OF Ol Y AMD TC QTY UPCHM Wl CERTIACATE HMOLDER. el
CENTRCATE DOMY NOT AFTIREATIVELY 04t MEQATIVELY MafRD, EATEND 0N ALTER TME COVERADE ATORDED BY THEL POLCES

0w, mcmAnmmmmmAwmmmmm

5 TR QR P A TVE ATE WOLDER.

P famimer B an i vy AGTETIONUL, BEPURET prontaices o G esshorsed

Immnrm-qmn--—-nu—-ncumu—#-w.-w A alEesmer tas
-mmmwrﬂunm*nmsuﬁ

' $55 BrARPARY mmm
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Stste of Tennessee Solid Wests Mansgement Program
Department of Envirohment 401 Church Rer et
and Conservation Sth Floor L & C Tower
Division of Solid Waste Mansgemant Nashville, Tennesses 37243-1538

$13-832-0180

REGISTRATION AUTHORIZING SOLID WASTE

DISPOSAL ACTIVITIES N
TENNESSEE
Registration Number: 160
Date Issued: November 29, 2000

issued to:  Waste Management of Tennesses, inc.

Activities Authorized: - Constuction, operation, closure and post dosure moniloring and
maintenance of a Class | lenafii

Bymsirgnalmlhumgiﬂnﬂmhumhmmwﬂhmwhﬂmsnfhhm
Soiid Wasie Disposal Act (Tennessee Code Annoisted. Seciion 88-211-101, et s8q.), and
appiicable reguiations developed pursuent fo this lew end in sifect; and in accordanca with the
conditions and other terms ast forth in this registretion document and sttached Registration

Conditions,
ﬁép’?‘?%
sion of Sofid Waste Management

JMA/DEM/mjs PER1
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Registration Number L 0101

PERMIT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

iGE : ., = ) H8 Nia! Dperation Lelaved - thoflcclHy
does not initiaie struction and/or operation within one year of the date of this permit,

the permittee must recertity the application In accordance with Rule 1200-1-7-.02(2)(e).

Duty 1o Comply - The permittes musl comply with ali conditions of this permil, uniezs
otherwise authorized by the Department. Any permit rencomptiance, excepl a3 olherwise
authorized by the Depariment, constitides 8 violglion of the Act and is grounds for

H ot - It shell not be & defense for a permitiea in
an enforcement action that it would have bean necessary o halt or reducs the permittad
aciivity in arder o maintain compilsnce with the conditions of this permit.

Duty tp Mitiasie - In the event of noncomplianca with the pevmit, ihe parmifiee shafl take all
reasonable steps lo minimize relesses to the anvironment, and shali cemy out such
measures as sre reasonsbie to prevent adverse impacis on human heaith or the
anvironmant,

; ' - The permiftes shall at =it timas proparty operste and
mainiain all facilittes and systems of treatment and control (and related 2ppurtenances)
which are instalted or used by the permities 1o achieve compliance with the conditions of
thig permit. Proper operstion and maintenance includes eifective performancs, adequats
lunding, adequate opersicr staffing and Usining, and adequats fsboratory and procass
controls, including appropriate quality aysurance procadures. This provigsion requires the
oparation of back-up or auxifacy faclities or similar systems only when nacessary to
achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit

Eaooll Actions - This permit may be modified, revokad and relssued, or termineied for
cause. The fifing of a request by the permitiee for 2 permit modification, revocstion end
reissuance, or lermination, o a3 notificalion of planned changes or anflicipated
honcompliance, does not stay any sxisling permit condition.

E{Qﬂﬂy_&m—mspcmmdoeanotconveymyptopeﬂyriqhuofanyson,orany
axchisive privilege.

; - The permitiee ghall fumish o the Commissionsr, within a
reasonable time, any relevan! information which the Commissioner may request |
determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking end reissuing, or lerminating this
permit, or ic determine compliance with this permel.  The permittee shall also fumish lo the
Commissioner, upon request, copies required o be kept by lhis permit.

- The permittee shall sllow the Commissioner, or an authorized
representative, to:
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Registration Number ___SNL 01-0160

()} Enter al any reasonable tms the permities’s premises where a regulated fachity or
activity 8 located or conducted, or where records must be kepl under the conditions of

this permit:

{f) Have access 1o end copy, at reasonable limes, any records that must ba kept under
the condiions of this permit;

(W) Inspect at any reasonable tms any faciiles, equipment (inciuding montioring and
control equipment), practices or oparations regulated of rsquired under this permit
(Note: If requested by the permittae at the time or sampiing, the Commissionar shall
spiit with the permitiee any sampies taken.);

(iv) Sempie or monHor at ressonabie tmes, for the purposes of assurng parmit
compiiance or as olherwise suthorized by the Act any subsiances or parameiers at
a&ny location; and

{v) Make phoiographs for the purpose of documenting Hems of compllance or

noncompiiancs sl waste management units, of where sppropriate fo protect legitimate
propristary interests, require the permittes o make such photos for the Cormmissioner.

. Monitoring and Records

() Samples and measurements taken for thas purpose of monloring shall be
representative of tha monitored activity.

() The permittee shall retain records of ail requiread monhoring information. The
pemmittee shell maintain records for &l ground-water monitoring wells and associated
ground-waler surfece sigvations, for the active life of the facliity, and for the post-
closure care period as well. This period may be exiended by requasi of the
Commissioner at any tme.

(i) Records of monitoring information shall include:

() The date, exact placs, and ime of sampling or measurements;

(il) The individuai(s) who performed the sampling or measuraments;

(1) The date(s) analyses were performed:

(IV) The individuai(s) who perfonmed the analyses,

(V) The analyticai techniques or methods used (inciuding equipment used); and

(V1) The results of such analyses.

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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Registration Number L 01-01
Beoorting Requiramants

() The pemmittee shal give nolice to the Commissioner as scon as possible of any
planned physica! alterations or additions to the permitied facility,

(i) Meonitoring resulls shall be feported ai the intervals specified sisewhers in this permi.

(i) The permittee shall report orally within 24 hours from the time the peinittes becomes
aware of the crcumstances of sny relesse, discharge, fire, or expiosion from the

outside the facifity. Such report shall be made lo the Tennessea Emergency
Menagement Agancy, using 24-hour toll-free number 1-800-282-3300,

(v} Where the pemmittes becomes swars that i falled to submil any relevant facls In e
permit application, or submitied Incomrect Information in & parmit application or In any
raport lo the Commissioner, it shall promptly submit such facis or formation.

Pegodic Survey

(0 Within 80 days of his receipt of the written request of the Commissioner to do s0, the
permittes shaif cause 10 be conducted a survey of active and/or closed portions of his
facility in order io determine # operations (8.9.. cut and fill boundseres, grades) ars
baing conducied in eccordance with the approved design and operational plans. The
permittes must report the resulte of such survey lo the Commissioner within 80 days
of his recsipt of the Commissioner's request.

(i) The Commissioner may request such a survey.

{) i he has reason to believe that operations are being conducted in 3 manner that
significantly deviales from the approved plans: sndior

() As a periodic verification (but no more than annually) that operations are being
conducied in accordance with the approved plans.

(i) Any survey performed pursusnt to this part must be performed by a qualified land
sufveyor duly authorized under Tennesses iaw o conduct such aciivities.

Caxation of Permits - This permit shaft be effective for the opersting fife of the facility.
Effect of Permit - The issuence of this parmit doss not suthorize the permittee to injure

persons or property or 0 invade other prvate rghts, or o violate any kical law or
regulations.

: RILBOT), ~evoCRloh and antd Taminatio: -
permit may be transferred, modified, revocaled or reissued, or leminatad B3 set forth in
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Registration Number SNL 01-0160

ndards of Rule Chapter 1200-1-7, Solid
iz shall be considersd condiions of ihis

18,

17. Penailies - Any violation of the conditions or other larms of this registration may subject
ihe regisirant to the penalties se! forth in Tennesses Code Annotsled Section 88-211-114
and 88-211-117.

18. Hazardous VWaste Resiiclion - No hazardous wasle, as ragulsied by the Tennesses
Hazardous Wasle Menagement Act (TCA Section 88-212-101, el g8n.), and the Rules
agopied pursuant to thal A, shall bs accepled ot this faciity.

19. Construclion snd Qperaiion - The permittes shall consiruct and operate the faciity in
accordance with the approved enginaering plans and operations manual which becomes a
condiion of this permil in Attachment |.

20. Fipandal Assurencg - Prior io beginning operation, the permittee must file a Financial
Assurance [nstrumant in sccardance with Rule 1200-1-7-.03(1).

21. Special Wagle - Except as specificefly provided for in the Facllity-Specific Conditions of
this permit, the permities may not accapt for disposal any specisl wasis uniess approved
10 do 80 in writing by this Depertment.

22. Automotdle Bafieries - This facility is specifically prohibited from accepting automobile

hatleries for dispossi.

PER2

Registration Number _SNL 01-0180
VARIANCES AND WAIVERS

The loflowing variances or waivars from standards or requinements in Rule 1200-1-7, Solig
Vaste Processing and Disposal Amendments, ave hereby granied in accordence with Ruls

1200-1-7-.01(5).

Ne veriancss or waivers of normal regulatory requirements have been requesied or
deemed necassary for this facility.
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Registration Number SNL 01-0160
FACIUITY-SPECIFIC PERM(T CONDITIONS
The feliowing conditions of this permit ere eslablished pursuant lo Rule 1200-1-7-.02(4)(b):
1. Il any rock outerops are discovered in néw axcavation areas, such discoveries shail be

reporied to a geoiogist with iha Division of Sclid Waste Management before proceeding
further. The rock shail be sither removed 1o & depih of at least five (5) feet batow the

coilection system components: and -rwio-wsd and zccapted the consiruction aualty
assurance report for construction of the liner and leachate collaction system for that fill
area.

C:pemiis/01-01680 SNL Expansion

28
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Waste Management, Inc. of Tcanessee’s (“WM” or “Contractor™) Exceptions in Response to
Anderson County, Tennessce’s (the “County”) Request for Proposal for Municipal Solid Waste
Disposal Services, RFP #2319 (“RFP")

May 19, 2023

WM’s proposal is conditioned on the following exceptions submitted in response to the County’s RFP:

1. These exceptions are part of WM’s bid proposal package to the RFP and are intended to become part
of the sample contract referenced in Attachment 6 (hereinafter the “Sample Contract”) on pages 24 through
36 of the RFP and/or the final contract that is mutually negotiated between the parties.

2. WM wishes to clarify that as part of its bid proposal to this RFP, WM will no longer provide the
Convenience Center operation to the County that was located at WM's Chestnut Ridge Landfill.

3. WM takes exception to the RFP concerning the County’s anticipation of signing a 20-year contract
with the successful bidder, as set forth in Questions No. 1 and 2 of Addendum #2, Section | (Statement of
[ntent) on page 2 of the RFP and under the heading *“Term™ on page 1 of the Sample Contract. WM will
not agree 1o a 20-year term contract, but instead proposes an initial five-year term that is renewable up to
three (3) 5-year extensions upon mutual consent of both parties for to a total of twenty years.

4. WM can agree to the termination provision set forth in Question No. 3 of Addendum #2 in principle,
However, WM rejects the language in subsection (c) that states “and in the alternative, has the right, but
not the obligation, to cure said event of default, at the vendor’s expense.” WM will not allow any customer
to take corrective actions at its landfill,

5. WM wishes to clarify certain language under the heading “MSW and Special Waste/Tipping Fees” on
page 3 of the RFP concerning the definition of Municipal Solid Waste Material (MSW). WM requires the
definition of MSW shall also exclude Unacceptable Waste (as defined herein).

6. WM takes exception to the language in Section 2 (Scope of Work) on page 4 of the RFP stating the
“proposed disposal site shall have to guarantee the capacity to accept the County’s waste stream for a
period of twenty years.” WM rejects this provision, but is willing to guarantee the disposal site capacity
for the length of a 5-year contract term, as set forth in WM’s exception above concerning the term.

7. WM rejects the language in Section 2 (Scope of Work) on page 4 of the RFP stating the wait times for
the County’s vehicles at WM’s disposal facility shall be thirty minutes or less. WM will make best efforts
to provide safe and efficient access for the County’s vehicles at the disposal facility, but cannot Buarantee
a thirty minute window due to factors outside of WM’s control, such as weather, driver decisions, traffic,
etc.

8. WM wishes to clarify the language in Section 2 (Scope of Work) on page 4 of the REP concerning the
operating hours of the disposal facility on Saturday. WM can agree to maintain operating hours of 6:00
a.m. to 11:00 a.m. on Saturdays at the disposal facility to allow deliveries from commercial vehicles.

9. WM rejects the language in Section 3 (Contract) on page 4 of the RFP that states “In the event of a
discrepancy between the [Sample Contract], the RFP and the submitted proposal, the terms that provides
the greater benefit to the County and/or imposes the greater obligation to the contractor will prevail. By
submitting a proposal, the vendor agrees to all terms and conditions established in this RFP, mncluding its

k contract requirements.” WM will agree to an order of precedence whereby the negotiated final contract

1
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shall control in the event of any conflict between the contract, RFP and WM’s proposal. Moreover, WM
cannot agree to accept all terms and conditions of the RFP and/or the Sample Contract on the basis of these
exceptions set {orth herein.

10. WM rejects all of the language in Section 3 (Contract) on page 5 of the RFP concerning the adjustments
to the contract price based on the Revised Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers South Region,
including the County’s methodology and example calculations, WM requires the right to automatically
increase its rates annually based on the Consumer Price Index for Water, Sewer, and Trash (“CPI") without
any approval from the County during the term of the contract, including any renewal or extension terms.
The CP! adjustment shall apply annually starting on the first anniversary date of the Contract. WM also
objects to any annual price increase caps. The following is a representation of WM’s proposed annual price
escalation provision:

wonual Adjustments. The parties agree that beginning on XXX and on each XXXX thereafter,
the Base Rates will be adjusted by the percentage increase equal to the annual percentage change in
the average Consumer Price Index, US City Average for All Urban Consumers, Water, Sewer
Trash, Not Seasonally Adjusted, (published by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics,
Consumer Price Index (the “CPI”) over the twelve most recently published months compared to
the average CPI for the previous 12-month period. The CPI published on the first Monday prior
to the end of the month (or the first business day thereafter if such Monday is a Federal Holiday)
shall be used to determine the monthly change. The annual percentage change shall be calculated
by subtracting the average CPI value for the previous 12-months from the average CPI value for
the most recent 12-month period, the result of which shall be divided by the prior 12-month
period average. An example of the CPI annual increase calculation follows:

January 2020 through December 2020 compared to January 2020 to December 2021

Index 2020 12-Month 2021 12-Month Change Applied Percentage
Average Average Change
CPl — Water,
Sewer, Trash 252.46 261.47 9.01 3.6%
(9.01/252.46)

The calculated change shall be carried to three places to the right of the decimal and rounded to
the nearest thousandths. The percentage adjustment will be applied to the then current rates for
services, as adjusted hereunder. In the event the U.S, Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor
Statistics ceases to publish the CPI, the parties hereto agree to substitute another equally
authoritative measure of change in the purchasing power of the U.S. dollar as may be then available
50 as to carry out the intent of this provision.

11. WM agrees to defend and indemnify the County against damages, claims, costs, and lawsuits to the
extent arising out of WM’s negligent acts or omissions and willful risconduct or the violation of any
applicable law. WM takes exception to the indemnification language in the last unnumbered paragraph in
Section 3 (Contract) on page 5 of the RFP, under the heading “Release” on page | of the Sample Contract
and in Section 1.29 of the General Terms and Conditions on page 33 of RFP, which are overbroad and
would make WM responsible for potential claims or damages it did not cause. WM reserves the right to
negotiate mutually agreeable indemnification obligations.

12. WM has sufficient insurance to meet the County’s insurance requirements under the heading
“Insurance Requirements” on pages S through 7 of the RFP; however, WM takes exception to certain

2
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Janguage in the subsections on grounds that additional insured status is not allowed on WM’s workers’
compensation and employer’s liability policies. WM also rejects the language under the subsection
“Praperty Coverage” that states “During the Term, the proceeds from any such policies of insurance shall
be used for the repair or replacement of the transfer station, equipment, and/or fixtures.” WM also rejects
all language under the subsection “Copies” because WM does not provide copies of its insurance policies
nor will it be required to modify its policies at the direction of the County Attorney. Furthermore, WM
rejects all language under the subsection “Other Insurance Provisions” concerning the required notice, but
instead wishes to clarify that its policies provide 30-days’ notice of cancellation or expiration but not
changes in coverage, and 10-days’ notice for cancellation due to premium non-payment.

13. WM wishes to clarify certain language in Attachment 4  Vendor Information Sheet concerning the
representation of the Proposer with the submission of WM’s bid proposal. WM requires modifications to
the first sentence in Attachment 4 on page 16 of the RFP 1o stale the Proposer ... hereby certifies full
compliance with the [negotiated] terms and conditions, specifications and special provisions of'the Request
for Proposal Number 2319 ...". Similarly, WM wishes to clarify the last sentence on page 16 of the RFP
concerning the required Proposal Security to state the Proposal Security will be forfeited to the County ™. ..
in case of failure on the part of the successful Proposer to enter into [a negotiated agreement] to do the
work coverage by such proposal ...".

14. Regarding the language in under the heading “Default” on page 1 of the Sample Contract pertaining to
the County’s right to bring suit in the event of default by the Contractor, WM requires the County provide
WM with written notice of the alleged default and to allow WM at least forty-five (45) calendar days to
cure the default before the County proceeds with any suit against the Contractor. This is consistent with
the County’s revised termination provision in Amendment #2.

15. WM’s response to the RFP, including its prices, are made on an “all or nothing” basis and require that
WM be the exclusive provider of the disposal services included in the RFP. WM takes exception to contrary
language in Section 1.10 - Multiple Bids/Awards in the General Terms and Conditions on page 31 of the
RFP allowing the County to award the services to more than one bidder.

16. WM takes exception to language in the General Terms and Conditions on pages 30 through 34 of the
RFP that only applies when a vendor is selling a good or product to the County. Under this RFP, the
selected provider will not be selling or transferring title of any goods or products to the County, thus such
language should not apply and WM requests deletion (e.g., Section 1.9 - Same As Or Equivalent To,
Section 1.17  Delivery, Section 1.23  Schoot Cafeteria Bids, Section 1.34 - Quantities, Section 1.35
Unit Price).

17. WM requires the final contract between the parties to include language that accurately reflects the
scope of services and rights and obligations agreed to by the parties, as well as, necessary definitions,
including but not limited to, the following:

a.  “Acceptable Waste” means Waste that may be legally received and accepted at the Disposal
Facility. Acceptable Waste shall not include any Hazardous Waste as defined in the contract and by
federal, state or local law or regulations, toxic wastes, Special Waste that has not been profiled and pre-
approved in by WM in writing, or any other waste, which is not acceptable under federal, state or local
law, regulations, or permit at the disposal facilities.

b.  “Unacceptable Waste” means any waste or material that (i) the acceptance and handling of
which by Contractor would cause a violation of any permit, condition, legal or regulatory requirement,
3
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(ii) can cause substantial damage to Contractor’s equipment or facilities, (iii) presents a danger to the
health or safety of the public or Contractor’s employees, (iv) is or contains Hazardous Waste, industrial
waste, liquid waste, Special Waste that has not been profiled and pre-approved by Contractor, untreated
medical waste, dead animals weighing ten pounds (10 lbs.) or greater, (V) is or contains solid or
dissolved material in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows, or
industrial discharges subject to regulation by permit, or (vi) results from activities associated with the
exploration, development, or production of oil or gas or geothermal resources, (vii) is or contains
batteries or fuels, (viii) is or contains motor oil or paint, (ix) is or contains televisions, (x) is or contains
batteries, (xi) is or contains florescent light bulbs, (xii) is or contains white goods (household
appliances), (xiii) is or contains treated/de-characterized wastes, (xiv) is or contains any waste tires,
(xivi) is or contains sludge, and/or (xivii) is or contains other solid or liquid waste specifically prohibited
for disposal at the disposal facility by TDEC or any other regulatory agency having jurisdiction over
such landfill, in accordance with applicable law. Title to and liability for Unacceptable Waste shall
remain with the generator all times. Contractor has no obligation to accept, transport, process or dispose
of any Unacceptable Waste,

c A force majeure clause providing that neither party shall be in default for its failure 1o perform
or suspend performance, in whole or in part, due to events or threats of events beyond its reasonable
control, whether or not foreseeable, including, but not limited to, fires, floods, tornadoes, hurricanes,
ice storms, acts of war or terrorism, riots, epidemics, pandemics, imposition of new or modified
domestic or foreign laws, governmental orders, acts of God, and the inability to obtain labor, materials
or equipment due to the foregoing circumstances. The affected party shall be excused from performance
during the occurrence of such events.

d.  Language providing that the disposal of waste, refuse, and debris resulting from storms, floods,
fires, tornados, other acts of God, or uncontrollable circumstances (“*Disaster Event”) is excluded from
this contract. Any such services, if mutually agreed to, will be provided under a separate contract. WM
acknowledges that the County has the right to seek proposals from other providers for the disposal of
waste and debris resulting from a "“Disaster Event.”

€. If the County fails to timely pay WM’s invoices, WM should have the right to assess a late fee
or late charge 10 the extent allowed by law. WM also has, upon providing written notice to the County,
the right to suspend its services if payment is more than 60 days’ past due.

f. WM is entitled to an additional increase in its rates at any time to offset changes in conditions
that WM does not control, but which increase WM’s costs, such as changes in or new governmental
laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or the enforcement thereof and changes in any landfill or disposal
fees, levies or surcharges. WM agrees to give the County thirty (30) days' written notice of such
increase, and to provide documentation substantiating such increase.

18. WM's proposal is conditioned upon the parties’ entry into a mutually acceptable final contract that
incorporates these exceptions. WM requires the final contract language be mutually negotiated and agreed
to by the County and WM. The Sample Contract proposed by the County is missing many of the necessary
provisions for a waste services relationship. As such, WM is submitting with its bid response the attached
draft disposal agreement, which also contains several provisions from the County’s Sample Contract in
hopes to expedite the negotiation process. WM looks forward to working with the County to reach mutually
agreeable contract terms.
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Anderson County Government
Request for Proposals

100 North Main Street, Suite 214
Courthouse
Clinton, Tennessee 37716
(865) 457-6218 Office
(865) 457-6252 Fax

RFP No.: 2319
Date Issued: April 21, 2023

Proposals will be received
until
2:30 p.m. Eastern Time on May 19,
2023

Sealed solicitations are subject to the General Terms and Condilions and any
other data
attached or incorporated by reference. Respenses will be received in the Anderson County Purchasing
( Office until the date and time specified above, and at that time publicly opened and read aloud

ANDERSON COUNTY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO WAIVE ANY
INFORMALITIES
IN OR TO REJECT ANY OR ALL PROPOSALS AND TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL
DEEMED FAVORABLE AND IN THE BEST INTEREST OF ANDERSON COUNTY

BID DESCRIPTION

Request for Municipal Solid Waste Services.
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope/box with the RFP #clearly
| labeled.

Questions are to be emailed to purchasing@andersoncountyin.gov and
kajmeri@andersoncountytn.gov

30
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ANDERSON COUNTY
Request for Proposals #2319
Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Disposal Services

1. Statement of Intent

Anderson County Government, hereinafer "The County". is requesting proposals from responsible
vendors for the safe, efficient, and environmentally sound disposal of Municipal Solid Waste (MSW)
and certain special wastes generated and collected within both the corporate city limits and the
houndaries of the county at a disposal site meeting specified requirement. The County intends to
enter into a twenty-vear contract, starting July 1, 2023, with the successful proposer, dependent
upen annual appropriations.

Vendor Registry will be the official repository of this REFP. All questions must be emailed to
kajmeri@andersoncountytn.goy and purchasing@andersoncountyin.gov. All Q&A documents
and any amendments will be posted on Vendor Registry. Late RFP responses will not be accepted.

Any submission of proposals may be withdrawn up until the date and time for opening of the
proposals. Any submission not so withdrawn shall. upon opening. constitute an irrevocable offer

for a period of 120 days.

2. Scope of Work
The County will collect or have collected MSW and certain special wastes generated and collected
within the municipalities and the boundaries ot Anderson County for disposal at a Class i sanitary

landfill.

The County has three primary sources of MSW to be disposed of under this agreement:

Residential Collection - The municipalities of Oak Ridge, Clinton, Oliver Springs, Norris,

and Rocky Top contract the weekly collection of household trash from approximately
20.000 households. The current contract holder for collection is Waste Connections of

Tennessee.

Private Citizens — Anderson County residents drop off waste at Chestnut Ridge landfill,
disposing of approximately 3,000 tons per year.

{onvenience Centers - The County also contracts with Waste Connections of Tennessee,
collecting approximately 16,000 tons of waste collected at six Convenience Centers, most of
i collected in roll-off containers delivered by roli-off trucks and may have some
incidental materials delivered by truck.

The County makes no guarantees regarding the future volumes or amount of solid waste tons as
part of this disposal solicitation. Should the need arise, County reserves the right to purchase these

services from other sources.
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Below is annual tonnage information for all sources ofMSW over the past three calendar years:

24-0021 Exhibit C

COUNTY WASTE STREAM HISTORY (!N TONS)

MSW from . . Private
Convenience Residential drop-off at
S ) SW
Cenlers: Trucks Landfill Total MS
2019 15833 13050 2869 31852
2020 17350 13358 3202 33911
2021 15638 14584 301¢ 33241
COUNTY | Dead Animal Waste*
2019 2 .
2020 2 |
—
2021 2 |

*NOTE: Approximately 1 ton of the dead animal waste is characterized as roadkiil waste (MSW},

and 1 ton is characterized as euthanized animal waste (Special Waste).

**NOTE: In addition to the quantities show in the table above, Anderson County and its
municipalities currently divert approximately 2,800 tons of recyclable material per vear from both
the curbside recycling programs and the six County Convenience Centers and Recycling Facility.
in addition, 2,100 tons of yard waste collected at residential curbsides are diverted into mulch,
Furthermore, the County is always looking for opportunities to divert waste from the landfill. Future
projects may include more curbside recycling, food waste collection and composting, or other
waste diversion activities.

MSW and Special Waste/Tipping Fecs:

» Municipal Solid Waste Material (M SW }-defined as any and all "solid waste" as defined
by the Tennessee Solid Waste Disposal Act which can be lawfully disposed of in a Class |
landfill. MSW shall not include Special Waste, as defined below. The Tipping Fee shall
be charged on a per ton basis for 4 vehicle disposing of MSW at the disposal site and shall
not apply to disposal of Special Waste.

- Special W aste-delined as euthanized dead animals. This category shall have a tipping fee
separate from MSW tipping fee. The County will apply for a Special Waste disposal

application if needed.

Disposal Site Operation and Physical Reguirements:

Vendor shall have a solid history of Class [, 40 CFR Part 258 Sublitle D of Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) landfill operation and compliance with all applicable local. state, and
federal laws and regulations.
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The proposed disposai site shall have to guarantee the capacity to accept the County’s waste stream for a
period of twenty years.

The site shall be a lined facility, meeting or exceeding all Subtitle D regulations

Wait Times. Ideally, wait times should not exceed more than 30 minutes per trip. Wait times are
calculated from the time vehicles first stop to wait in line to weigh on the scale until the vehicles depart
from the property. County/Contracted vehicle AVL's will be reviewed periodically to ensure an carnest
effort to keep wait times to a minimum

‘The proposed disposal site shall maintain sufficient operating hours to allow a Saturday delivery from each
of the County's Convenience Centers. This will typically include deliveries in the late moming or early
afternoon.

Title to Waste. Contractor shall acquire title to the MSW and acceptable Special Waste upon delivery
and acceptance at the proposer's site. Title to and Jiability for Nonconforming Waste shall remain with
the generator of such waste at all times.

Area near entrance to facility shall be maintained and kept clear of litter, dumping, rocks, debris or hazards
that could cause damage County/Contractor personnel and County/Contractor owned/operated equipment,
Roadways within the facility shall be maintained to minimize damage to tires Contractor shall be
responsible for all damages caused by Contractor negligence,

Disposa!l Site Locaton:
Anderson County will deliver or cause the delivery of all MSW if the proposed disposal facility is within
4 15-mile radius of Anderson County. Contractors proposing a disposal facility greater than

15 miles from Anderson County must also provide a comprehensive transfer and transportation

plan

The proposer must make the site available for inspection by the County or its authorized representative
during normal business hours during the proposal review process, and, if selected, during the course of
the contract,

3. Contract

The County's standard contract template is included as Attachment 6. The contract template shail form
the front of the contract and the contents of the RFP and the vendor's response shall be incorporated as
exhibits. In the event of a discrepancy between the contract, the RFP and the submitted proposal, the
terms that provide the greater benefit to the County and/or impose the greater obligation to the
contractor will prevail. By submitting a proposal, the vendor agrees to all terms and conditions established
in this RFP, including its contract requirements.

Supplementary Contract Conditions
The County may terminate the contract at any time, with or without cause. by providing a 120-day written
notice of termination to the Contractor.

*The Vendor will issue to the County a Performance Bond in the amount of one hundred percent
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(100%) of the annual contract price, based upon the estimated annuat billing, executed by Contractor, with a corporate
surery licensed to transact business in the State of Tennessce and shall be in a form acceptable to the County. This
bond shall be conditioned upon the performance of Contractor of all undertakings. covenants, terms. conditions,
and agreements of this Agreement and upon the prompt payment by Contractor to all persons supplying labor
and materials for this Agreement

Licenses. Before a contract is signed by the City or County, the submitting entity, if selected, must provide
the County Purchasing Pepartment with a copy of its valid business license or with an affidavit explaining why it
is exempt from the business licensure requirements of the city or county in which it is headquartered. 1f a contract
is signed, the contractor's business license shall be kept current throughout the duration of the contract. and the
contractor shall inform the County of changes in its business name or location. The contractor must be a licensed
professional as required by the state of Tennessee, see T.C.A Sections 62-2-101 et. seq., for any services in this

contract requiring such licensure.

The County shall pay to the Contraclor Tipping Fees per ton as detailed on the "Unit Cost of Services Submission
Form" for County Waste Material delivered to and disposed of ini the Sanitary Landfill for the first year of the
Agreement. After June 30, 2024 and cach June 30 thereafter during the remaining years of the term of the Agreement
and any renewal terms thereof, the Contractor may adjust the contract price in accordance with the increase or
decrease. if any, in the cost of living, using as a basis of such adjustment the "Revised Consumer Price Index for
All Urban Consumers — South Region 1982-1984 = 100 - All ltems” ("Index") for the most recent month
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor, excepting that the maximum
annual increase shall not exceed 3.5% The new rate for each vear will be calculated as per the following

example:
CP! for current period (current Annual Index) 1340
- CP} for previous period (prior vear Annuat Index): 129.9
4.1

= Index point change

Index point change (4.1) ~Prior vear Annual Index (1299) = 0.032 x 100 ~ 3.2% index change
3.2% index change x current Tipping Fee New Rate

The increase in the Tipping Fee may occur afler Contractor has given the County written notice of such change and
the Contract Manager approves the calculation. The Host fee paid to the County will follow the same annual CPI

rate structure.

Insurance Requirements. The Contractor shall submit evidence of required insurance on an original certificate of
insurance by fifteen (15) Days following the Contract Date. Failure to submit the required documeni(s) may result

in the County rescinding the award.

The Contractor shall bear ful} responsibility for its work and every part thereof, all materials, tools, equipment.
appliances, and property associated with the Service Agreement and its performance. The Contractar assumes all
risk of and liability for dirzet and indirect damage or injury to the property or person used or employed on. or
in connection with, the work contracted for and of all
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omission, commission. or operation under the Service Agreement

The Contracior agrees to name the County as an additional insured on all policies identified below and shall always
maintain the County as an additional insured throughout the (erm of the agreement. The following insurance shali
be obtained, paid for, and maintained by the Contractor throughout the Term of the Service Agreement:

Comprehensive General Liability
$2.000.000 per occurrence; $2,000,000 products/completed operations; $3.000.000 general aggregate

Exgess General Liabilitv
"Follow form” coverage with limits of $5.000,000, to include automobile liability and general liability

Automebiie Liability
$1,000.000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage Coverage should be

provided as "Symboll, any auto "

Workers' Compensation
Statutory coverage. Emplover's Liability limi
$1,000,000 policy limit.

ts of $1,000,000 for each accident, $1.000.000 disease each employee.

Property Caverage
Coverage is to be a minimum of$] [.000,000 per occurrence, §22.000,000 aggregate covering the transfer station

property (land), equipment, fixtures, and buildings from protection against all perils included within the classification
of fire. extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischiet, flood (in the event same is required by a lender having
a lien on the Premises} special extended perils ("all risk", as such term is used in the insurance industry}
Contractor may carry such insurance under a blanket policy. provided that such policy provides coverage equivalent
10 a separate policy. During the Term, the proceeds from any such policies of insurance shall be used for the repair
or replacement of the transfer station, equipment, and/or fixtures. County will have no obligation ta carry insurance
on any Alterations or on Contractors Trade Fixtures or personal property

Pollution Liability Envitonmentalimpairmen!

Coverage is to be a minimum of 35,000,000 per occurrence, $10.000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall be on a “per
project” basis unless specified otherwise. Policy to cover general environmental pollution  hability, not Tlimited
to sudden accidental discharge andto include long-term environmental impact, applicable to bodily injury
(including death) and property damage including loss of use of property that has nct been physically injured or
destroyed; ¢ lean-up costs; and defense and settlement of all claims in connection with any loss arising from the
Facility. Coverage shall apply to sudden and accidental and non-sudden pollution conditions, including the
discharge, dispersal, release or scape of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids or
pases, wasle materials or other irritants, contaminants or pollutants into or upon land, the atmosphere or any
watercourse or body of water, which results in bodily injury and
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property damage.

[f the policy is a claims made form the retro date is to be the same as or prior to the Service Agreement
offective date All Policies must be maintained for at least 5 years after the completion of the Contract.

The policy shall contain an endorsement  fully waiving any contractual liability exclusion contained in the policy
without limitation or restriction. The policy may not contain a limitation of any kind that would limit any
recovery thereunder to the amount of the Service Agreement or any component thereof. The policy shall not
limit or restrict in any manner coverage for the warranties, guarantees, and performance standards contained in the

Service Agreement.

Deductibles/SIRs
Selfiinsured retentions and deductibles affecting required insurance must be acceptable to the

County Anomey. The Proposer must identify any self-insurance coverage and include:
Names and addresses of any third-party plan administrators

A written reserve policy that outlines reserve targets; and

A listing of the excess coverage, specifying the insurance company, the policy or contract number and
the limits of liability and the retention amount.

Annual reports containing the elements specified above must be submitied 10 the County.

Coverage obtained through insurance pools or risk retention groups must also be acceptable 1 the
County Attorney

Coples
The County Attorney is entitled, upon request and without expense. to receive certified copies of all required
insurance policies and/or endorsements and to make reasonable requests for coverage modifications

Other Insurance Provisigns

The County, its officials, and employees shall be named as an additional insured on the Commercial General
Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance policies. The County shall be named as loss payee on any property
loss insurance policies. These insurance paolicies shall contain the appropriate additional insured endorsement signed

by a Person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

Fach insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended,
voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) Days' prior written notice has been
provided to the County and the County Atlomey

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officials, and employees for losses
arising from the activities under the Service Agreement.

Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause shalt be forwarded to:

Anderson County Law Director
Mr. Jay Yeager

101 South Main Street, Suite 310
Clinton, TN 37716-3624
865-457-6290
JYeager@aclawdirector com
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The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions isa breach of contract by the Contractor that entitles

the County to declare the Service Agreement void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten (10)
Days after receipt of notice of breach from the County.

4. Proposal Requirements
Proposals must be submitted in the fornmat listed in this section. Proposals shall be prepared simply and economically

and provide a straightforward, concise description of the Proposer's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this
RFP. An evaluation team, composed of representatives of the County, will evaluate the proposals. The evaluation

points assigned to each section are indicated in parentheses.

Vendors must submit one original and five hard copy responses and an electronic copy on a flash drive.

1- Experience (15 Points)

Proposals shall demonstraie vendor's site has the capacity to handle Anderson County's waste stream for
the term of the contract (20 years from date of contract). Proposals shall include:

>. Disposal Management Ex perience

Furnish satisfactory evidence to the County that proposer has necessary

disposal management experience by having been continuously engaged in the business of
operating a permitted Class 1 MSW disposal facility for at least the preceding three (3)
years. If proposer is required to provide transportation scrvices, similar evidence is required

for the transportation of MSW

> ent Sdpafachon Docwmentsiion

Provide the comtact names, email sddresses and lefephone sumbers of alieast
three mupicipelor counlhy government customer, ao)including Aaderson

Covnty
Provide a letier of support from the bostcounty il the facitin s aulside

Apderson Covaty

s Dirlpbied Bistars (hachorownd of (he freifon . rnciudige dut go [im iled 10

. Annoel voleme of waste vecepied (10-year history)

2. How the long facility has been in operation

1. Facility's history of ownership since opening

4. Current and proposed hours of operation and the ability of the company to provide
additional service hours during times of need or emergency

5. List of any litigation in past five years
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(‘ 2 -Technical Approach (15 Points)
Proposer must describe the operation of the disposal facility including, but not limited to, the following:

Location of site or facility where MSW will be delivered

Size of facility (site map showing current, future, and closed cells)

List of all applicable state/federal/local permits needed for the operation of the facility
Contractor shall include copies of all permits and note any restrictions therein.

List of all equipment utilized in operations including any leased equipment. Make

and mode! of equipment and approximate age’hours.

List number, types, years with the company, names, and experience of staff including support
services such as consulting engineers. Include resume for key staff including the tandfill
manager

List hours of operation including any holidays facility if closed

List size and type of truck scales used and state how often they are calibrated Provide
details of the facility teachate and gas management systems, 1o include data on the total
amount of MSW taken in and processed per year.

Describe the transportation [cachate management system

Assure the County of the facility's ability to handle special waste (i.e., euthanized dead
animals)

The use of any environmentally sustainable best practices.

Describe measures taken to reduce the amount of debris in the path of the trucks upon
entry and exit, thus reducing damage to truck tires and reducing the amount of debris
expelled from trucks when returning to County facilities.

Emergency Closure Contingency Plan. Describe include proposer's ¢ ontingency plan for
continued acceptance of MSW from the County should the proposer's site experience an
emergency closure.

Additional Services

The proposer may submit a description of any additional services or products not previously
described that may be of benefit to the County including any environmental sustainability
programs and/or plans for the site including but not limited to (i) programs designed to divert
recyclable or re-usable material; (ii) other altermative fuel or sustainability options.

3~ Financial Stability (10 Points)
The proposer must provide adequate information to assure that it possesses the financial resources and
stability to fulfill its obligations for the contract term. This documentation should include, but is not
limited to, the following:
a. Latest financial report
b. Audited financial statements for past three (3) years ¢,
Statements answering the following questions:

Has your organization ever failed to complete any work awarded? If so, where and why?
Has any officer of partner of your organization or person listed in previous sections ever
been convicted of any criminal conduct or been found in violation
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of any state of local statute or regulation? if so, give name of individual and reason
thereof.

« Has your firm, or any officer or partner of your organization, or person listed in previous
sections. ever been barred from bidding on contracts in this or any other state under any
state or federal law? If yes, explain.

d. Provide the company's bond rating
e. Certificate of Insurance (see coverage requirements above)

4 - Cost Proposal (6¢ Points)

The proposer shall provide a unit cost for services provided {cost per ton); lipping fees shall be submitted
for MSW and euthanized dead animals (see Unit Cost of Services Submission Form). Proposer shall
outline an altenate payment method to be used in the event that the facility truck scales are not
operating. Proposer shall include a cost schedule for the entire term of the agreement, based upon the
first year's stated tipping fees and subject to applicable CPI increases each year thereafter for the life of

the contract.

In addition, should the proposer be willing to be considered as a secondary Emergency Limited Use
facility, ONLY to be used should the primary winning proposer's facility be unavailable due to an
emergency, please include pricing for an Emergency Limited Use Facility, (i.e., debris from natural
disasters such as tormadaes, etc.) Note that there is no guarantee of use for this Emergency Limited Use

Facility contract.

3 — additional Reqguired Forms (no paints}

Attachment 2, Non-Collusion Affidavit

Attachment 3, Diversity Business Information Sheet (If applicable}
Attachment 4, Vendor Information Sheet

Attachment 5, Certificate of Liability Form

Attachment 6, Draft Disposal Contract

Attachment 7A-B, Conflict of Interest Forms
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Attachment |
Cost Proposal

Unit Cast Proposal for Services Subnitssion Form

R1P -Mumicipal Sobd Waste (MSWS Disposal Services

Primary Use bachis Caniract Pricmie

LISV S80I on

Sianiopaet Sohd W

tatnanized Dead Anmals S 4800 wn

Emecrgency Limued Use Pacility Pricing:

Municipal Solid Waste (MSW)

S_Eacilits (lae Rawe al ume

S Faeility Gute Rate at nme of use

3] s

buthanized Dead Anmmals:

Vendor Name:  Waste Management Inc, of Tennessee

24-0021 Exhibit C
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Attachment 2
Non-Collusion Affidavit

( AFFIDAVIT re NON-COLLUSION

CITY OF Williamson

STATE OF Tennessee e
Rob OW@[I_ [state name of affiant signing below]. being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

The name of the proposing company or individual is [state name of company]

Waste Management Inc of Tennessee

vine and not collusive or a sham. The Proposer has not
ith any other Proposer or Person, 1o put In a sham
directly or indirectly, sought

The proposal for the solicitation identified above is fen
colluded. conspired. connived or agreed, directly ar indirectly, w
proposal or to refrain from making an offer. The Propaser hus not In any manner.
collusion. or communication or conference, with any Person (6 fix the proposal price of Proposer
fix any overhead, profit or cost element of said proposa! price, or of that of any other
or any other Propaser, or to secure any advantage against
All statements in this affidavit and in the proposal

by an agresement o
or of any other Proposer, or to
Proposer, Or G secure any advantage against the County
the County or any Person mterested in the proposed Agreement.
are true 1o the best of the knowledge of the undersigned.

{ on behalf of myself as a representative of the Proposer, and on behalf of the Proposer’s

& agenlts, subproposers, and employees.

Signature of one of the following:
Proposer, if the Proposer is an individual

Partner, if the Proposer is a partnership;

Officer. |f the Propeser is a corporation. \‘\“.unt-nn”%
A ¥,
SN Pe
_ S staren %
Subscribed and sworn to before me Sy OF O
Z Y TENNESSEE: %
S i NOTARY /| =
this IQ' “—day of "Ll‘_i;‘ .20 23 5—,'{"? PUBL|C§§
%, LT TR &
iy Wy

<y )
,,%4 Mson C7 &
."“_.I“ i .““‘\\\

NOTERY PUBLIU
My Commission Explres
Novembexr 1,

My commission expires

@
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Attachment 3

DIVERSITY BUSINESS INFORMATION

Definitions for Determining Minority, Women And Small-Owned Firms

The guidelines far determining minority, women and small-owned firms are defined as follows:

“MINORITY" means a person who isa citizen or lawful permanent resident of the United States and who is
o Black (a person having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa),

o Hispanic {a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other

Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race),

o Asian American {a person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East,
Southeast

o Asia, the Indian subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands}; of

o American Indian and Alaskan Native (a person having origins in any of the original peoples
of North America)

“MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE" shall mean a minority business:

A continuing, independent, for-profit business whnich performs a commercially useful function, and is at
least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more minority individuals: or, in the case of any publicly
owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock of which isowned and controlled by one or more
minorities. Whose management and daily business operations are centrolled by one or more of minarity
individuals. "Cantrol" as used in the above clause. means exercising the power to make policy decision.
Operate.” gs used |n the above clause means being aclively involvedin the day-to-day management of

the business
"WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE" shall mean women business:

A continuing independent, for-profit business which performs a commerciaily useful function, and which is
at least 51 percent owned and controiled by one or more women, or, in the case of any publicly owned
business, at least 51 percent of the stock of which isowned and controlled by one or more wamen

Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of such individuals.
"Control" as used in the above clause, means exgrcising the power to make policy decision
used in the above clause, means being actively nvolved in the day-to-day management of the business.

"Operate, " as
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Attachment 3

DIVERSITY BUSINESS INFORMATION ANDERSON
COUNTY GOVERNMENT

NOTE: This form Is to be submitted only by those who qualify. Bidders do not have to be a minority business to be
considered.

IMPORTANT]  NOTARY AND COPY OF CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

SECTION 6 - DIVERSITY INFORMATION

VENDQR/CONTRACTOR NAME: _Waste Management inc of Tennessee

Type of Company: (Check One)

{x JCorporation ( } Partnership { } Limited Liability { } SoleProprietor

ts your company 51% Owned or Operated by a Minority Group? YES_ NOX Ifyes, check the

ethnic category and indicate %of ownership:

= American Indian/Alaskan Native %
- African American ____ %

Ll Hispanic __%

L] Asian/Pacific Islander, %

# Other_% {please indicate)

PLEASE NAME THE ENTITY OF CERTIFICATION

PLEASE PROVIDE COPY OF CERTIFICATION LETTER OR CERTIFICATE

|, HEREBY CERTIFY THd WATION 1S TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BESTOF MY KNOWLEDGE

OFFICER OF THECOMPANY Waste Management inc of Tennessee
TITLE:_Public Sector Sulutigns Area Manages

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

STATE OF Tennessee |

COUNTY OF Willlamsonj

PERSONALLY APPEARED_Rob Qwen_, PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME (OR PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE} TO BETHE
PERSON(S)WHOSE NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE/SHE/ THEY EXECUTED THE
SAME IN HIS/HER/THEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS/HER/THEIR SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTITY

UPON BEHALF OF WHICHTHE PERSON (S} ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT

WITHESE MY. D AND OFFICIAL SEAL

TR B g

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY iving
£ \\L\‘-""‘\\'E [Pm"w_}
’ -.f 3 S Ep e
PRINTED FULL NAME OF NOTARY: UL , W S»Q‘\bg.__. : ""'--}6:9/,’4
) SR STATE ¥ 2
My Commission Expires S&0 T oz
MY COMMISION EXPRES: _November 1,2026 - Z ¥ iTENNESSEE! Z
) = % NOTARY § =
2 4" PUBLIC. & §
@ ’1_"/((.:4' Lo -"'D\j‘\".)\\ 43
jf;/ MSDN b \-\\‘\

¥,
SCUTTITI
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Attachment 4

Vendor Information Sheet

TO

The undersigned, as Propaser, by hissher signature, represents that hesshe is authorized to bind the Proposer for the
amouni{s) shown on the accompanying cost and compensation forms and hereby certifies full compliance with the
terms and conditions, specifications and special provisions of the Request for Proposals Number 2319 and hereby
deciares that this proposal is made in good faith without fraud or collusion with any person or persons proposing
on the same Agreement; that Proposer has carefully read and examined the entire document including all Appendices
and understands all the same and that the Proposer or representative has made such personal investigation
as is necessary to determine the character and requirements attending the execution of the proposed services as
described in RFP 2319

The Proposer acknowledges that Proposer has not received or relied upon any representations or warranties of
any nature whatsoever from the County, the County, its agents or employees, as 1o any conditions to be
encountered in accomplishing the work specified in RFP 2319 and that this proposal is based solely upon the
Proposer’s own independent business judgment,

The Proposer recognizes that Proposer will not be entitled to any additional compensation by reason of
conditions being different from those anticipated, or by reason of failing to be fully acquainted with facilities,
design. permits. construction, plans and specifications, and the conditions and the work now in place or on account
of interference by the County activities or by any other activities which affect the proposed work.

The undersigned hereby proposes and agrees that if this proposal is accepted foraward uf ar Agreement, Propeser
will contract with the County to furnish all necessary labor, materials, equipment. machinery. tools, apparatus,
supplies and other means for performing, and do all the work required o perform, the services herein specified
i complete conformity with RFP for the unil prices and for the calendar periods listed in this Proposal.

The undersigned also agrees that if the County shall select the foregoing proposal, Proposer will meet with the
County within such time as the County shall designate to negotiate the final points of the Disposal Agreement and
within thirty (30) Days (Sundays and legal holidays excepted) after receiving notice of such selection. use best
efforts to complete megotiation on outstanding issues, ifany, so as to enter into the form of Agresment attached 10
REP 2319, for performing the services proposed herein, at the prices and for the time stated in this proposal and that
Proposer will furnish the County satisfactory financial security and certificates of insurance for coverage as
stated in RFP 2319.

The undersigned agrees, and attaches hereto, Proposal Security in the amount of$1 0,000 (Certified Check,
Irrevocable, Direct Pay Letter of Credit, or Proposal Bond). to be forfeited to the Solid Waste Management
Division in case of failure on the part of he successful Proposer to enter into the attached form of Agreement 10
do the work covered by such proposal at the pricing and within
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the time as stated after having been selected for negotiations. and or in the case of failure to negotiate in good
faith with the County after being selected for negotiations. The undersigned agrees that in case of failure to
fulfill the obligations under the foregoing proposal and/or failure to furnish financial security as specified, the
County may, at County option, detenmine that the undzrsigned has abandoned the rights und interests in such
Agreement and that the Proposal Security has been forfeited to the Salid Waste Management Division, but
otherwise, the Proposal Security shall be returned to the undersigned upon the execution of the Service Agreement

and the acceptance of the financial security.

The undersigned agrees that if awarded the Disposal Agreement, Proposer will starl work July |,
2023, or on such other date as the County and Proposer shall agree.

In submining this proposal, it is understood that the right is reserved by the County to reject any ot all proposals,
to award the Disposal Agreement for the work proposed by the Praposer to other than the low-price Proposer, to
walve irregularities and/or formalities, and jn general, to make award in any manner deemead by it, in its sole
discretion. to be in the best interest of the Solid Waste Management Division.

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of addenda to RFP 2319 and has indicated the date such addenda were
received below

RFP Addenda Acknowledgement (if applicable):

No. 1 Date Recetved 5/1/2023

No.2 Date Received < /2,523

No .3 Date Received

No. 4 Date Received

No.S Date Received

A General Information

Proposer Name:__Wasie Management Inc of Tennessee

Address: 140 Fleenor Mill Rd. Heiskell, TN 37754
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-( Telephone: (863) 938-5393 Fax:

Contact: Rob Owen

Federal ID Number (TIN): 36-2935128 D ——

Type of organization (corporation, joint venture, partnership, individual): Corporation

If a corporation, list the names of all officers, directors, and shareholders possessing five percent or more of
outstanding stock in the corporation. If a partnership, list the names of all general and limited partners. Attach
additional sheets as necessary.

B. Business Information
|. Describe the nature of your current business

Collection, Recycling, Processing and Disposal.

2. State the length of time you have been in that business under your present name

(_ 55 years

3. With what other lines of business are you directly or indirectly affiliated?

4. Have you ever failed to complete any contract awarded to you?

No

If so, where, and why?

5. Has any officer or partner of your organization ever been an officer or partner of some other organization
that failed to complete a contract?

No

(L ® 46
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If so, state name of individual, other organization, reason therefore, and bonding company:

6 Has any officer or partner of your organization ever failed to complete a contract handled in his or her own

name?

Na

If so. state name of individual, name of owner, reason therefore, and bonding company

7. With what individuals or entitics have you been associated as partner or otherwise during the last seven (7)
years? Attach additional sheels as necessary.

WM is a publicly traded company

you operated been the subject of administrative or judicial action for alleged

8. Has any Disposal Facility that
9 If so, state the details and disposition.  Attach

violation of environmental or public health laws or regulations
additional sheets as necessary

No

members, joint venturers, parent corporation, or subsidiaries been a party to any

9. Have you, your parthers,
jtigation, within the last seven (7)

Jawsuits, including any current investigations,indictments, or pending |
vears? Ifso, list these lawsuirs. Attach additional sheets as necessary

No

tions occurring within the last seven (7) years which have resulted in revocation or

£0. List any and all ac
state or local jurisdiction, recorded by

suspension of any permit or authority to do business in any federal,
Proposer, any officer or director thereof orany afTiliate or related company.

@
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11 List any and all actions occurring in the last seven (7) years that have resulted in the barring from public
bidding recorded by Proposer, any officer or director thereof or any affiliate or related company.

12. List any bankruptcy proceedings in the last seven (7) years recorded by Proposer, any affiliate or related

company

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda
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(

C. Place of Direction and Main Office

Following are the name and location of the primary office of the Proposer and the place of business from which the services
in the Service Agreement will be directed.

Waste Management Inc of Tenngssee/ Chestnut Ridae Landfill

Main Office: Name of Company

140 Fleenor Mill Rd, Heiskell TN 37754
City and State

Place of Business for Direction of Services under the Service Agreement

VWaste Management Inc of Tennessee / Chestnut Ridge Landfill
Name of Company

140 Fleenor Miil Rd. Heiskell TN 37754

City and State

D Ambiguity

In case of ambiguity or lack of clarity in stating prices in the proposal, the County shall have the right to

construe such prices in a manner most advantageous 10 the Solid Waste Management Division or 1o reject the proposal.

Signature

Rob Owen . Publi Solutions Area M r
Name and Title (Typed or Printed)

5/11/2023
Date
i365) 938-5393

Telephone No.

« .

Fax No

rowen@wm.com

Email Address
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Attachment 5
Insurance Requirement Acknowledgment

The bidder awarded this bid or contract will rmaintain, at their expense adequate insurance coverage to protect them
from claims arising under the Worker's Compensation Act, any and all claims for bodily injury and property damage
to the Bidder and to Anderson County Govemment while delivery and service are being done. A certificate of insurance
mst be on file in the Purchasing Depariment before work may begin and must be maintained until work is
completed. The amounts of required coverage and additional required coverage are provided in the Scope
of Work in the RFP. If there are any conflicts between this form and the requirements in the Scope of Wark,
the more stringent requirements will apply

Only the items marked wilth an "X" are applicable to this bid and or contract.

1. Workers Compensation
Ia Employers Liability

Commaerciat GenseralLiability
[g) Cccurrence Farm Oaly
2 [g Include Premises Liability
fq Include Cantractual
fg Include XCU
fal Include Products and Completed Operations
rqlfalfgl include Personal Injury
Include Independent Contractors
Include Vendors Liability
Include Professional or E&O tiability

3% Business

Auto

D Include Garage Liability

D include Garage Keepers Liability

D Copy of Valid Drivers License

D Copy of Current Motor Vehicle Record

D Copy of Current Auto Liability Declarations Page

4 D
Crime
Coverages
5 (d D  Employee Dishonesty
D Employee Dishonesty Bond
Property Coverages
D Builders Risk
D Inland Marine
] Transportatian
6. g Performance Bond Required- A Qne Hundred Percent (100% of the annual contract price) perfarmance

or an irrevocable ietter of credit in favor of Anderson County Government at a federally insured financial institution in
accordance with T C.A. 12-4-201. This MUST be submitted before purchase order issued.

Certificate Holder Shall Be: Anderson County Government, Clinton, Tennessee, and shall show the bid number and
title. Anderson County Government shall be named as an additional insured an all policies except worker's compensation
and auto. Insurance carrier ratings shall have a Best's rating of A-VIt or better, or its equivalent. Cancellation tlause on
cerlificate should strike out "endeavor 10" and include a 30-day notice of cancellation where applicable. Any deviaticns
from

the above requirements must be disclosed to the Anderson Caunty Purchasing Agent. Any liability deductibles or
exclusions must also be disclosed. Exceptions can be granted if applicable

Bidders Statement and Certification

| understand the insurance requirements of these specifications and will comply in full within 21 (tweniy-one}
calendar days if awarded this bid and or contract. | agree to furnish the county with of insurance for the entire
term of the bid and or contract.

\Waste Management Inc of Tennessee

Vendor Name Authorized Signature
Rob Owen gf/’& //ﬁ:‘-\’
/ Date

Bid Representative Name (Please Print}
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Attachment YO XXUXX

6
Sample Contract for Services

This Agreement, between Anderson County, Tennessee, a governmental entity and political
subdivision of the State of Tennessee (hereinafter, “County") and (hereinafter, "Contractor”)
and for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties

agree as follows:

Contractor Services. Coniractor agrees to provide per RFP #2319, Exhibit 1

Standard of Performance. Contractor agrees to perform the services in a manner consistent
with the standard in the industry and to the satisfaction of the County

Purchase Order. A Purchase Order must in place before services are rendered

Contractor Compensation. Contractor shall be paid by County for the Contractor's services within
thirty (30) days of invoicing and completion of the contracted services. The compensation to Contradtor
shall be calcuiated by: RFP #2318, Contractor shali_not receive additional compensation for expenses
including travel, hotel, food, etc.

Term. The term of this agreement shall be one year with four ONE -year renewal options. The
contract shall start on the date of final signature.

Release. Contractor hereby agrees to release, indemnify, and hold County harmiless from and
against any and all claims, lawsuits, or the like associated with County's performance of this agreement, or
as it relates to the past, present. or future financial condgition of the County or the performance of Contractor's
services under this Agreement.

Default. In the event of default by the Contractor hereto, the County may bring suit against the
Contractor to enforce the terms of this Agreement. In such event, the prevaiting party shall be entitled to
recover any remedies available at law and/or equity including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs
associated with the default.

No Oral Modification. No modification, amendment, supplement to or waiver of this Agreement
or any of its provisians shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writing and duly signed by all

the parties.

Waiver. A failure of any party to exercise any right provided for herein, shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any right hereunder.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties as to the
subject matter and may not be modified except in a writing executed by all parties

Severability.  In the event any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement is invalid or
otherwise unenforceable. the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall be unimpaired

Cancellation. In the event any party materially breeches, defaults or fails to perform hereunder
this Agreement may be cancelled by the other party with cause on thirty {30) days written notice to the other
if the event constituting the breach default, or failure is not cured during that time.

Page 1 of 3
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Attacgment XU XXXX

Sample Contract for Services
Termination Anderson County reserves the right to terminate this contract in whole or in part
with thirty (30) days written notification to the contractor. In the event of termination, the County shall not

be liable for any costs other than the cost of services performed and materials delivered and accepted
prior to termination date.

Exhibits. Any Exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein are made a part of this Agreement
for all purposes, The expression “this Agreement” means the body of this Agreement and the Exhibits.

Page 2 of 3
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XX-XAXK

Attachment 6
Sample Contract for Sefvices

Multiple Counterparts: Effectiveness. This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts. each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes and all of which shall be deemed,
collectively, one Agreement  This Agreement shall become effective when executed and delivered by all

the parties.

Jurisdiction. Each party hereby irrevacably consents to the jurisdiction of all state courts sitting in
Tennessee or all federal courts sitiing in Knoxville, Tennessee and agrees that venue for any legal action
brought in connection with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in such courts.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and
upon their respective successors, heirs, or assigns.

Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Tennessee. The Contractor certifies that in performing this contract they will comply with all
applicable provisions of the federal, state, and local laws, reguiations, rules, and orders.

Appropriated Funds. The County's obligation to pay under this Contract is contingent upon funds
appropriated in the current fiscal year's budget as approved by the County Board of Commissioners. Any
contract requiring appropriated funds beyond the current fiscal year may be cancelled without notice in the
event that funding to support the contract are unavailable in the subseguent fiscal year.

Payment Terms. The County's payment terms are net 30.  All invoices shall be addressed to
Anderson County Director of Finance, Room 210, 100 Maorth Main Street, Clinten, TN 377186, and must
include Contractor's name, address and phone number, and clearly list guantities, item description and units
of measure.

Warranty. The Contractor warrants to the County that all goods and services furnished hereunder
shall be free of defects in materials, workmanship, and from defect in design. In addition, Contractor warrants
the goods and services are suitable for and will perfarm in accardance with the purposes for which they were
intended

Insurance Requirement: Vendors awarded bids or contracts are required to maintain, at their
expense adequate insurance coverage to protect them from claims arising under the Worker's
Compensation Act, any and all claims for bodily injury and property damage to the Vendor and to
Anderson County Government while completing delivery and services. A certificate of insurance may be
required before work begins and be maintained until work is completed. Certificate Holder Shall
Be: Anderson County Government, Clinton, Tennessee. Anderson County Government shall be named
as an additional insured on all policies except worker's compensation and auto. Insurance carrier ratings
shall have a Best's rating of A-VI| or better, or its equivalent. Cancellation clause on certificate should
strike out "endeavor to" and include a 30-day notice of cancellation where applicable. Any deviations
from the above requirements must be disclosed to the Anderson County Purchasing Agent. Any liability
deductibles or exclusions must also be disclosed.

Non-discrimination. The Contractor shail comply with the Tennessee Human Rights Act, T. C. A
§4-21-101 et. seq., as amended and any rules and regulations promulgated in accordance therewith.

Equal Employment Opportunity. It shall alsc be an unlawful employment practice for
the Contractor (1) to fail or refuse to hire or to discharge any individual or otherwise to discriminate against
any individual with respect to their compensation, or the terms, conditions, or privileges of their
employment, because of such individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin;
or (2) to limit, segregate, or classify their employees of applicants for employment in any way which
would deprive or tend to deprive any individual of empioyment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect
their status as an employee. because of such individual's race, color, religion, sex. age. handicap
or national origin. Contractor shall comply with The Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U S.C. sec. 2000 et seq.
(2000), as amended.

Page 2 of 3
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Attachment 6 XX-XXXX

Sample Contract for Services

Anti-Boycott of Israel: By signing this contract the Contractor certifies that it is not currently
engaged in and agrees for the duration of this Contract not to engage in, the boycott of Israel.

Notice. Any notice required or provided pursuant to this Agreement shalil be in writing and sent or
delivered to the parties.

Titles and Subtitles. Titles of paragraphs and subparagraphs are for convenient reference only
and shall not have the effect of modifying, amending, or changing the express terms of this Agreement

Assignment.  This Agreement shall be assignable only upon the written consent of the non-
assigning party. Consent to an assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the event of assignment
or succession, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their
successors, assigns, heirs, executors, and/or administrators

Further Documentation. The parties agree for themselves and their successors and assigns to
execute any and all instruments in writing which are or may become necessary or proper to carry out the
purpose and intent of this Agreement.

Vendor/Supplier: Anderson County Government
Administrative Approval.

Signature Date

Robert J Holbrook, Finance Direcior Date
Printed Name Anderson County Department Head
Approval’
Title

Date

Name of Company

Approved as to Form
Address - —_ —

Law Director Date
City, State Zip

Page 3 of 3

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda



24-0021 Exhibit C

Attachment 6 xx_xxxx
Attachmen??wggfﬁc?% ecrgsftq!o%e! Xices

AFFIDAVIT DISCLOSING QWNERSHIP and COMMISSIONS

City OF Etanklin
STATE OF Tennessee

t roctdr g gted v ecdeorwrt o grpred prdoviy Nt LN prdberaed cepresioiEtg
| [please check only onej:

he Fopgove 20f It

[ 1 The Proposer is an individual or sole proprietor and owns the entire (100%) interest in the proposing
business.

[ 1 The Proposer is a corporalion, pannership, |oint veriure, or associalien known as

Waste Management Inc of Tennessee [please stale name of Proposer compeny], and the persons
companies. pariners, or joint venturers who have neld more than 10% of the shares or interest in the proposing
business during the 365 days immediately praceding the submission date of the proposal are as follows fifnone
please so state)

Name Address % of Interest
B. Further, | say that the persons who have receved or are entitled to receive a commission, gratuity, or

other compensation for procuring of assisting in obtaining business related to the bid proposal for which this
affidavit is submitted are as follows [none, please so state):

Name Address Compensation

C. If the ownership of the proposing business should change between the time this or affidavit is made and
the time an award is made or a contract is entered into, then ! promise personally to update the disctosure by
delivering another affidavit to the government.

Signature of ane of the following

Proposer, if the Proposer is an individual
Partner, if the Proposer is a partnershig.

Officer, if the Proposer is a corporation.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this

day of 20

NOTARY PUBLIC
My commission expires

Page 4 of 3
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Attachment 7B
Conflict of Interest Form - B

AFFIDAVIT re CONTINGENT FEES

CITY OF Franklin
) ss

STATE OF _Tennessee _ )
Rob Owen [state name of affiant signing below], being first duly sworn, deposes and says that
1 The name of the Proposer or individual IS [state name of company/

Waste Management inc of Tennessee

2. As a part of the Proposer’s proposal, to the best of my knowledge, the Proposer has not retained any person
or agency on a percentage, commission, or other contingent arrangement to secure this contract.

3. As a part of the Proposer's bid or proposal, to the best of my knowledge, the Proposer has not retained a
person to solicit or secure a contract with the County upon an agresment or understanding for a commission, perceniage
brokerage, or contingent fee, except far retention of bona fide 2mployees or bona fide established cammercial salling
agencies for lhe purpose of securing business

4 | make these statements on behalf of myself as a representative of the Proposer, and on behalf of the
Proposer's officers, representatives. agents, sub-Propasers, and employees.

Signature of one of the following:

Proposer, if the Proposer is an individual, Pariner, if the Proposer is a partnership; Officer.
il the Proposer is a corporation

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _day

of 20

NOTARY PUBLIC
My commission expires
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General Terms and Conditions

BID ENVELOPE SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS:

| Bids are to be received in a sealed envelope/package with the bid number, company name and
opening date cleafly marked. Failure to comply may resultin rejection of the entire bid. Anderson
County will not be responsible for any lost or misdirected mail. Late bids e-mailed bids and faxed
bids will not be considered nor returned. It is the sole responsibility of the bidder to ensure their bid
is delivered to the Purchasing Department.

Please note that Anderson County Government does nct receive a guaranteed delivery time
for express mail and/or packages. PLEASE MAIL ACCORDINGLY.

ANDERSON COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT
100 NORTH MAIN STREET, SUITES 214 AND 218
CLINTON, TN 37716

Email : purchasing@andersoncountytn.gov
Website ©  hitp://andersonin arg/purchasing

(865) 457-6218 Phone
(865) 457-6252 Fax

Bid documents must be completed in ink or typed, signed in ink, and free from
alterations, erasures or mark-throughs.

SECTION 1 -GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.1 ALTERATIONS OR AMENDMENTS. Alterations, amendments, changes, modifications or additions
to this solicitation shall not be binding on Anderson County without prior written approval.

1.2 NO CONTACT POLICY: After vendor receives a copy of this bid, any contactinitiated by any vendor
with any Anderson County representative, other than the Purchasing Department, concerning this
invitation for bid is prohibited and agreements made thereto will not be considered binding on Anderson
County. Any such unauthorized contact may cause the disqualification of the bidder from this procurement
transaction.

1.3QUESTIONS: Pursuantto TCA §12-4-113, questions regarding the specifications or bid procedures
must be received by the Purchasing Agent and/or designer no less than ninety-six (96} hours before
the bid opening date No addenda within less than forty-eight (48) hours of the bid opening date
shall be permitted. Any questions concerning the bid document must be submitted to
purchasing@andersontn.org no less than ninety-six (96) hours before bid opening date.

1.4 BID CLOCK: The bid/time clock in the Anderson County Purchasing office will be the time of record.

1.5 TAXES: Anderson County is not liable for Federal excise or State sales tax. Tax exemption certificates
will be provided upon request.
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1.6 CONFLICT OF INTEREST: If requested by the Purchasing Agent, vendors must complete and
submit a "Conflict of Interest Affidavit Statement” prior to contract award, see T.C.A. 5-14-114 and
T.C A 12-4-

101.

1.7 NON-COLLUSION: Vendors, by submitting a signed bid, certify that the accompanying bid is
not the result of, or affected by, any unlawful act of collusion with any other person or company
engaged in the same line of business or commerce, or any other fraudulent act punishable
under Tennessee or United States law.

1.8 NON-DISCRIMINATION: Contracted vendors will not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, religion, sex, national origin or disability except
where religion, sex, national origin or disability is a bona fide occupational gualification
reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the contractor

1.9 SAME AS OR EQUIVALENT TO: Vendors are to bid as specified herein or propose an
approved equal. Determination of equality is solely Anderson County's responsibility. Any
designated brands are for reference purpose only, not a statement of preference. When an
alternate manufacturer, brand, model ar make is bid, Anderson County will determine if the item
bid meets or exceeds the items as specified. If the bidder does not indicate that an alternate
manufacturer, brand, modei or make is being bid, it is understood that the item({s) bid are the same
manufacturer, brand, mode! or make as requested in the Invitation to Bid. Comparable products of
other manufacturers will be considered if proof of comparability is contained in the bid submission.
It shall be the responsibility of the vendors, including vendors whose product is referenced to furnish
upon request catalog pages, brochures or other data to provide an adequate basis for determining
the quality and functional capabilities of the product offered. Failure to provide this data may be
considered valid justification for rejection of bid

140 MULTIPLE BIDS/AWARDS: Anderson County may consider multiple bid
awards.

111 STATE OF TENNESSEE CONTRACTORS' LICENSE LAW (T.CA. 62-6-119) bl: Bids for
which the total cost of the project is hay-five thousand dollars ($25.000) or more, the outside of the
sealed bid envelope/package containing thebid provides the following information:
the Company Name, the Contractor's license number, license classification, the date of the
license expiration and that part of each license classification applying to the bid. In addition, each
heating ventilation or air conditioning, plumbing and electrical subcontractor’'s license
number. date ofthe license expiration andthatpartofeach classification applying to
the bid if the value of the work is $25,000 or greater, must be notated. If the value of either the
contractor or the subcontractor’s work is less than $25000, the bid envelope/package
containing the bid is to be notated with the phrase "Contractor or Subcontractor's Bid is Less than
$25.000" after each appropriate heading. In the case of joint ventures, each party submitting the
bid must provide this information. If no subcontractors are being used, the outside of the
envelope/package containing the bid must state, "No Subcontractors are being used on this
project.”

112 ACCEPTANCE: Vendors shall hold their price firm and subject to acceptance by Anderson
County for a minimum period of sixty (60) working days from the date of the bid opening, uniess
otherwise indicated in their bid. Any or all bids may be rejected for good cause.

1138 1D AWARDS: Bids will be awarded to the lowestand best bidder, taking into consideration
the qualities of the articles to be supplied, their canfarmity with specifications and their
suitability to the requirements of Anderson County and the delivery terms. Anderson County
also reserves the right to not award this bid.
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1.14 BIDDER'S MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: Bidders must have the resources and capability to
provide the materials and services as described in the solicitation.  Anderson County reserves the
right to request additional information and/or material not specified as a bid requirement from any
bidder to confirm qualifications.

115 DEBARMENT: By submitting a response to this solicitation, bidders are certifying that
bidder is not currently debarred from doing business with any local or state Government or the
Federal Government. Bidders shall provide documentation relating to any and all debarments that
occurred within the last ten years. The County will search the "System for Award Management" for
federally excluded vendors before awarding a bid.

1.46 PROTEST: Any vendor wishing to protest the bid award shall notify in writing the Anderson
County Purchasing Agent and the County Law Director, 101 S. Main Street, Suite 310, Clinton, TN
47718 No protest will be accepted, except those protests made In writing and received within (10) ten
calendar days of the bid award. Protests must be in writing and envelopes/package containing protest
must be clearly marked with bid number and words "BID PROTEST" The Purchasing Agent, In
conjunction with the Purchasing Committee, and with the advice and counsel of the County Law Director,
shall review and make a final decision as to any bid protest. Appeals shall be filed in the Circuit or
Chancery Courts of Anderson County within sixty (60} days of the final decision.

VENDORS PLEASE NOTE: ANDERSON COUNTY WILL NOT STOP THE PURCHASE
PROCESS. THE PURCHASE MAY BE COMPLETED OR THE PROJECT MAY BE RE-BID WHILE
THE PROTEST PROCEDURE IS STILL IN OPERATION. IF A RE-BID IS MADE, THE
PROTESTING VENDOR SHOULD SUBMIT A NEW BID. OTHERWISE, THEY WILL BE
WITHOUT A BID ON THE RE-BID. FURTHER, THE RE-BIDDING WILL NOT END THE APPEALS
PROCESS. IT WILL CONTINUE UNTIL A FINAL DECISION IS REACHED OR THE
COMPLAINANT WITHDRAWS THE APPEAL.

147 DELIVERY: Bid pricing is to include complete supply and delivery to Anderson County,
Tennessee. Vendors are to state the delivery time in the bid. Anderson County requires that vendors
deliver ali products "free on board" to final destination unless indicated otherwise in the bid
requirements

1.48 PROOF OF FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS CAPABILITY: Bidders must, upon the request of
Anderson County, provide satisfactory evidence of their zbility to furnish products or services in
accordance with the terms and conditions of these specifications. Anderson County will make the final
determination as to the bidder's ability.

1.19 VENDOR'S DEFAULT: Anderson County reserves the right, in case of vendor default, to
procure the articles or services from other sources and hold the defauiting vendor responsible for any
excess costs occasioned thereby.

1.20 DUPLICATE COPIES: Vendors are to submit one original and at least one exact copy of their
bids, including brochures, unless additional copies are requested in bid specifications

1.21 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE: Under the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated §50-8-113
enacted by the General Assembly effective 2001, all employers with five (5) or mere employees
who contract with either the state or a local government to provide construction services are required
to submit an affidavit stating that they have a drug free workplace program that complies with Title 50,
Chapter 9, in effect at the time of submission of a bid at least @ the extent required of governmental
entities. The statute imposes other requirements on the contractor and contractors should consult
private Jegal counsel if legal questions arise under this section or any other pravision of this document.
All contractors with five (5) ar more employees that will be providing construction services are to
return the provided written affidavit signed by the principal officer of a covered employer
acknowledging that the contracting entity is in compliance with the Drug Free Workplace laws of State
of Tennessee.
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1.22 COMPETITION INTENDED: Itis the responsibility of the bidder to review the entire Invitation to
Bid document and to notify the Purchasing Department if the Invitation to Bid is formulated in 2 manner
that would unnecessarily restrict competition or if it is ambiguous in what is being requested. The
Purchasing Agent must receive questions regarding the specifications or bid procedures no iess than
ninety-six (96) hours prior to the time set for the bid opening

123 SCHOOL CAFETERIA BIDS: If this bid is for Anderson County School's Cafeteria Food
Service Department, bidders must be in compliance with Section 104(d) of the William F. Goodling
Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act of 1998 which requires school and institutions participating in
the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and School Breakfast Pragram (SBP) to "Buy American”
to the maximum extent practicable.

1.24 TERMINATION: Anderson County reserves the right to terminate contracts in whole or in par
with thirty (30) days written notification to the contractor. In the event of termination, the County shall
not be liable for any costs other than the cost of services performed and materials delivered and
accepted prior to termination date.

1.25 0OSHA SAFETY: The Vendor is responsible for training their employees in Safety and Health
Regulations for the job, assuring compliance with Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health
regulations and any other Regulatory Agency.

1.26 PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE: A standard surety or performance bond or an irrevocabie letter
of credit in favor of Anderson County Government at a federally insured financial institution will be
required to be submitted with bid, if indicated in section four, item six insurance requirement checklist.

1.27 BACKGROUND CHECKS: Contractors shall comply with Public Chapter 587 of 2007, as
codified in Tennessee Code Annotated Section 49-5-413, which requires all contractors to facilitate a
criminal history records check conducted by the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation and the Federal
Bureau of Investigation for each employee prior to permitting the employee to have contact with students
or enter schoot grounds when students are present

1.28 AWARD RESULTS: As soon as practicable after proposal or bid evaluations, Anderson County
shall post the award decision to Vendor Registry at www vendorregistry com. Individual notices are
normally not mailed ore-mailed except to the successful vendor.

129 |NDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS: Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless Anderson County and, its officers, agents and employees from all suits, claims, actions or
damages of any nature brought because of, arising out of, or due to breach of the agreement by Vendor,
its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or employees or due to any negligent act or occurrence or any
omission or commission of Vendor, its subcontractors, suppliers, agents or employees.

1.30 DECLARATVE STATEMENT: Any statement or words (i.e.. must, shall, will, etc.) are declarative
statements and the proposer must comply with the condition. Failure to comply with any such
condition may result in their bid being non-responsive and disqualified.

1.31 WAIVING OF INFORMALITIES: Anderson County reserves the right to waive minor informalities
or technicalities when it is in the best interest of Anderson County

1.32 APPROPRIATION: Funding for multi-year contracts are subject to budget appropriations. In
the event no funds are appropriated by Anderson County for the goods or services in any fiscal
year or insufficient funds exist to purchase the goods or services of a contract, then that contract shall
expire upon the expenditure of previously appropriated funds or the end of the current fiscal year,
whichever occurs first, with no further obligations owed to or by either party.
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1.33 ASSIGNMENT: Vendor shall not assign or sub-contract any agreement, its obligations or rights
hereunder to any party, company, partnership, incorperation or person without the prior written
specific consent of Anderson County.

1.34 QUANTITIES: Anderson County does not guarantee quantities to be purchased off this
bid.

1.35 UNIT PRICE: In case of discrepancy between any unit price and an extended price, the unit
price will be presumed to be correct, subject, however, to correction to the same extent and in the same
manner as any other mistake.

1.36 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS: Whenitis certain that a mistake has been made
in the preparation of the bid, a request will be made to the bidder to confirm the bid. Provisions must be
made so that mistakes can be taken care of and the ambiguity resolved satisfactorily. Bids may be
modified or withdrawn by written notice received in the Purchasing Department prior to the time and
date set for the bid

opening. The changes or withdrawal of the bids shall be in writing and signed by an official of the
company. The envelope containing the modification should clearly state "modification to bid." Either
the entire bid or a particular item may be withdrawn or medified in this manner

137 PRE-BID CONFERENCES: Attendance at Pre-bid Conferences is strongly encouraged. When
deemed necessary a Mandatory Pre-bid Conference will be held. A company representative MUST be
in attendance and sign the Pre-bid sign-in sheet in order to be considered for bid award

1.38 ADDENDUM § T C.A 12-14-113 Anderson County Government reserves the right to amend
this solicitation by addendum Addenda will be posted to the vendor registry up to 48 hours in advance
of the bid/proposals due date and time. [t is the bidder's responsibility to check the website for
addendum. Ifin the County's opinion revisions are of such a magnitude, the deadline for this solicitation
may be extended in an addendum. Addenda may change specifications, reply sheets, and times
and dates for pre-bid meetings as well as due dates/deadlines for questions and bids/propcsals.

139 OWNERSHIP: All bids, once received, become property of Anderson County Government and
will not be returned

140 WEATHER AND COURTHOUSE CLOSINGS: In the event of a situation severe enough to
necessitate the closing of Anderson County Government offices during a planned bid opening, vendors
will receive notification of the new date and time upon re-opening of county government offices. No
bids will be opened until the rescheduled date for bid opening and all bidders/proposers whose
submissions meet the extended deadline will be given equal consideration at that time  Anderson
County shall not be liable for any commercial carrier's decision regarding deliveries during inclement
weather.

141 IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT OF 2014: Pursuant to the Iran Divestment Act of 2014, Tenn Code
Ann § 12-12-106 requires the State of Tennessee Chief Procurement Officer to publish, using
creditable information freely available to the public, a list of persons it determines engage in investment
activities in Iran, as described in § 12-12-105 . Inclusion on this list makes a person ineligible to contract
with Anderson County; if a person ceases its engagement in investment activities in fran, it may be
removed from the list The State of Tennessee list is available here
http //tennessee gov/generalseNices/article/ Public-Information-library

142 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: By responding to this bid the Bidder certifies that it is not
currently engaged in and agrees for the duration of this Agreement not to engage in, the boycott of
israel

ANDERSON COUNTY Request for Proposals #2319
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Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Disposal Services

Questions & Answers/Addendum

“The proposed disposal site shall have to guarantee the capacity to accept the County's was stream
for a period of twenty years.” Qur company does not currently have twenty years of capacity. The
Landfill is however going thru an expansion with TDEC. Can this portion of the RFP be walived
understanding that there is every expectation that the landfill will be expanded, and capacity will be

there?

Answer: Remaining Landfill Capacity (for the purposes of this RFP) may be demonsirated by 1}
verified capacity currently permitted by TDEC, or 2) verified capacity currently permitted by TDEC
plus capacity included in permit applications for expansion pending before TDEC. Failure of the
facility to obtain TDEC permits in this case shall be considered a default under the Service

Agreement

What is Anderson County, TN currently paying for dispesal inclusive of fees at the current disposal
facility?

Answer: The current tipping fee is $25.08/per ton plus a $1.25/ton State inspection fee

Total - $26.33/on.
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ANDERSON COUNTY Request for Proposals #2319
Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Disposal Services
Questions & Answers/Addendum #2

. Why is Anderson County wanting guaranteed capacity for the County's waste stream for a period of
twenty years when Section 3 references the County's standard contract and attachment 6 says Term.
"The term of this agreement shall be on year with four one-year renewal options?"

Answer: It is anticipated this will be a 20-year contract. The reference in Attachment
B, the standard contract template dees not apply.

. Term. "The term of this agreement shall be one year with four one-year renewal options.” The
questions is, Which party is responsible of the renewal options? When is notice given positive or
negative for the renewal options?

Answer: Please see the answer to question 1.

In the RFP under Section 3 Contract. there is a Supplementary Contract Conditions "The County may
terminate the contract at any time, with or without cause, by providing 2 120-day written notice of
termination to the Contractor. In the Sample Contract for Services, Termination. Anderson County
reserves the right to terminate this contract in shole or in part with thirty (30) days written notification to
the contractor. I the event of termination, the County shall not be liable for any costs other than the
cost of service performed and matsnials delivered and accepted prior to termination date. The Term
period in the Sample Contract for Services means nothing if the Termination period is 30 days written
notice to the contractor, correct?

Answer: The existing termination language is hereby replaced with the following: (a) An event of
default occurs when the vendor fails to materially perform any

provision of the contract and the vendor fails to cure its default within forty-five (45) days after its
receipt of written notification by the County; provided, that if such default cannot

be cured within forty (45} days, an event of default does not occur if the vendor promptly

initiates steps to cure the default and diligently pursues correcting the default until cure is achieved,
which cure must be achieved as soon as practicable, but in no event more

than 180 days after the County's written notice of default.

(b) The wiliful or negligent failure of the vendor to prevent the dumping of unpermitted waste at
the Landfill and the wiliful violation by the vendor of any federal, state, or local law, rule, resolution, or
ordinance applicable to the Landfill shall be considered an event of default, subject to the opportunity
to cure the default as provided in subsection (a).

{c) Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the County shall have the right to terminate
the Agreement by sixty (60) days written notice to the vendor, and in the alternative, has the right,
but not the obligation, to cure said event of default, at the vendor's expense.

(d) The vendar shall have the right to terminate the contract in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement by the Coeunty, which, after forty-five (45) days following written notice from the vendor, has
not been cured.

( e) The rights and remedies of the parties provided in this section shall not be exclusive, and are
in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under
the contract.
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DISPOSAL AGREEMENT

THIS DISPOSAL AGREEMENT made this 1st day of July 2023, (the "“Agreement”) by and
between Waste Management, Inc. of Tennessee (“WM") and Anderson County, Tennessee (the
“County"), acting through its duly authorized representatives.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, WM is the owner and operator of a Class 1, nonhazardous solid waste landfill
known as the Chestnut Ridge Landfill, located at 140 Fleenor Mill Road, Heiskel, TN 37754, which is
permitted to receive nonhazardous solid waste;

WHEREAS, the County seeks to deliver nonhazardous solid waste for disposal of such solid
waste at the Disposal Facility;

WHEREAS, WM has agreed to provide such disposal services to the County under the terms
set forth in this Agreement; and

NOW THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective covenants herein
contained, the parties have agreed as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS - As used herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) Disposal Facility — as used herein means the landfill known as the Chestnut Ridge Landfill,
located at 140 Fleenor Mill Road, Heiskel, TN 37754, which is utilized, owned, and/or operated
by WM and permitted to receive Solid Waste by the applicable federal, state, and/or local
agency.

(b) Sclid Waste or Waste— shall mean all non-hazardous Garbage and/or Rubbish, that is
collected and/or transported by the County or its autharized subcontractors and Customers
that can legally be received at the Disposal Facility. The term "Solid Waste" or “Waste”
specificaily excludes Unacceptable Waste.

{c) Acceptable Waste —~Waste that may be legally received and accepted at the Disposal Facility.
Acceptable Waste shall not include any Hazardous Waste as defined below and by Federal,
State or local law or regulations, toxic wastes, Special Waste that has not been profiled and
pre-approved in by WM in writing, or any other waste, which is not acceptable under Federal,
State or local law, regulations, or permit at the Disposal Facility.

(d) Customer — The owner or tenant of a residential dwelling within the service area of the County
which is occupied by a person or group of persons comprising not more than two families.

(e) Garbage shall mean Waste consisting of putrescible or animal and vegetable waste materials
resulting from the handling, preparation, cooking, and consumption of food, including waste
materials from markets, storage facilites, handling and sale of produce and other food
products, and all dead animals of less than ten pounds (10 Ibs) in weight, except thase
slaughtered for human consumption.

(f) Hazardous Waste — any chemical, compound, mixture, material, substance or article which is
designated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency or appropriate agency of
the federal or state government to be hazardous, as that term is defined by or pursuant to
Federal, State or local law or regulations, and any toxic, infectious, radioactive, highly
flammable, explosive waste or substance, as such terms are defined by Federal, State or lacal
law or regulations.
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Medical Waste - shall mean Waste generated by health care related facilities and associated
with health care activities, not including Garbage or Rubbish generated from offices, kitchens,
or other non-health-care activities. The term includes Special Waste from health care-related
facilities which is comprised of animal waste, bulk blood and blood products, microbiclogical
waste, pathological waste, and sharps as those terms are defined in Tennessee's solid waste
regulations, Rule Chapter 0400-11-01 (relating to Definiticns).

Rubbish shall mean nonputrescible Solid Waste (excluding ashes}, consisting of both
combustible and noncombustible waste materials. Combustible rubbish includes paper, rags,
cartons, wood, excelsior, furniture, rubber, plastics or similar materials; noncombustible
rubbish includes glass, crockery, tin cans, aluminum cans, metal furniture, and similar
materials that will not burn at ordinary incinerator temperatures (1,600 degrees Fahrenheit to
1,800 degrees Fahrenheit).

Special Waste — waste that requires special handling in accordance with any applicable
federal, state or local laws or regulations, including but not limited to, industrial process wastes,
asbestos containing material, petroleum contaminated soils, incinerator ash, and other
materials. Special Waste must be profiled and pre-approved in writing by WM before it can be
delivered to the Disposal Facility.

Unacceptable Waste — any waste or material that (i) the acceptance and handling of which by
WM would cause a violation of any permit, condition, iegal or regulatory requirement, (i) can
cause substantial damage to WM's equipment or facilities, (iii) presents a danger to the health
or safety of the public or WM's employees, {iv} is or contains Hazardous Waste, industrial
waste, liquid waste, Special Waste that has not been profiled and pre-approved by WM,
untreated medical waste, dead animals weighing ten pounds (10 Ibs.) or greater, (v) is or
contains solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved material in
irrigation return flows, or industrial discharges subject to regulation by permit, or (vi} results
from activities associated with the exploration, development, or production of oil or gas or
geothermal resources, (vii) is or contains batteries or fuels, (viii} is or contains motor oil or
paint, (ix) is or contains televisions, (x) is or contains batteries, (xi) is or contains florescent
light bulbs, (xii) is or contains white goods (household appliances), (xiii) is or contains
treated/de-characterized wastes, (xiv) is or contains any waste tires, (xivi) is ar contains
sludge, and/or (xivii) is or contains other solid or liquid waste specifically prohibited for disposal
at the disposal facility by TDEC or any other regulatory agency having jurisdiction over such
fandfill, in accardance with applicable law. Title to and liability for Unacceptable Waste shall
remain with the generator all times. WM has no obligation to accept, transport, process or
dispose of any Unacceptable Waste.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICE

Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the County agrees that it shall exclusively deliver
all Solid Waste to the Disposal Facility that is collected and/or transported by or for the County
within the corporate limits of Anderson County, Tennessee. WM agrees that it will accept all
Acceptable Waste at the Disposal Facility under the terms of this Agreement. The Customer
agrees that any waste delivered to WM hereunder will not contain any Unacceptable Waste.
This Agreement does not obligate the County to deliver a certain tonnage of Acceptable Waste
to the Dispasal Facility nor does it obligate WM to accept a required tonnage amount of
Acceptable Waste from the County.

Furthermore, the disposal of Waste, brush, yard waste and debris resulting from storms,
floods, fires, tornados, other acts of God, or uncontrollable circumstances ("Disaster Event”)
is excluded from this Agreement. Any such services, if mutually agreed to, will be provided
under a separate contract. WM acknowledges that the County has the right to seek proposals
from other providers for the disposal of waste and debris resulting from a "Disaster Event.”

August 2023 Purchasing Committee Agenda



{c)

(e)

24-0021 Exhibit C

Each party shall be responsible for securing the necessary permits and approvals from
relevant federal, state and local governmental agencies having jurisdiction over their
respective operations. WM represents and agrees that its Disposal Facility is properly
permitted 1o receive the Acceptable Waste set forth in this Agreement. The parties shall
perform their obligations herein in compliance with ali applicable permits and laws and
regulations.

WM may close, at its sole discretion, the Disposal Facility in observance of the following
holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day
and Christmas Day.

WM has the right to refuse or reject after acceptance any load delivered under this Agreement
that contains Unacceptable Waste delivered to the Disposal Facility. [f the County delivers
Unacceptable Waste in breach of this Agreement herein, WM may in its sole discretion either
remove, manage, handle, store, treat, and/or dispose of that Unacceptable Waste and charge
the County for the costs, expenses, damages, fines, and penalties arising out of such activities
or require the County ta promptly remove, manage, handle, or dispose of the Unacceptable
Waste from the Disposal Facility at its sole cost. County shall indemnify, hold harmless
and pay or reimburse WM for any and all costs, damages and/or fines incurred as a
result of or relating to County’s tender or delivery of Unacceptable Waste, inciuding
costs of inspection, testing, analysis, legal fees, professional consulting fees, or
removal costs.

During the term of this Agreement, the County and its Customers and authorized
subcontractors shall have a license to enter the Disposal Facility for the limited purpose of,
and only to the extent necessary for, off-loading Acceptable Waste at the location and in the
manner directed by WM. Except in an emergency, or at the express direction of WM, the
County's personnel, authorized subcontractors and its Customers shall not leave the
immediate vicinity of their vehicle. After off-loading the Acceptable Waste, the County's
personnel, authorized subcontractors and its Customers shall promptly leave the Disposal
Facility. Under no circumstances shall the County or its personnel, authorized subcontractors
and its Customers engage in any scavenging of waste. WM may refuse to accept Acceptable
Waste from, and shall deny an entrance license to, any of the County's personnel, authorized
subcontractors and its Customers whom WM believes is under the influence of alcohal or other
chemical substances.

Title to the Acceptable Waste delivered by or on behalf of the County shall be transferred to
and vest in WM at the time the Acceptable Waste is (i) fully unloaded at the working face of
the Disposal Facility and the County's vehicle, its Customers and/or its authorized
subcontractors has departed such working face or (i) fully unloaded from the County’s vehicle,
its Customers and/or its authorized subcontractors at the Disposal Facility and the County’s
vehicle has departed. Prior thereto, title to the Acceptable Waste shall be in, and all risks and
responsibilities theretofore shall be borne by, the County or the Customer (as applicable).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, title to and liability for Unacceptable Waste shall always remain
with the County or the generator of the Unacceptable Waste

3. TERM OF CONTRACT

This Agreement shall take effect on July 1, 2023 (the "Effective Date") and shall continue for

five years, until June 30, 2027 (the “Term”). Subject to the mutual written agreement of the County
and WM, this Agreement may be renewed or extended for up to three additional five (5) year periods
(each a “Renewai Term”) for a total of twenty years. If either party intends to renew or extend the
Agreement term, then that party shall give written notice of its intent to the other party not less than
ninety (90) days before the termination of the then current term
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4, RATES AND PAYMENTS

(a) The disposal Base Rates that WM shall charge the County for receiving and/or landfilling of

Acceptabie Waste delivered to the Disposal Facility under this Agreement as of the Agreement
effective date are set forth in Exhibit A attached to this Agreemenl.

{(B) The parties agree that beginningon July 1, 2024 and on each July 1stthereafter, the Base Rates

(c

(d

will be adjusted by the percentage increase equal to the annuai percentage change in the average
Consumer Price Index, US City Average for All Urban Consumers, Water, Sewer Trash, Not
Seasonally Adjusted, (published by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer
Price Index (the "CPI") aver the twelve mast recently published months compared to the
average CPI for the previous 12-month period. The CPI published on the first Monday prior
o the end of the month (or the first business day thereafter if such Monday is a Federal
Holiday) shall be used to determine the monthly change, The anrual percentage change shall
be calculated by subtracting the average CPI value for the previous 12-months from the
average CP| value for the most recent 12-manth period, the result of which shall be divided
by the prior 12-manth period average. An example of the CP| annual increase calculation
follows:

January 2020 through December 2020 comparad to January 2020 to December 2021

Index 2020 12-Month 2021 12-Month Change Applied Percentage
Average Average Change

CPI - Water,

Sewer, Trash 252 46 261.47 3.01 3.6%

1 {9.01/252.486)

—

—

The calculated change shall be carried to three places to the right of the decimal and rounded
to the nearest thousandths. The percentage adjustment will be applied fo the then current
rates for services, as adjusted hereunder In the event the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau
of Labor Statistics ceases to publish the CPI, the parties hereto agree to substifute another
equailly authoritative measure of change in the purchasing power of the U.S. doliar as may be
then available so as to camy cut the intent of this provision.

WM may also adjust the Base Rates to account for increased costs resulting from
Uncontrollable Circumstances from time to time during the term of this Agreement,
Uncontrollable Circumstances shall mean any change in uncontrollable conditions which
increase the Contractor's costs. including but not fimited to. changes in or new governmental
laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or the enforcement thereof and changes in any landfill or
disposal fees, levies or surcharges. WM will provide written notice to the County of such
Uncontrollable Circumstance and associated adjustment at ieast thirty (30) days prior to
impiementing the change. Dacumentation of such increases shall be submitted 1o the County
at its request.

WM will invoice the County by the tenth (10th) day of each month for alj Acceptable Waste
deliveries during the previous month. The County shall pay WM within thirty (30) days after
invoice date. Any County invoice balance not paid within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice
is subject to a |ate charge. and any County check returned for insufficient funds is subjectto a
Non-Sufficient Funds fee, both to the maximum extent allowed by appiicable law. County
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S. INDEMNIFICATION

WM agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and save harmless the County, its officials, officers,
employees, agents, authorized subcontractors, representatives and assigns from any third
party loss, claim, liability, penalty, fine, forfeiture demand, cause of action, suit and any costs
and expenses incidental thereto {including cost of defense, settlement and reasonable
attorneys' fees), to the extent caused by (i) WM's or its eémployee's, agent's, authorized
subcontractor's, representative’s breach of any lerm. condition, covonant or warranty
confained in  thia Agreement, or (i) WM's or its employee's, agent's, authorized
subcontractor's, representative’s negligent or willful misconduct related to the ownership
maintenance and Operation of the Disposal Fagility,

The County agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and save harmiess WM., its officials, officers,
employees, agents, subcontractors, representatives and assigns from any third party loss.
claim, liability, penalty, fine, forfeiture, demand, cause of action, suit and any costs and
expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement and reasonable attorneys
fees), to the extent caused by (i) the County's or its employee’s, agent's, autheorized
subcontractor's, representative's breach of any term, condition, covenant or warranty
contained in this Agreement, or (ii) the County's or its employee’s, agent's, authorized
subcontractor's, representative’'s negligent or willful misconduct related to the delivery or
disposal of waste at the Disposal Facility,

6. INSURANCE

{a) WM shall provide and maintain the following insurance during the Term of this agreement

L. Comprehensive General Liability with limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence; $2,000,000
products/completed Operations; $5,000,000 general aggregate.

ii.  Excess General Liability *Follow form" coverage with limits of $5,000,000, to include
automobile liability and general liability.

iil.  Automobile Liability with limits of $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Coverage should be provided as "Symbol 1, any
auto."

iv. Workers' Compensation in accordance with applicable statutary coverage.

v.  Employer's Liability limits of $1,000,000 for each accident, $1,000,000 disease each
employee, $1,000,000 policy limit.

vi.  Property Coverage shall be a minimum of $11,000,000 per occurrence, $22,000,000
aggregate covering the transfer station property (land), equipment, fixtures, and
buildings from protection against af) perils included within the classification of fire,
extended Coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief, flood (in the event same is reguired
by a lender having a lien on the Premises) special extended perils ("all risk”. as such
term is used in the insurance industry). Wi may carry such insurance under a blanket
policy, provided that such policy provides coverage equivalent to a separale policy.
County will have no obligation to carry insurance on any Alterations oron WM's Trade
Fixtures or personal property.

vii. P
$
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pollution liability, not limited to sudden accidental discharge and to include fong-term
environmental impact, applicable to badily injury {including death) and property
damage including loss of use of property that has not been physically injured or
destroyed: clean-up costs: gnd defense and settlement of all claims in connection with
any loss arising from the Facility. Coverage shal| apply to sudden and accidental and
non-sudden pollution conditions, including the discharge, dispersal, release or escape
of smoke. vapors, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids or gases, waste

property damage.

If a policy is a claims made form the retro date is to be the same as or prior to the
Agreement effective date. All Policies must be maintained for at least 5 years after the
termination of this Agreement,

standards contained in this Agreement, if any.

Self-insured relentions and deductibles affecting required insurance must be
reasonably acceptable to the County Attorney. The Proposer must identify any self-
insurance Coverage and include:

i. Names and addresses of any third-party plan administrators; A written reserve
policy that outlines reserve targets: ang
ii. A listing of the €Xcess coverage, specifying the insurance company, the policy
Or contract number and the limits of liability and the retention amount,
iii. Annual reports containing the elements specified above must be submitted to
the County. ‘

Coverage obtained through insurance pools or risk retention groups must also be
reasonably acceptable to the County Attorney.

The County, its officials, angd employees shall be named as an additional insured
on the Commercial Generg| Liability and Automobite Liability Insurance policies. The
County shall be named as loss Payee on any property loss insurance policies. These
insurance policies shall contain the appropriate additional insured endorsement
signed by a Person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of Subrogation against the County, its
officials, and employees for losses arising from the activities under the Service
Agreement.

WM shall provide the Country with a certificate of insurance reflecting the County's
additional insured status and agreeing to give the County at least 30 days' written
notice in case of policy termination, and 10 days' notice for policy cancellation due to
premium nonpayment.

Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements effecting Coverage required by this
clause shall be forwarded to:

Anderson County Law Director
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Mr. Jay Yeager

101 South Main Street, Suite 310
Clinton, TN 37716-3624
865-457-6290

_Jiéégﬂ@ac_lwdiregtm

by WM that entitles the County to declare the Agreement void if WM does not remedy
the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice of breach from the County.

(b) The County shall provide and maintain the following insurance during the Term of this

Agreement:
—— - — = o —_—
i Reguired Insurance _ Loverage Limits - .
| Waorkers' Compensation Statutory |
S = S el e—
:‘hEmployers Liabitity $1 million per accident; $1 million disease policy !
I limit

Commercial General Liability (inciu—d—mQ $2 million per occurrence; $2 million aggregate—J
| bodily injury, property damage, operation,
| products, and completed operations)
| Commercial Automohile Liability {including | $1 million per occurrence; $2 million aggregate
| bodily injury, death of @ person or property |
damage arising out of ownership,
. maintenance or use of a motor vehigle ) | !

i.  County shall Provide to WM certificatas of insurance evidencing such insurance. Such
Coverage and policies shal| not be canceled, modified or revoked without providing
WM thirty days advance written notice. County’s insurance shall be primary as
respects to WM and any insurance maintained by WM shali be in excess of, and shal|

not contribute with, County's insurance.

. WM may, at its option, terminate this Agreement if the County fails to maintain the
required insurance Coverage.

ii.  County's workers’ Compensation, commercial 9eneral liability and automobile liability
insurance shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of WM.

iv. WM shall be included as an additional insured on the County’s commercial general
liability and automobile liability policies.

(¢) The insurance policy coverage requirements for the parties as set out above may be satisfied
by a combination of primary insurance and umbrella insurance.

7. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION
————=" ANU ERMINATION

(a) An event of default occurs when WM fails to materially perform any provision of this Agreement
and WM fails to cure its default within forty-five (45) days after its receipt of written notification by
the County; provided, that if such default cannot be cured within forty (45) days, an event of default
does not ocour if WM promptly initiates steps to cure the defauli and diligently pursues correcting
the default untii cure is achieved, which Cure must be achieved as Soon as practicable, but in no
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(b) The willful or negligent failure of WM to prevent the dumping of unpermitted waste at the Disposal
Facility and the willfy violation by the vendor of any federal, state, or local law, rule. resolution, or

ordinance applicable to the Disposal Facility shail be considered an event of default, subject to the
opportunity to cure the default as provided in subsection (a).

{c) Upon the occurrence of an event of defaujt as set forth above, the County shall have the right to
terminate the Agreement By sixty (60) days written notice to WM.

(d) WM shall have the right to terminate the contract in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement by the County, which, after forty-five (45) days following written notice from WM, has
not been cured,

(e) Either party may terminate this Agreement Upon written notice to the other if the offending party.
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or files a voluntary petition in bankruptey,
receivership or insclvency, or files an answer in any Invaluntary proceeding of that nature admutting
the material allegations of the petition, orifa proceeding in bankruptcy, receivership or insolvency
shall be instituted against the offending and such proceeding is not dismissed within sixty (60)

() In the event either party waives default by the other Party, such waiver shaif not be construed or
determined to be a continuing waiver of the same or any subsequent breach or default.

(g) The County's obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon funds appropriated in the
current fiscal year's budget as approved by the County Board of Coemmissioners, Any contract
requiring appropriated funds beyond the current fiscal year may be cancelled without netice in the
event that funding to suppart the contract are unavailable in the subsequent fiscal year.

(h} In the event that this Agreement is terminated for any reason, any amounts payable to WM by the
County for services rendered for any reason whatsoever shail become immediately due and
payable as of the date of such termination.

(i) In the event of defaultby a party hereto, the non-breaching party may bring suit against the other
party to enforce the terms of this Agreement. In such event, the prevailing party shall be entitied
to recover any remedies available at law and/or equity including reasonable attorney's fees
and costs associated with the default,

{i) The rights and remedies of the parties provided in this section shall not be exclusive, and are in
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Agreement.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY

The parties represent and agree, on behalf of themseives and their represeniatives, that they
will keep this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement, and the negotiations upan entering into the
Agreement, completely confidential and will nat publicize or disclose the conditions or terms of this
Agreement in any manner, whether in writing or orally, to any person, directly or indirectly, or by or
through any affiliate. agent, attorney, or other representative, unless compelled to do so by law or
unless prior writtery consent is provided by the other parly or a party is compelled to do so under
applicable state or federal law, statute, ordinance or regulation,

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS

unreasonably withheld, provided, however, that WM may transfer or assign its interest hersunder
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(d

(e)

()

(g)

(h) |

)

(k)

24-0021 Exhibit C

It shall also be an unlawful employment practice for WM (1) to fail or refuse to hire or to
discharge any individual or otherwise to discriminate against any individual with respect to their
compensation, or the lerms, conditions, or privileges of their empioyment, because of such
individual's race. color, religion, S€X, age, handicap or national origin: or (2) to limit,
segregate, or classify their emplayees or applicants for employment in any way which would
deprive or tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities  or otherwise adversely
affect their status as an employee, because of such individual's race, color, refigion, sex,
age, handicap or national origin. WM shall comply with The Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.8 C.
sec. 2000 et seq. (2000), as amended.

By signing this contract WM certifies that itis not currently engaged in and agrees for the duration
of this Agreement not to engage in, the boycott of Israel.

This Agreement Constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto,
and it shall not be considered modified. altered, changed or amended in any respect unless in
writing and signed by the parties hereto,

This is an Agreement for the performance of the Specific services described herein. Under ng
circumstances or conditions shall the operation of the Disposal Facility by WM in accordance with
this Agreement be deemed a public function, nor has the County acquired an interest, ownership

or otherwise in the real or perscnal property or improvements or fixtures at the Disposal Facility
by virtue of this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Tennessee, without reference to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.

The covenants, terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding
upon the successors ang approved assigns of the respective parties.

addressed as follows:

To WM: Waste Management, Inc. of TN

9
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Attn: Rob Owen
1428 Antioch Pike
Antioch, TN 37013

With a Copy to: Waste Management
Attn: Sr. Legal Counsel for Mid-South
800 Capito| Street, Suite 3000
Houston, TX 77002

To the County: Anderson County, TN
Atin;
101 South Main Street, Suite 310
Clinton, TN 37716

above specified.

(1) Whenever the consent, approval or Coaoperation of one party Is expressly or implicitly required or
necessary by the terms hereof to effect successfi| performance of the other Party, such consent,
approval or cooperation shal| not be unreasonably withheld, denied or delayed.

(m) The obligations of the parties to this Agreement, which by their nature would continue beyond the
termination, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement, including the Indemnification Section,
shall survive the termination (for any reason), cancellation or expiration of this Agreement.

{(n) This Agreement may be executad in multiple Counterpart copies and by facsimile or emailed
signatures, each and aj| of which will be deemed an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed thig Disposal Agreement on the date
set forth above,

ANDERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

By:
-

Its: _
_—

WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC. OF TENNESSEE

By:

Its: T =
-_—

10
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EXHIBIT A
BASE RATES

Effective July 1 2023 through June 30, 2024, the applicable Baste Rate is as follows:

The Basc Rate is subjeet to adjustment pursuant to sections 4(b) and (¢) of the Agreement
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Responsible Party for Notices: This instrument prepared by:
POWELL-CLINCH UTILITY DISTRICT OFFICE OF THE COUNTY LAW DIRECTOR
203 E. FIRST STREET ANDERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

P.O. Box 428 101 S. Main Street, Suite 310

Rocky Top, TN 37769 Clinton, TN 37716

(865) 457-6290
TAX ID #: MAP-018D; GROUP-C;
PARCELS-013.00, 014.00, 015.00
NOTE: PARTIAL ADDITIONS TO THESE PARCELS ONLY

TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY

Interlocal Cooperation Act

THIS TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THE TENNESSEE
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT codified at Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 12-9-101 et seq. is made by
and between the Local Government Entities of Anderson County, a political subdivision of the State
of Tennessee and Powell Clinch Utility District, a local utility district organized under the laws of the
State of Tennessee, and collectively referred to as “the Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on June 3, 1924 Anderson County acquired three small tracts of real property
from John A. Rowe and wife, M. J. Rowe for the price of twelve hundred dollars ($1,200.00) for the
specific purpose of widening U.S. Highway 25W through the Town of Coal Creek (now known as “the
City of Rocky Top”). These three tracts are described as follows:

BEGINNING A strip of land from station 944 + 07 to station 950 + 00 one hundred

sixty five (165) feed wide, extending one hundred (100) feet on left and sixty-five (65)

feet on right of center line. A strip of land from station 950 + 00 to station 951 + 00

ninety-five (95) feed wide, extending thirty (30) feet on left and sixty-five (65) feet wide

on right of center line. A strip pfland from station 951 +00 to station 953 + 82 sixty (60)

feet wide extending thirty (30) feet on left and right of center. A strip of land from station

962 + 00 to station 961 + 50 sixty (60) feet wide, extending thirty (30) feet on left and

right of center line. All as now located by the State of Tennessee, Department of
Highways and Public Works, through its engineering or agents.
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Being the same property transferred to Anderson County from John and M.J. Rowe
recorded in the Anderson County Register of Deeds Office in Book Y-3, Page 55 on
January 30, 1934. (See Exhibit 1 — Deed to Anderson County)

WHEREAS, on March 3, 1933 Anderson County acquired an additional small tract of real
property from Charles Phillips, and wife, Sarah Philips for one hundred and twenty-five dollars
($125.00) for the specific purpose of widening U.S. Hwy. 25W through the Town of Coal Creek (now
known as “the City Rocky Top”™). This tract of land is described as follows:

BEGINNING at the property line of B.E. Ward thence extending southeast wardly over

the lands of First parties to the property line Bart Phillips and the Tennessee Mfg. Co. at

the swinging Bridge, It being strip land 25 feet wide on the Southside of the center line

the public road as now surveyed and located, also any incidental damages that the first

parties may sustain on account of building of said road, such as removing his building

and fence, which second parties agree to do without further cost to the county.

Being the same property transferred to Anderson County from Charles and Sarah Phillips

and recorded in the Register of Deeds Office in Book Y-3, Page 41 on January 30, 1934.

(See Exhibit 2 — Deed to Anderson County)

WHEREAS, after the widening of U.S. Hwy. 25W was complete a small tract of land (.17
acres) was unneeded and not utilized for the widening project and unbeknownst to Anderson County,
remained in the possession of the County. The property was never properly identified in the tax records
of Anderson County and never described by map and parcel; and

WHEREAS, Powell Clinch Utility District owned the adjacent land and assumed it owned the
property up to the right-of-way line for U.S. Hwy. 25W. Due to this misinterpretation of the property
boundary line, Powell Clinch Utility District constructed a maintenance facility partially encroaching
on the property owned by Anderson County; and

WHEREAS, this encroachment was finally identified by Tony W. Crutchfield, Registered Land
Surveyor (Tennessee License No. 1788), when he surveyed the property on February 20, 2023. The

remaining real property is now described as follows:

Situate in the First Civil District of Anderson County, Tennessee and being located
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on the north bank of the waters of Coal Creek in the Town of Rocky Top (formerly
the Town of Lake City, formerly the Town of Coal Creek), said parcel being a
portion of the undeveloped right-of-way of U.S. Highway 25-W (also known as the
Dixie Highway or Main Street) located between the east margin of said Main Street
and the property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District, said parcel being located north
of the Creek Street intersection as well as north of the main channel of Coal Creek
and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point located at the east margin of the right-of-way of Main Street
south of a bridge crossing the Right Fork of Coal Creek (also known as Cherry
Bottom Creek), said point being a comer of the property assessed to the Town of
Rocky Top and being 30.0 feet east from the center line of the existing roadway of
Main Street, said point being further located by reference South 77 Degrees, 22
Minutes, 14 Seconds East, a distance of 8.28 feet from an iron pin comer of a
previous survey located at the edge of a sidewalk; thence leaving said point and
going with the line of said parcel of the Town of Rocky Top South 77 Degrees, 22
Minutes, 14 Seconds East, a distance of 40.02 feet to a point; said point being in the
line of the property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District (0-15/661, M-9/427 Second
Tract). Thence leaving said line of the parcel assessed to the Town of Rocky Top
and going with said line of the Powell-Clinch Utility District the following courses:
thence on a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 564.90 feet, having an arc
length of 177.62 feet and having a chord bearing and distance of South 01 Degrees,
35 Minutes, 56 Seconds West, 176.89 feet to a point; thence continuing South 82
Degrees, 44 Minutes, 19 Seconds West, a distance 0f 39.98 feet to a point at the east
margin of the aforesaid right-of-way of Main Street. Thence leaving said point and
going with a curve offset 30.0 feet east of said Main Street center line on a curve to
the right, said curve having a radius of 603.93 and an arc length of 191.51 feet to the
point of beginning. This parcel of land, being a portion of the property conveyed to
Anderson County in Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 55, contains 0.17 acres more or
less according to the survey of Tony W. Crutchfield, R.L.S. 1788 dated 02-20-2023
and revised 06-12-2023.

As a part of this conveyance, the Powell-Clinch Utility District hereby reciprocally
conveys by quitclaim all right, title and interest to Anderson County for any remnant
strips of land contained in previous surveys of this property to the west of the right-
of-way line offset 30.0 feet east of the center line of Main Street along the entire
length of the western boundary of said utility property as shown by survey, said
western boundary extending from the north bank of Coal Creek at the Creek Street
intersection to the point of beginning referenced herein. It is the intent of the Parties
of this conveyance that the above-described line is to be established as the dividing
boundary between the east margin of the right-of-way of Main Street and the west
boundary of the Powell-Clinch Utility District.

Further reference is made to the Tennessee Department of Transportation Right-
Of-Way Construction Map Federal Aid Project 55A 18 dated 1925 (revised
1927) and conveyed to Anderson County in Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 48
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and Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 55. The following are the relevant Reference
Stations with accompanying abutting owners:

Station 940+00 to Station 940+48 (unattributed owner) Station 940+48 to Station
940+63 (alley) Station 940+63 to Station 941+14 (W.H. Branscomb Y-3/48, also
LaFollette Grocery Co. Site) Station 941+14 to Station 942+52 (W.H.
Branscomb Y-3/48) Station 942+52 to Station 943+50 (Wood Heirs, possibly
Frank [Longmire) Station 943+50 to Station 944+07 (Wood Heirs, possibly Frank
Longmire) Station 944+07 to Station 945+22.2 (Wood Heirs/J.A. Rowe Y-3/55)

The right fork of Coal Creek, also known as Cherry Bottom Creek in previous
instruments of record, was subject to a channel relocation during the construction
of the Dixie Highway as noted on the TDOT record referenced above. The area
along the north boundary of the subject parcel described above is a part of this
channel relocation and is currently assessed to the Town of Rocky Top (formerly
Town of Coal Creek and Town of Lake City).

The property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District is referenced to the following
instruments of record:

Warranty Deed Book C-16, Page 648, Warranty Deed Book 0-15, Page 661,
Warranty Deed Book M-9, Page 427, Warranty Deed Book X-8, Page 329 (2nd
Tract).

(See Exhibit 3 — Physical Description from Survey by Tony W. Crutchfield
Registered Land Surveyor (Tennessee License No. 1788), dated, February 20, 2023)

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto wish to avail themselves to the authority under the Interlocal
Cooperation Act codified at Tenn. Code Ann. §§12-9-101 er seg. Under that legal authority any one or
more public agencies may contract with any one or more public agencies for the conveyance of
property, both real and personal, without being required to declare the property surplus and without
maintaining compliance with legal requirements in any purchasing act, both public or private; provided
that the public agencies utilized the property for a public purpose, and if sold or transferred in the
future, the proceeds of that sale or transfer must be utilized for a public purpose.

NOW THEREFORE, AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of TWENTY THOUSAND
DOLLARS AND NO ONE-HUNDREDTHS (820,000.00), cash in hand paid, and other good and

valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, ANDERSON COUNTY,

4
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TENNESSEE, the Grantor, does hereby quitclaim, and transfer unto POWELL-CLINCH UTILITY
DISTRICT, Grantee, its successors, heirs and assigns, the following described premises for a public
purpose only, to wit:

Situate in the First Civil District of Anderson County, Tennessee and being located
on the north bank of the waters of Coal Creek in the Town of Rocky Top (formerly
the Town of Lake City, formerly the Town of Coal Creek), said parcel being a
portion of the undeveloped right-of-way of U.S. Highway 25-W (also known as the
Dixie Highway or Main Street) located between the east margin of said Main Street
and the property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District, said parcel being located north
of the Creek Street intersection as well as north of the main channel of Coal Creek
and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point located at the east margin of the right-of-way of Main Street
south of a bridge crossing the Right Fork of Coal Creek (also known as Cherry
Bottom Creek), said point being a comer of the property assessed to the Town of
Rocky Top and being 30.0 feet east from the center line of the existing roadway of
Main Street, said point being further located by reference South 77 Degrees, 22
Minutes, 14 Seconds East, a distance of 8.28 feet from an iron pin comer of a
previous survey Jocated at the edge of a sidewalk; thence leaving said point and
going with the line of said parcel of the Town of Rocky Top South 77 Degrees, 22
Minutes, 14 Seconds East, a distance of 40.02 feet to a point; said point being in the
line of the property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District (0-15/661, M-9/427 Second
Tract). Thence leaving said line of the parcel assessed to the Town of Rocky Top
and going with said line of the Powell-Clinch Utility District the following courses:
thence on a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 564.90 feet, having an arc
length of 177.62 feet and having a chord bearing and distance of South 01 Degrees,
35 Minutes, 56 Seconds West, 176.89 feet to a point; thence continuing South 82
Degrees, 44 Minutes, 19 Seconds West, a distance of 39.98 feet to a point at the east
margin of the aforesaid right-of-way of Main Street. Thence leaving said point and
going with a curve offset 30.0 feet east of said Main Street center line on a curve to
the right, said curve having a radius of 603.93 and an arc length of 191.51 feet to the
point of beginning. This parcel of land, being a portion of the property conveyed to
Anderson County in Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 55, containing 0.17 acres more
or less according to the survey of Tony W. Crutchfield, R.L.S. 1788 dated 02-20-2023
and revised 06-12-2023.

As a part of this conveyance, the Powell-Clinch Utility District hereby reciprocally
conveys by quitclaim all right, title and interest to Anderson County for any remnant
strips of land contained in previous surveys of this property to the west of the right-
of-way line offset 30.0 feet east of the center line of Main Street along the entire
length of the western boundary of said utility property as shown by survey, said
western boundary extending from the north bank of Coal Creek at the Creek Street
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intersection to the point of beginning referenced herein. It is the intent of the Parties
of this conveyance that the above-described line is to be established as the dividing
boundary between the east margin of the right-of-way of Main Street and the west
boundary of the Powell-Clinch Utility District.

Further reference is made to the Tennessee Department of Transportation Right-
Of-Way Construction Map Federal Aid Project 55A 18 dated 1925 (revised
1927) and conveyed to Anderson County in Warranty Deed Book Y-3,Page 48
and Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 55. The following are the relevant
Reference Stations with accompanying abutting owners:

Station 940+00 to Station 940+48 (unattributed owner):

Station 940+48 to Station 940+63 (alley);

Station 940+63 to Station 941+14 (W.H. Branscomb Y-3/48, also LaFollette
Grocery Co. Site);

Station 941+14 to Station 942+52 (W.H. Branscomb Y-3/48);

Station 942+52 to Station 943+50 (Wood Heirs, possibly Frank Longmire);
Station 943+50 to Station 944+07 (Wood Heirs, possibly Frank Longmire);
Station 944-+07 to Station 945+22.2 (Wood Heirs/J.A. Rowe Y-3/55).

The right fork of Coal Creek, also known as Cherry Bottom Creek in previous
instruments of record, was subject to a channel relocation during the
construction of the Dixie Highway as noted on the TDOT record referenced
above. The area along the north boundary of the subject parcel described above
is a part of this channel relocation and is currently assessed to the Town of
Rocky Top (formerly Town of Coal Creek and Town of Lake City).

The property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District is referenced to the following
instruments of record:

Warranty Deed Book C-16, Page 648, Warranty Deed Book 0-15, Page 661,
Warranty Deed Book M-9, Page 427, Warranty Deed Book X-8, Page 329 (2nd
Tract).

(See Exhibit 3 — Physical Description from Survey by Tony W. Crutchfield
Registered Land Surveyor (Tennessee License No. 1788), dated, February 20,2023 and
amended June 12, 2023)

THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY ON INFORMATION FURNISHED
THE PREPARER WHO MAKES NO REPRESENTATION WHATSOEVER AS TO THE
CORRECTNESS OF THE SAME OTHER THAN IT HAS BEEN ACCURATELY TRANSCRIBED
FROM INFORMATION PROVIDED AND THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED
WITHOUT BENEFIT OF A TITLE OPINION.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have hereunto executed this instrument on this
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day of August 2023.

TRANSFER BY ANDERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE (GRANTOR):

By:

TERRY FRANK
County Mayor

JOSHUA N. ANDERSON
Chair, Anderson County Commission

ACCEPTANCE BY POWELL CLINCH UTILITY DISTRICT (GRANTEE):

By:
JOHN STAIR,
Board Chair
By:
GREG LEACH
Secretary
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NOTARY CERTIFICATIONS FOR ANDERSON COUNTY:

STATE OF TENNESSEE )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ANDERSON )

Before me, , a Notary Public of the State and County
aforesaid, personally appeared TERRY FRANK, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acknowledged herself to be the County
Mayor of Anderson County, Tennessee, the within named bargainor, a government municipality, and
that she as such County Mayor, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by
signing the name of Anderson County, Tennessee by himself as County Mayor.

Witness my hand and seal at office this day of August 2023.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

STATE OF TENNESSEE )
} ss.
COUNTY OF ANDERSON )

Before me, , a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid,
personally appeared JOSHUA N. ANDERSON, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acknowledged himself to be the Chair of
the Anderson County Board of Commissioners, the within named bargainor, a government municipality,
and that he as such Commission Chair, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein
contained by signing for Anderson County, Tennessee by himself as Commission Chair. .

Witness my hand and seal at office this day of August 2023.

Notary Public

My commission expires:
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NOTARY CERTIFICATIONS FOR POWELL CLINCH UTILITY DISTRICT:

STATE OF TENNESSEE )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ANDERSON )

Before me, . a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid,
personally appeared JOHN STAIR, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acknowledged himselfto be the Chair of the Powell
Clinch Utility Board, the within named bargainor, a government municipality, and that he as such Board
Chair, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing for the Powell
Clinch Utility Board.

Witness my hand and seal at office this day of August 2023.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

STATE OF TENNESSEE )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ANDERSON )

Before me, , a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid,
personally appeared GREG LEACH, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acknowledged himself to be the Secretary of the
Powell Clinch Utility Board, the within named bargainor, a government municipality, and that he as
such Board Secretary, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing
for the Powell Clinch Utility Board.

Witness my hand and seal at office this day of August 2023.

Notary Public

My commission expires:
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AFFIDAVIT OF CONSIDERATION

I, or we, hereby swear or affirm that the actual consideration for this transfer or value of the
property transferred, whichever is greater, is $ ., which amount is equal to or greater
than the amount which the property transferred would command at a fair and voluntary sale.

Affiant

Subscribed and sworn to before me this the day of ,2023.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

10
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Conveyance to Powell Clinch Utility District - Town of Rocky Top - Anderson County

Situate in the First Civil District of Anderson County, Tennessee and being located on the north
bank of the waters of Coal Creek in the Town of Rocky Top (formerly the Town of Lake City,
formerly the Town of Coal Creek), said parcel being a portion of the undeveloped right-of-way
of U.S. Highway 25-W (also known as the Dixie Highway or Main Street) located between the
east margin of said Main Street and the property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District, said parcel
being located north of the Creek Street intersection as well as north of the main channel of Coal
Creek and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point located at the east margin of the right-of-way of Main Street south of a
bridge crossing the Right Fork of Coal Creek (also known as Cherry Bottom Creek), said point
being a comer of the property assessed to the Town of Rocky Top and being 30.0 feet east from
the center line of the existing roadway of Main Street, said point being further located by
reference South 77 Degrees, 22 Minutes, 14 Seconds East, a distance of 8.28 feet from an iron
pin comer of a previous survey located at the edge of a sidewalk; thence leaving said point and
going with the line of said parcel of the Town of Rocky Top South 77 Degrees, 22 Minutes, 14
Seconds East, a distance of 40.02 feet to a point; said point being in the line of the property of the
Powell-Clinch Utility District (0-15/661, M-9/427 Second Tract). Thence leaving said line of
the parcel assessed to the Town of Rocky Top and going with said line of the Powell-Clinch
Utility District the following courses: thence on a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of
564.90 feet, having an arc length of 177.62 feet and having a chord bearing and distance of South
01 Degrees, 35 Minutes, 56 Seconds West, 176.89 feet to a point; thence continuing South 82
Degrees, 44 Minutes, 19 Seconds West, a distance of 39.98 feet to a point at the east margin of
the aforesaid right-of-way of Main Street. Thence leaving said point and going with a curve
offset 30.0 feet east of said Main Street center line on a curve to the right, said curve having a
radius of 603.93 and an arc length of 191.51 feet to the point of beginning. This parcel of land,
being a portion of the property conveyed to Anderson County in Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page
55, contains 0.17 acres more or less according to the survey of Tony W. Crutchfield, R.L.S. 1788
dated 02-20-2023 and revised 06-12-2023.

As a part of this conveyance, the Powell-Clinch Utility District hereby reciprocally conveys by
quitclaim all right, title and interest to Anderson County for any remnant strips of land contained
in previous surveys of this property to the west of the right-of-way line offset 30.0 feet east of the
center line of Main Street along the entire length of the western boundary of said utility property
as shown by survey, said westem boundary extending from the north bank of Coal Creek at the
Creek Street intersection to the point of beginning referenced herein. It is the intent of the Parties
of this conveyance that the above-described line is to be established as the dividing boundary
between the east margin of the right-of-way of Main Street and the west boundary of the
Powell-Clinch Utility District.
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Further reference is made to the Tennessee Department of Transportation Right-Of-Way
Construction Map Federal Aid Project 55A 18 dated 1925 (revised 1927) and conveyed to
Anderson County in Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 48 and Warranty Deed Book Y-3, Page 55.
The following are the relevant Reference Stations with accompanying abutting owners:

Station 940+00 to Station 940+48 (unattributed owner)

Station 940+48 to Station 940+63 (alley)
Station 940+63 to Station 941+14 (W.H. Branscomb Y-3/48, also LaFollette Grocery Co. Site)

Station 941+14 to Station 942+52 (W .H. Branscomb Y-3/48)

Station 942+52 to Station 943+50 (Wood Heirs, possibly Frank Longmire)
Station 943+50 to Station 944+07 (Wood Heirs, possibly Frank Longmire)
Station 944+07 to Station 945+22.2 (Wood Heirs/J.A. Rowe Y-3/55)

The right fork of Coal Creek, also known as Cherry Bottom Creek in previous instruments of
record, was subject to a channel relocation during the construction of the Dixie Highway as noted
on the TDOT record referenced above. The area along the north boundary of the subject parcel
described above is a part of this channel relocation and is currently assessed to the Town of

Rocky Top (formerly Lake City).

The property of the Powell-Clinch Utility District is referenced to the following instruments of

record:

Warranty Deed Book C-16, Page 648, Warranty Deed Book 0-15, Page 661, Warranty Deed
Book M-9, Page 427, Warranty Deed Book X-8, Page 329 (2nd Tract).
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